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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited
focuses on ports and infrastructure development
and investment, and the operation of ports and
logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region

of China. It also engages in land and property
development and investment in association with
ports and infrastructure development, as well as
securities trading and investment, and provision of
loan financing services. In addition, PYI provides
comprehensive engineering and property-related
services through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2020 2019

Revenue of the Group (HK$m) AEEZBA(BEET) 364 628
Gross proceeds from securities trading of the Group ~— ZNEH 7 %55 B & Fr{S I8 4 58

(HK$m) (BEBATT) 68 126
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures HEBMEANTIREEDNE WA

(HKSm) (BBATT) 5,344 4,556
Total revenue and gross proceeds (HK$m) WARMBHBEREAT(BEEBT) 5,776 5,310
Gross profit (HK$m) EH(EBET 124 209
(Loss) earnings before interest expense and tax Ret M EFZ BB A (EE) & F

(HK$m) (BBAT) (484) 121
(Loss) earnings before interest expense, tax, RErFERST BB TER

depreciation and amortisation #i5A (B8E) &F ([ (LBITDA) J =k

(“(LBITDA)” or “EBITDA") (HK$m) [EBITDA]) (B &3 7T) (431) 172
(Loss) profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BRE R (BB M (BE&ET) (572) 49
Shares in issue (M) BETRH(EER) 5,520 5,520
Net asset value' per share (HK$) BREEFE (BT 0.67 0.81
(Loss) earnings per share (HK$) TR (&8 BF (BT (0.104) 0.009
Dividend per share (HK$) A% B (78 7T) 0 0
Total assets (HK$m) wEE(BEEBT) 5,667 7,668
Quick assets? (HK$m) REEE2(BEBIT) 1,926 1,744
Net current assets (HK$m) REBEEFEBEBEBL) 2,787 2,235
Net debt® (HK$m) FaGE(BEEET) 162 392
Shareholders’ funds' (HK$m) ERES (BE&ET) 3,678 4,446
Capital employed* (HK$m) EBAES (BEEBT) 3,879 4,816
Current ratio® mEh bt &S 5.19 3.06
Quick ratio® SR B b RO 2.90 1.61
Net debt/equity ratio” FRE BN R 0.04 0.09
Gearing ratio® BARAFEL XS 0.15 0.26
Return on equity® % 4 Uk 75 ° -15.6% 1.1%
Return on capital employed'® EHHESKET -9.9% 3.4%
Total shareholder return'! e e -49% -6%

1 The amount for each of net asset value or shareholders’ funds is equivalent to the amount of equity attributable to owners of PYI
EEFEIBRRESCSHEESENREABEAREGERZSE
2 Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, stock of properties and current portion of prepaid lease payments
RYPELEERDEERTE VEFELRENHEERBEZ RBHS
3 Net debt represents bank borrowings less cash, bank balances and deposits, including those classified as held for sale
FABERITEFARE ROTEAFERESR BERZLDBERARFIELE

4 Capital employed represents the sum of shareholders’ funds and non-current portion of bank and other borrowings

EHAESERTESUARBITREMERNIERB I D 2 L
5 Current ratio measures the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MBLEABRDEERRPDEENLE

6 Quick ratio measures the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

R EABRPEERRPDEENLE

7 Net debt/equity ratio measures the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

FRE/AALEABRFEERRRESNL X

8 Gearing ratio measures the ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ funds. Total borrowings are the sum of (i) bank and other borrowings and (i)

amounts due to non-controlling interests which are interest bearing, including those associated with assets classified as held for sale
ERABELEAECREBRERRES AL X - GFATERORTT R E A B FA R ()M 26 A FEZRE

EARKEHEEERBZER

9 Return on equity measures the net profit or loss attributable to shareholders as a percentage of shareholders’ funds

el ast BRCREEFENREREBRRESNA DL

P
fm A

10 Return on capital employed measures the EBITDA or LBITDA as a percentage of the average capital employed over the year
EBAE S W5 SEBTDALBTDAGFEF NE SR ES FHENED L
11 Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year. The figure of
—-49% for 2020 is the percentage change from closing share price of HK$0.137 at 31 March 2019 to HK$0.07 at 31 March 2020
BRAEKSZEREGE)RIVRFENEDMFANE MR E - 2020F 2 BF-49% 2 H2019F3 A31 B 2 Ik 7 Y E0.137

BILE202046 3318 20078 THE D L&
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
JiR R 48 55

Year-on-Year %

REAMEL
HK$ 1.0 100
BT os N e |®
0.6 60
0.4 40
0.2 MWW 20
0 L - H — 0
-20
I -
2% 13% -8% -12% -6% -49% 60
FY & 15 16 17 18 19 20
—— Share price (cum dividend)* — Share price (ex dividend) I Total shareholder return
A& (@8 BB (B 8) PR ER 48 W am

*

Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI
shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
* REERIRERERE)RERERMNESE EH 2 H(19935F9A21 B) AR 2 25tk &2 &M

NET ASSET VALUE SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS GEARING RATIO
PER SHARE BRRES BEXREBL R
BREEFE

HKS 12 HK$m 5,000 4712 06
AT EE:!.% 4,300 4,446

1.0 |0.04 BT 2000 4,009 05[ 049 o

087 o0g5 ! 3,678
08 0.4
0.67 3,000
0.6 03 026 026
2,000
04 02
0.15

02 1,000 o1
FY 0 FY 0 FY
FE FE FE
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS (LOSS) RETURN ON EQUITY
TO SHAREHOLDERS PER SHARE IR W =

N2 - Tl § — |

REELER (EE) BRERN(HE)
HK$m 600 HKe 11 % 18
BE 500 477 pet(1] 9 8.8 B 15
B 400 7 12 10.1%

300 s 9

200 s 6

100 40 ) 0.9 3 11%

0 0 0

-100 (@34) - ©.7) 3 -0.8%

-200 -3 -6

-300 298) -5 -9 |-6.9%

-400 7| (6.5 -12

-500 -9 -15 o
Y -600 572 Y o1 (10.4) FY 18 -15.6%
. 6 17 18 19 20 A 16 17 18 19 20 . 6 17 18 19 20



n P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBREE

‘ ‘ At 31 March 2020, shareholders’ funds stood at
HK$3,678 million, representing net asset value per
share of HK$0.67. PYI will continue to maintain
a prudent approach in refining its strategy to
strengthen the long-term value of the Group.

MR2020F3H31H ' RREEA36.78EE8 Tt » BIER
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of PYIl Corporation
Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of about HK$364 million (2019:
HK$628 million). Net loss for the year attributable to the owners
of PYI was about HK$572 million (2019: net profit of about
HK$49 million), and basic loss per share was HK10.4 cents (2019:
basic earnings per share of HK0.9 cent). Shareholders’ funds
decreased by 17% to about HK$3,678 million (2019: HK$4,446
million), representing net asset value per share of HK$0.67 (2019:
HK$0.81).

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil).

During the year under review, PYI maintained a prudent
approach in refining its strategy to strengthen the long-term
value of the Group. The ports and logistics business of PYI
delivered stable performance during the year. A detailed review
of our operations during the year is set out in the Business
Review section.

pl) ResEERAT 2020 5%

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IFRBES
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRBES

The COVID-19 pandemic has delivered a global economic
shock of enormous magnitude, leading to steep recessions in
many countries. In June 2020, World Bank forecasted a 5.2%
contraction in global GDP in 2020 — the deepest global
recession in eight decades. The GDP growth of China for the
full year of 2019 and the first quarter of 2020 were 6.1% and
—6.8% respectively. The pandemic and the escalating China-US
trade tension have created uncertainties to China’s economy
and the macroeconomic environment is challenging.

Following the completion of our divestment strategy of
traditional container and dry bulk ports, PYI is poised to refocus
on other bulk commodities with higher growth potential, in
particular LNG as well as exploring into other alternative
business opportunities with a view to enhancing the PYI
shareholders’ value.

PYI continues to pursue effective internal control measures and
endeavours to enhance the quality of our overall corporate
governance measures. We maintained transparent
communications with investors and stakeholders, persisted to
pursue consistent and effective internal control and audit
programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices in
the Mainland.

PYl is strongly committed to corporate social responsibility
focusing on education and youth development by sponsoring
educational exchange program for secondary school students
between Hong Kong and Nantong and other cities in Jiangsu
Province for over thirteen years. During the year, PY| donated,
together with Paul Y. Engineering, HK$1 million to Friends of
Hope Education Fund to support their educational works in the
Mainland and Hong Kong. For the twelfth consecutive years, we
were awarded with the title of “Caring Company” by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service in recognition to our corporate
citizenship and our ongoing effort in caring the community.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices and
corporate social responsibilities are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report and Business Review.

2019 E RS R BRNRITEDIRE E A
ERTEANKEGE SRFZERZE =
R it R 1T 120204 6 A T8 A1 2020 FF & Bk Bl
WEEREBEWRGES2%  BERNTEREHEEN
2RER - FE2019F 2 F M2020F F —FE
MBEREERBEERD B AB.1%HM-6.8% &
BHARTMTIENENFEESBRRBER
FEGESRTEEMY  RECERE Mk
B o

EEEEAERBAREMEB O ZHERER
BENK K RECEBEFZERNEMASR
BRRERENNEE B2 BRLERAR K
RRMEMEBHE RRERREEE-

REBEFTERZABERERE XBNIE
SERIOEERKT BMABEEREER
FOERFREAENBA FEER —HX
BREOAMESREFRERF YEBEREHA
B2 553l o

REBEARBTEELERET LEESH
BRELFBRR CEPEEEBBNIIHHE
TP REETEMIREHER T =
F-FR REBRAREZXSHABR—BE
BLTHREZRBEES UXHAMEEE
MBEER - AEESH TR AEFHL S
— DN SEERAEEEEE T _FRESF
AHERFEEREIBARMBE]FEHAOK
B BFETEEEERLCRARNESE AN
REERSTENRPEE D -

BERAEEZACREAFRARERHLEE ML
HA(ERERRE) M(EHER) -



| wish to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to my fellow Board members for their valuable guidance and
monitoring to the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express our appreciation to the Group’s staff for their dedication
and contribution that gives impetus to the development of the
Group. | would also like to send our gratitude to our
shareholders, clients and partners for their continuous support
and confidence to the Group. | wish them all prosperity and
continued success in the coming year.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

Pl) RexmaRAT 2020 #8

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IFRBES

AABRUBERISETRNERTKER
HEENEAREE AATKREZREH
AEBEEBTREFAREERREMNEOER
MEN-ARTROBRHFRMOBR  BEF R
BHEZFREXAEEFENEOMIE - KA
MU RFERIEREEIRZ -

FERAEL
gE R
E25S

&7 0 2020456 A26 H




Business

W y A

x 1% & 18
PYI1 will stay in line with
China's national policy
and general development

directions on implementation of
our Yangtze Strategy.

RESEREBRAERIRKKRS
EFEBERBRKARERSE
REF—H -

YANGKOU PORT
EOE

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING
REER




JIAXING INTERNATIONAL
FEEDER PORT

= ERTERIBE

PYI PROPERTY
REFEHME

JIANGYIN SUNAN
CONTAINER TERMINAL

IEHERERERR

MINSHENG GAS
R4 A




E P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

BUSINESS REVIEW
ERER

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Ports and Logistics

The ports and logistics business of PYI sustained to deliver
stable performance during the year in spite of the pandemic in
the last quarter. Following the completion of its divestment
strategy of traditional container and dry bulk terminals, PYl is
poised to refocus on other bulk commodities terminals and
infrastructures with higher growth potential, in particular liquified
natural gas (“LNG”).

During the year, PYI entered into conditional agreements for the
disposals of Yichang Port Group, Jiangyin Sunan and Jiaxing
International Feeder Port. The disposal of Yichang Port Group
was completed at the end of June 2019. The disposals of
Jiangyin Sunan and Jiaxing International Feeder Port were
approved by the shareholders in a special general meeting held
on 5 February 2020. While the completion process is in an
advanced stage, completions have not yet taken place as at the
date of this annual report.
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Yichang Port Group (51% owned before disposal at
the end of June 2019)

A conditional agreement for the disposal of the Group’s 51%
equity interest in Yichang Port Group was entered into on 22
May 2019. The disposal was completed and the consideration
amount, net of tax and directly attributable costs paid, of about
HK$386 million was received in full during the year.

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$105 million (2019:
HK$38 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year,
which comprised the gain on disposal of the Group’s 51%
equity interest in Yichang Port Group of about HK$88 million
(2019: Nil) and Yichang Port Group’s operating profit of about
HK$17 million (2019: HK$38 million) up to the date of disposal
at the end of June 2019. A tax charge of about HK$28 million
(2019: Nil) in relation to the disposal was recognised to the
consolidated income statement during the year.

Cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the three months
ended 30 June 2019 amounted to about 3.7 million tonnes (year
ended 31 March 2019: 13 million tonnes) while its container
throughput amounted to about 31,000 TEUs (year ended 31
March 2019: 141,000 TEUs).

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)
Jiangyin Sunan contributed about HK$12 million (2019: HK$13
million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.

Jiangyin Sunan is situated at New Harbour District of New
Harbour City in Jiangyin City and occupies a land area of 0.49
sq km, shorelines of 589 m long at outer port and 1,090 m long
at inner port with 11 berths. It is principally engaged in
containers loading and discharging as well as the storage,
maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.

Annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan in calendar year
2019 decreased by 6% to about 539,000 TEUs (2018: 574,000
TEUs).
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EBESR

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port contributed about HK$9 million
(2019: HK$7 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the
year, as a result of the increased container throughput during
the year due to the increase in demand for the imported raw
materials by local enterprises.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port is situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City and occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass
of 326,000 sg m. The port has 10 berths which are principally
engaged in loading, discharging and storage of containers. The
port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting
services such as examination, quarantine, storage and
information services etc.

Annual container throughput of Jiaxing International Feeder Port
for the year ended 31 March 2020 increased by 19% to about
185,000 TEUs (2019: 156,000 TEUSs).

LPG, CNG and LNG Distribution and Logistics (100%
owned)

The liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and compressed natural
gas (“CNG”) distribution and logistics businesses of Minsheng
Gas recorded an operating loss of HK$12 million (2019: HK$1
million) to the segment results for the year, mainly affected by
the reduced number of LPG-powered vehicles in Wuhan City
and the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter of
2020. Due to the absence of the one-off disposal gain of about
HK$47 million (2020: Nil) from the resumption of land and
properties of a CNG station by Wuchang Government under the
Old City Conversion Project recognised in last year, the overall
segment results of Minsheng Gas turned from profit of HK$46
million to loss of HK$12 million for the year.

Sales of LPG decreased by 50% to about 4,600 tonnes (2019:
9,200 tonnes) and the sales of CNG decreased by 2% to about
19,500 m? (2019: 19,800 m®) for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Currently, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest LPG
storage-tank farm and a river terminal in Hubei Province, and
has five LPG and five CNG automotive fueling stations in Wuhan
City.

35 5 o 7] 5] B 7 TR (HE 5 90% F&E 47 )
ERBEANTERBEARND B2 L LHEN
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Since 2013 and in line with the policy of Wuhan municipal
government to promote more CNG-powered vehicles in Wuhan
City, Minsheng Gas has established a diversification strategy to
transform its LPG fueling stations into CNG to improve sale and
profitability. Five LPG automotive fueling stations had been
transformed into CNG stations. The transformation process is
on-going.

Meanwhile, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Government
has made a strong commitment to reduce the carbon emission
at the 2015 United Nations Climate Change Conference in Paris
and has issued policies to speed up the development of clean
energy including LNG. Given that LNG is more efficient in terms
of storage and long-distance transportation as compared to
piped natural gas, there is tremendous growth potential for LNG
storage and infrastructure development. In consideration of the
LNG growth potential, Minsheng Gas intends to seize the
opportunity to further expand its business by initiating a two-
phase development plan to construct new LNG storage tanks
and LNG berths catering to residential and industrial demands
as well as that for LNG vessels. The gradual diversification in the
business of Minsheng Gas from LPG to CNG, followed by the
focus on LNG, is in line with national policy and market
demands. Under the development plan, the LNG storage
facilities of Minsheng Gas will be designated as a regional
storage and trans-shipment hub for LNG in Hubei Province.

Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

The Group’s 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu Yangkou Port
Development and Investment Co. Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co”) did
not contribute dividend income to the segment’s profit for the
year (2019: HK$1 million).

Yangkou Port Co principally engaged in the business of
development of port and related infrastructures at Yangkou
Port, an offshore type deep-sea harbour along the South East
Coast of Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Strategically located near
the mouth of the Yangtze River, Yangkou Port is ideally situated
to become one of China’s largest trans-shipment hubs for dry
and liquid bulk cargoes.
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Yangkou Port Co was a 60% owned subsidiary of PYI before its
50.1% equity interest was disposed of on 26 May 2011. The
remaining 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co, representing
its US$19.8 million registered capital with an investment cost of
about HK$154 million, was initially measured at fair value on 26
May 2011, amounted to about HK$353 million. PYI continues
to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port through the 9.9%
equity interest which is intended to be held for long-term
investment purpose and is classified as an investment in equity
instrument. As at 31 March 2020, the investment in Yangkou
Port Co was stated at fair value of about HK$310 million (2019:
HK$361 million), equivalent to about 5.5% (2019: 4.7%) of the
Group’s total assets. The unrealised decrease in fair value of
HK$51 million (2019: HK$44 million) for the year was recognised
in other comprehensive expense.

Engineering Business

Paul Y. Engineering (48.2% owned)

Paul Y. Engineering contributed segment operating profit of
about HK$16 million (2019: HK$20 million) for the year ended
31 March 2020. To align with the accounting policy of expected
credit loss provision (“ECL Provision”) of PYI regarding certain
non-trade receivables of Paul Y. Engineering, an impairment
loss adjustment of about HK$123 million (2019: Nil) was made
on PYI’s share of results of Paul Y. Engineering, resulted in an
overall segment loss of about HK$107 million (2019: profit of
HK$20 million).

The aforesaid non-trade receivables of Paul Y. Engineering are
due from South Shore Holdings Limited (“South Shore”, the
ultimate holding company of Paul Y. Engineering, whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with stock code of 0577.HK) and its
subsidiaries engaging in hotel operation business in Macau
(collectively known as “South Shore Hotel Segment”) with gross
carrying amount of about HK$534 million which were subject to
assessment by management of PYI under PYI's accounting
policy of ECL Provision.
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According to the latest published financial statements of South
Shore, significant impairment losses have been recognised for
the hotel assets in South Shore Hotel Segment resulted in the
financial position of South Shore Hotel Segment turned from net
assets to net liabilities starting from the year ended 31 March
2019. The South Shore Hotel Segment’s ability to continue as a
going concern, as well as the ability to settle its financial
obligations when they fall due were subject to the likelihood of
obtaining waiver for non-compliance of certain loan covenants
in respect of its bank borrowings and certain realisation and
financing plans and measures taken by its management. On 24
March 2020, South Shore announced that a bank has
demanded immediate payment of overdue interest in respect of
its term loan facility and forewarned enforcement steps would
be taken without notice in the event of failure to repay principal
and further interest. It was further disclosed that South Shore
was unlikely to meet this deadline and it was their intention to
repay to the bank out of the proceeds of disposal of a 50%
interest in its subsidiary that beneficially owns THE 13 Hotel. So
far as the Company is aware from announcements of South
Shore made on the Stock Exchange, no concrete progress of
the disposal has yet been executed. Taking into account the
above facts and factors, PYI’'s management considered that the
non-trade receivables from South Shore Hotel Segment were
credit-impaired and additional loss allowance was provided as
at 31 March 2020 under PYI’s ECL policy, resulted in an
impairment loss adjustment of about HK$123 million on PYI's
share of results of Paul Y. Engineering during the year.

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering recorded a revenue of
about HK$10,982 million (2019: HK$9,348 million) and secured
new contracts of about HK$15,770 million (2019: HK$14,599
million) in aggregate value. As at 31 March 2020, the total value
of contracts on hand of Paul Y. Engineering was about
HK$44,307 million (2019: HK$32,722 million) and the value of
work remaining was about HK$26,633 million (2019:
HK$20,277 million).

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated
to providing full-fledged engineering and property services, with
operations in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia. For over 70 years, Paul Y. Engineering has been at
the heart of some of the most challenging and impactful
construction projects that have shaped the iconic skylines of
Hong Kong and many other cities. Its projects include
commercial and residential buildings, institutional facilities,
highways, airport runways, railways, tunnels, port works, water
and sewage treatment facilities etc.
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Property

The property business recorded an operating profit of about
HK$15 million (2019: HK$25 million) for the year which was
mainly attributable to the net gain on fair value changes of
investment properties of about HK$47 million (2019: HK$39
million), before the relevant deferred tax charge of about HK$22
million (2019: HK$15 million), offset by a write-down of the
stock of properties held for sale situated at Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC of about HK$18 million (2019: Nil)
and net development expenses for resort project at Xiao
Yangkou of about HK$6 million (2019: HK$6 million).

The Group has 11.5 sq km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou,
which is under development as a regional tourism site of
national standard with hotspring and recreational facilities. As at
31 March 2020, about 6.89 sq km (2019: 6.89 sq km) out of
the 11.5 sg km land bank had reached the developing stage or
the developed and serviced stage. The development status of
the 11.5 sg km land bank was summarised as follows:
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ERE L B A EREEE

4.61 Pending development Undetermined Project under development

11.50

frF %

fel AROR TE

BETIER



The investment properties of about 2.88 sq km are measured at
fair value of about HK$1,041 million (2019: HK$1,055 million)
and recorded a gain on fair value change of about HK$50
million (2019: HK$33 million) for the year.

As at 31 March 2020, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sg m of
“Nantong International Trade Center”, a commercial and office
development in the central business district of Nantong City,
was rented out for hotel operation and classified as investment
properties. The investment properties recorded a loss on fair
value change of about HK$3 million (2019: gain of HK$1 million)
for the year. The Group also holds a gross floor area of about
11,000 sg m (2019: 13,000 sg m) of “Nantong International
Trade Center” for sale, for which a write-down of about HK$18
million (2019: Nil) was made during the year. The building
contributed revenue from sales of properties of about HK$26
million (2019: Nil) and rental income of about HK$2 million (2019:
HK$3 million) to the Group during the year.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group holds, as joint venture with
Paul Y. Engineering, an office building known as “Pioneer
Technology Building”, which has a gross floor area of about
20,000 sg m. The building recorded a loss on fair value change
of about HK$9 million (2019: Nil) and generated rental income
of about HK$11 million (2019: HK$11 million) during the year.
Its occupancy reached about 92% as at 31 March 2020.

Before the disposal of Yichang Port Group, the Group held
certain commercial, residential and industrial properties with
gross floor area of about 145,000 sq m (inclusive of commercial
shops of about 5,000 sg m) in the main urban district of
Yichang City for rental through Yichang Port Group. These
properties were classified as investment properties and
generated rental income of about HK$2 million (2019: HK$9
million) to the Group during the year. After the disposal of
Yichang Port Group, the Group does not hold any investment
properties in Yichang City.
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Securities

Under influence from various unprecedented events including
the social incidents in Hong Kong, the global outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic and the China-US trade disputes, the
securities market has become volatile for the year. The
securities business recorded operating loss of about HK$197
million (2019: profit of HK$27 million) for the year which was
mainly attributable to the fair value loss on investments in debt
and equity instruments held for trading of about HK$224 million
(2019: HK$11 million), of which about HK$29 million (2019: gain
of HK$14 million) was realised and about HK$195 million (2019:
HK$25 million) was unrealised.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s portfolio in securities
business mainly consisted of (a) the investment in debt
instruments held for trading which amounted to about HK$248
million (2019: HK$299 million), equivalent to about 4% (2019: 4%)
of the Group’s total assets and (b) investment in equity
instruments held for trading which amounted to about HK$192
million (2019: HK$310 million), equivalent to about 3% (2019: 4%)
of the Group’s total assets.

Looking forward, the ongoing impact from COVID-19 and
persistent rising tension between China and the United States
might continue to pose negative impacts to the sentiment of the
Hong Kong and global securities market that continue to raise
challenges to the Group’s securities segment in future. The
Group will continue to monitor its portfolio of investments in
diversified securities products to improve performance in the
coming year.
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Treasury

The treasury business of the Group recorded an operating loss
of about HK$138 million (2019: profit of HK$56 million) for the
year which was mainly attributable to the impairment provision
of about HK$165 million (2019: reversal of impairment provision
of about HK$20 million) mainly on the loans and related interest
receivables which have been in default and considered as
credit-impaired, offset by interest income of about HK$27
million (2019: HK$36 million) derived from loans receivable.

The impairment provision on loans and interest receivables for
the year was mainly attributable to the additional ECL Provision
of about HK$106 million recognised on the unsecured loans
principal of about HK$134 million and the accrued interests of
about HK$18 million due from Master Glory Group Limited
(“MGGL”, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code of 0275.HK) (collectively the “MGGL Loans”),
resulted in a cumulative ECL Provision of about HK$114 million
as at 31 March 2020.

In consideration that (i) after the proposed rights issue of MGGL
with intended use of proceeds for debt repayment was voted
down by its shareholders in the special general meeting held on
23 April 2019, there was no alternative proposal published or
concrete action taken by MGGL for the settlement of its debts
due; (i) the trading of shares of MGGL has been suspended
since 2 July 2019 due to its non-compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) for publication of its annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and interim results for the period ended
30 September 2019 within the period of time required under the
Listing Rules; (iii) during the year, MGGL failed to settle the loan
principals and interests payable to the Group on the maturity
dates; and (iv) several winding up petitions were filed against
MGGL by its creditors in November 2019 for failure to settle its
indebtedness, it was considered that the liquidity and financial
position of MGGL has significantly deteriorated during the year.
After taking reference to the historical market default records
and other forward-looking factors, the management determined
to provide 75% loss allowance on the outstanding MGGL Loans
as at 31 March 2020 (“Internal Assessment”).
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To assess the reasonableness of the Internal Assessment, the
Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform
an additional analysis to reassess the impairment provision on
MGGL Loans in accordance with HKFRS 9 by adopting its
independently selected parameters which contain credit rating
portfolio similar to MGGL (“External Assessment”). The External
Assessment indicated that the average loss rate was about
72%. Since the difference of the impairment provision between
Internal Assessment and External Assessment is not significant,
the management of the Group considered that it was fair and
reasonable to adopt the Internal Assessment for the impairment
provision of MGGL.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 1 June 2020, the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region granted
the winding up order against MGGL. The Group is considering
participation in the liquidation process of MGGL to ensure
maximum recovery of the MGGL Loans. Further update
announcement in respect of the MGGL Loans will be made if
and when necessary.

As at 31 March 2020, carrying amounts, after impairment
allowance, of the Group’s portfolio of (a) high-yield loans
receivable amounted to about HK$150 million (2019: HK$230
million), equivalent to about 3% (2019: 3%) of the Group’s total
assets and (b) interest-bearing borrowings to an associate
amounted to about HK$61 million (2019: HK$69 million),
equivalent to about 1% (2019: 1%) of the Group’s total assets.

There remain significant uncertainties in the worldwide economy
and enterprises’ recovery from COVID-19 pandemic.
Management will remain cautious in monitoring the risks and
collectability of existing loan portfolio. Meanwhile, the
management will continue to explore for business opportunities
under a balanced credit strategy and maintain a healthy loan
portfolio with a view to contribute a stable and favourable
income stream to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Except for the 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co as set
out in the Ports Development under the Review of Operations
and Business Development section, the Group did not hold any
significant investments in any investee company with a value of
above 5% of the Group’s total assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

At the end of June 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
its entire investment of 51% equity interest in Yichang Port
Group, which was a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and mainly engaged in operation of ports,
at a consideration of about RMB381 million (equivalent to about
HK$434 million). Yichang Port Group and its subsidiaries
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group upon and after the
disposal.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have material

acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events occurred since the end
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of about HK$364 million (2019: HK$628
million), representing a decrease of about 42% from last year,
mainly due to decrease in revenue contributed by Yichang Port
Group which was disposed of at the end of June 2019. After
taking into account (a) the gross proceeds from securities
trading and (b) the share of revenue of associates and joint
ventures, the total revenue and gross proceeds were about
HK$5,776 million (2019: HK$5,310 million), representing an
increase of 9% from last year, mainly resulted from the increase
in share of revenue of Paul Y. Engineering Group.

As a result of the disposal of Yichang Port Group, the Group’s
gross profit decreased by 41% from last year to about HK$124
million (2019: HK$209 million), which represented a gross
margin of 34% (2019: 33%) of the consolidated revenue.

During the year, the Group recorded a loss before taxation of
about HK$507 million (2019: profit before taxation of about
HK$89 million), which was composed of:

(i)  netloss of about HK$107 million (2019: gain of about
HK$20 million) in Paul Y. Engineering Group mainly
engaged in management contracting and property
development management businesses;

(i)  net gain of about HK$114 million (2019: HK$104 million)
in ports and logistics business;

(i) net gain of about HK$15 million (2019: HK$25 million) in
property business;

(iv) net loss of about HK$197 million (2019: gain of about
HK$27 million) in securities business;

(v)  net loss of about HK$138 million (2019: gain of about
HK$56 million) in treasury business;

(vl  net corporate and other expenses of about HK$170
million (2019: HK$112 million), which included acquisition-
related costs of about HK$23 million (2019: HK$27 million)
and net exchange loss of about HK$26 million (2019:
HK$10 million); and

(vii)  finance costs of about HK$24 million (2019: HK$32
million).
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Net loss for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was about
HK$572 million (2019: net profit of about HK$49 million) and
basic loss per share was HK10.4 cents (2019: basic earnings
per share of HKO.9 cent). The net loss was mainly attributable
to (a) loss on changes in fair value of investments in debt and
equity instruments held for trading of about HK$224 million (of
which HK$29 million was realised and HK$195 million was
unrealised); (b) impairment loss recognised for financial assets
(mainly loans and the related interest receivables) of about
HK$166 million; and (c) net loss of associates shared by PY! of
about HK$94 million. Meanwhile, the increase in net corporate
expenses was mainly attributable to the discretionary bonus of
about HK$43 million (2019: Nil) granted to the Hong Kong and
mainland executives for their endeavour in implementing PYI
Yangtze Strategy throughout the years.

Review of Financial Position

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2019, total assets decreased by 26% to about
HK$5,667 million (2019: HK$7,668 million) which was mainly
attributable to the disposal of Yichang Port Group. As at 31
March 2020, net current assets amounted to about HK$2,787
million (2019: HK$2,235 million), whereas current ratio deriving
from the ratio of current assets to current liabilities increased to
5.19 times (2019: 3.06 times). After taking into account (a) the
net loss of about HK$572 million; (b) the decrease in carrying
amount of equity investments not held for trading of about
HK$62 million recognised in investment revaluation reserve; (c)
the Renminbi exchange deficits of about HK$143 million arising
from translation of foreign operations; and (d) the reclassification
of exchange deficits to profit or loss upon disposal of Yichang
Port Group of about HK$9 million, equity attributable to owners
of PYI decreased by 17% to about HK$3,678 million (2019:
HK$4,446 million), representing HK$0.67 (2019: HK$0.81) per
share as at 31 March 2020.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$120
million (2019: inflow of about HK$85 million). Net cash inflow
from investing activities was about HK$76 million (2019: outflow
of about HK$26 million) and net cash outflow from financing
activities was about HK$77 million (2019: HK$99 million).
Consequently, there was a net decrease in available cash and
cash equivalents of about HK$121 million (2019: HK$40 million)
during the year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of HK$5,667
million (2019: HK$7,668 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit
facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to ten years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, no financial instruments had been
used for hedging purpose and no foreign currency net
investments are hedged by currency borrowings or other
hedging instruments. The Group adopts a prudent funding and
treasury policy and manages the fluctuation exposures of
exchange rate and interest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$392 million (2019: HK$1,140 million) with about
HK$191 million (2019: HK$770 million) repayable on demand or
within one year and about HK$201 million (2019: HK$370
million) repayable after one year, which comprised bank and
other borrowings and amounts due to non-controlling interests
that were interest bearing. Borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong dollar of about HK$36 million (2019: HK$120 million) bore
interest at floating rate and none of them (2019: HK$1 million)
bore interest at fixed rate. Borrowings denominated in Renminbi
of about HK$10 million (2019: HK$528 million) bore interest at
floating rate and about HK$346 million (2019: HK$491 million)
bore interest at fixed rate. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.11
(2019: 0.26), which was calculated based on the total
borrowings of about HK$392 million (2019: HK$1,140 million)
and the Group’s shareholders’ funds of about HK$3,678 million
(2019: HK$4,446 million). After including the bank borrowings
of about HK$169 million classified as held for sale, the Group
had total borrowings of about HK$561 million, represented a
gearing ratio of 0.15.
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Cash, bank balances and deposits of the Group as at 31 March
2020 amounted to about HK$356 million (2019: HK$518
million), of which about HK$222 million (2019: HK$295 million)
was denominated in Renminbi, about HK$82 million (2019:
HK$165 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$52 million (2019: HK$58 million) was denominated in
other currencies mainly in United States Dollar. The balance of
about HK$12 million (2019: HK$0.1 million) had been pledged
to bank to secure general credit facilities granted to the Group.
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a net debt position (being
bank borrowings net of cash, bank balances and deposits) of
about HK$36 million (2019: HK$392 million). After including the
bank balances and cash of about HK$43 million and bank
borrowings of about HK$169 million classified as held for sale,
the Group had a net debt position of about HK$162 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no contingent liability (2019:
guarantee provided to a bank in respect of a banking facility
granted to a third party of about HK$6 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment and bank balances of the Group with an
aggregate value of about HK$493 million (2019: certain property
interests, property, plant and equipment, debt instruments and
securities account, bank balances and trade receivables in
aggregate of about HK$1,102 million) were pledged to banks
and financial institutions to secure general credit facilities
granted to the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had expenditure contracted
for but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and
equipment and properties interests in a total amount of about
HK$117 million (2019: HK$54 million).

pl) ResEERAT 2020 5%

BUSINESS REVIEW
EBESR

MR202063A31H - AEEzRE BITHEFR
TR BH356EHE T (2019 5.18EHE L) &
#2221 7% 7 (2019 : 2.9518 78 7T ) A A R ¥ &t
8 - 98,2008 78 7T (2019 : 1658 B L) LB T
F B & #75,200 8 % 7T (2019 : 5,800 & /& 7T) A
HE®(FERET)FE - &7 41,2008 7%
L(2019 1108 A L) EE B FIRITUERE T
REBZ —REERE - N2020F3H8318 + &
SEERFEERR(AINKRERS RTEGFR
TR ZIBITHE ) #93,6008 7% 78 (2019 : 3.921F
BIL) BREIEAFBELEZRITEFTREAS
#14,3008 %8 L LA KR 1T K169 B LER
% AEBZFEERRAL12EET -

HREE

MR2020F3HA3TH AEEBEB W Bk A B E
(2019 A E=ZFER 2 —BIRITEERMEM
MTIRITZERDAB0OEBIT) ©

EEERA

M202056F3A31E ASBEETYEREZ W
X EMEREHEARRITETRELNLIBES
TL(2019: BT WML - W - HWREE -
EHETARBLRER SOEFRESHEUE
FEEHNNMREBT)ERABFPRITRTBEE
B UERBETAEEZ —REERE -

EiE

R2020F3A31H  AEERKBEE THWE -
B R R ERMERZ BT HNEITRRES
MBBREBEE RIS HN117ES T (2019 :
5,400& & 7T) ©



Py1 C) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

BUSINESS REVIEW
EBESR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Environmental Policies and Performance

We aim to operate our business with good environmental
protection practices which comply with applicable laws,
regulations and standards and we endeavour to:

V' Apply practices which minimise, lessen or remediate the
impact of our activities on the environment including
potential air and greenhouse gas emissions, wastewater
discharges, land contamination as well as generation of
wastes;

v" Use raw materials, energy and natural resources as
efficiently as possible and strive to improve that efficiency;
and

v Adopt measures to mitigate the negative effects of
environmental incidents.

The aforesaid principles are enshrined in our Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy adopted in June 2014. PYl is
committed to managing all business operations with sensitivity
to environmental protection. We will review our environmental
protection practices from time to time and will continue to apply
eco-friendly measures and practices in our operation.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers and Other Stakeholders

PYI has committed to responsible practices by adopting three
guiding core values: Genuine; Exceptional; and Involved as
expressed in our Code of Conduct. Operating with integrity,
being ethical and treating others with respect; creating
exceptional experiences that delight our stakeholders; and
inclusive, open and actively engaging our stakeholders and
serving communities. In essence, we adhere to integrity,
respect, responsibility, competence and safety in carrying out
our business. The following principles, which are enshrined in
our Environmental, Social and Governance Policy and Code of
Conduct, are being adopted:

B HEREREBE
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Employees ES
v Providing a healthy and safe working environment; vV OREREEERTEAIERE
v" Adopting and maintaining a positive safety culture and vV R EREITENTE X RITE:
behaviour;
v OBRBERMERE  HEED EEHE
v" Instituting occupational and community health/nygiene R ENML e BERHERERE  URE
programmes with an aim to eliminate or mitigate safety, HERE

occupational and community health and hygiene hazards;
v REEVNEIREEKS
v Offering suitable training and development opportunities;
Y ORAEERNERTFERE LATHES
v Providing equal opportunity throughout the Group and —EE &
treating employees fairly; and
v ORESIEWRE -
v Providing fair remuneration.

EFRIERD
Customers and Suppliers vV MEFPREARE BUBECUMERME
v Providing efficient and courteous services with good value R 7%

of money to customers;
v R#ze2t RERASZESNERER

v" Offering products and services with high standard of % WAEBBREANMEEL:
safety, quality and reliability and accepting the social
responsibility for improvement; vV o ZRnHERRsERREREERAL
BIRE  RERBREFRERQ T QRN
v Promoting fair and open competition for procurement Kk
procedures through providing an environment of mutual
trust and impartiality to suppliers and contractors; and v B Iy LESTAE REBAEET
EFEENERFE-
v" Prohibiting bribery and corrupt practices and promoting
responsible and ethical business practices. FRXTZEEPHNEE BFPEEKRERLNE
HIEPREEEZENERE B2 FHIRA
Information about the major customers, the credit terms of FRZIGETHBRRME7 ~ 33 %49b)A °

customers and the Group’s management on new customers
and credit monitoring are set out in Notes 7, 33 and 49(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively in this annual
report.
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Community Involvement and Other Stakeholders

v Building and maintaining good relationships with the
communities and other stakeholders associated with our
operations;

V' Working with local authorities, governments, inter-
governmental and non-governmental bodies and other
relevant stakeholders to develop projects that benefit the
communities connected to our operations in a sustainable
manner;

V' Minimising the negative impacts of our operations on the
communities where we operate;

v Investing in charitable and educational contribution;

V' Supporting the community as a whole, especially those
communities in which our offices are based; and

v" Supporting and encouraging our employees for their
charitable and community involvements.

Further discussion on PYI’s environmental policies and
performance and the account of key relationships of PYI with its
stakeholders are contained in a separate report “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” (“ESG Report”), which can be
found in PYI's official website.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee (a board committee of PYI) include
general oversight of PYI's compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements of its business operations. Significant
non-compliance with laws and regulations, if any, will be
investigated by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and escalated to the board as necessary. During
the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group was
noted.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is affected by a number of risk factors, some of
which are likely to affect the performance of businesses
generally. Some risks are particular to the Group’s operations.

As stated in the Risk Management Framework of the Corporate
Governance Report, key risks facing the Group have been
identified, assessed and prioritised according to the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact on the
business of the Group. Moreover, risk management measures
are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable level. This
section sets out a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, based on our risks assessment
outcome. They are categorised under “Strategic Risks”,
“Operational Risks” and “Financial Risks” and are not set out in
priority order.

Risk categories Risk description

[ B2 38 5l | B 4 3k
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Risk change

during the

reporting
period *
BB A&, &
HA o Y B

Key mitigating measures

TEEBER

Strategic Risks
K BE B Bz

Concentrated investment
in Mainland China
REGEEF KA ER M

PYI's key operation and assets are
conducted and located in China.
Accordingly, the investment,
business performance, financial
position and future prospects of
PYIl may be adversely affected by
unfavourable changes in the
political, social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government.
RENFLEBRFEEEDR
hERBU RENKRE K2
KB - B ARR A R 2R AT = 0] A
EEFBEMEOL ' KR
T SR 1) 2 T 2 B A 9 &2
%

Establish mechanism to
assess and closely monitor
any changes in the political,
social, economic or tax
policies of the Chinese
government. Relevant
measures are also put in
place to deal with such
changes.

FE 37 H I DA BT i Ko = ) 82O
PEBNBR 8 &8
W RN E I WE £
BT HEBEOEELENZE
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Risk categories

[ B 38 5l

Risk description

| B 4 3k

Risk change
during the
reporting
period *
BEBRRE
LiIAR: VRS -

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Operational Risks
&iER

Environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations
RE RERZEXELR

As a substantial part of PYI's
operations are in China and are
related to ports development and
logistics businesses, we are
subject to various inspections,
examinations, inquiries and audits
by relevant PRC regulatory
authorities in accordance with
applicable PRC environmental,
health and safety (‘EHS”) laws and
regulations, in which the outcomes
form part of the conditions for
obtaining, maintaining or renewing
various licenses, certificates and
permits required for conducting
our businesses. As the PRC EHS
laws and regulations continue to
evolve, such changes may bring
additional compliance challenges
and costs to PYI’s businesses.
RERKE D HEBIHEF EM
BREOZEREYMRER B
AERERNERRE RBEALD
(TEHSD EZ B ZREX TR MK
BB BERMER EAE
F OREAEIRETHMANER
FMEMSEZR BEMTAE
R EE D R BEE S BEHS
ERERN TG ERE ZSHE
g RRESENEKTRE
SNE)E R B BRECAN R R ©

Group legal team has been
working closely with
operation units to assess the
impact of those promulgated
environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations.
SEMNEFEERELE R
RIEZmAE  FHEBEMER
R BEREEEEERD

B 488
FE o

Policies to minimise the
impacts from operations
have been formulated and
updated regularly by
reference to the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

Il 7 AR B8 R R LARL A B A
ERHFEWRE PR
ERETERER -

For more discussion, please see the “PYI
2020 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.
FELZama2ARREZCERW
(www.pyicorp.com) A 4] ZE #) [ 202038 357
HERERARE] -
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Risk change

during the

reporting
Risk categories Risk description period * Key mitigating measures

BB R 3R
2 B 3 B [ B 4 4k MR Re TEEHER
Environmental/safety Environmental or other accidents »  Appropriate operational
incidents happen at or around the operating 9 procedures and controls are
RE ZP2EH site may cause losses on put in place and all relevant

corporate assets, employees’
morale, customers’ confidence
and goodwill and may incur extra
costs to the Group.
REFEMELRSGHMITHE
MA R ER P ENEE BT
TR -BEFELNEHEMNEL.
NRSAREBBHERBEINIKA -

employees are provided with
relevant information, training
and supervision to reduce
and manage those incidents.
T 7 EENRIERE LT
B+ e B Eﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ BT
RETHEBEN HJIME
EUBERAOMERELEER
Eigeay

»  Reporting systems have
been developed and all our
operating units are required
to report promptly of any
significant environmental/
safety incidents.
RVUERBER - IBLER
ﬂ%ﬁmﬁﬁ&ﬁikkﬁ/
LEREW °

For more discussion, please see the “PYI
2020 ESG Report” available on PYI's
website at www.pyicorp.com.

S HmELERREZCERN
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Risk categories
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Risk description

| B 4 3k

Risk change
during the
reporting
period *
BEBRRE
LiIAR: VRS -

Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Pricing of goods/services
Em IR ER

PYl is exposed to the risks
associated with pricing of goods/
services resulting from factors
beyond PYI's control, such as
market fluctuation and price
control prescribed by governing
authorities. For example, PYI's
LPG and CNG retail businesses
are subject to a certain degree of
price control and competition
which limits PYI’s pricing flexibility.
R EE & B A E el A
EMEERER MRETEEH
MER TS EBRIEAEE
BAFEHOER - flm: RED
BRIELABMAREBRERARTEE
BEHZHT -—ERENERES
REedmBRel TREEEESE
SO e

©

»  Set up pricing system to
analyze product/service
prices and their costs.
BUEBRE  MESD/R
B R ERA -

»  Explore the advantages of
our products/services and
target customers in order to
explore other revenue
streams.
REREM/IREHEZFEZR
B BRI EMKAK
IR e
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Key mitigating measures

TERBER

Financial Risks
B 7% B B

Change of foreign
exchange rates

ExEt

As a substantial part of PYI's
assets and businesses are located
and conducted in China, the
fluctuation in the exchange rates
of RMB may adversely affect (i) the
value of PYI's investments and
monetary assets denominated in
RMB when they are converted into
Hong Kong dollar, and (i) the
repayment of RMB loans with
funds denominated in currencies
other than RMB.
RENKBHOEEHEPEH - £
BRREBDTMRPEET AR
M 3 )R E) AT e g BAR EE () A
ARBHENREMREBEEHE
BEAETKREHAEAREE S
BUNARBHAENEREEELT

MEE -

* e where risk remained broadly the same.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties are also set out in Notes
4, 5 and 49 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

»  Establish mechanism for
regularly reviews of the
balances of assets and
liabilities and the currencies
in which the transactions are
denominated so as to
minimise exposure to foreign
currency risk.
BUYTHRNEAERABELS
MM ZEME A HH -
BRBERDAEE ZINE
[ Bz

For more discussion, please see Note 49(b)
to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 242 to 245 of this annual report.
EZamAELRAERERENF242F
245 B 7 7 A MR M FE49(0)

- € mpERARER-

HTHERBRNTABEAZTIRAFERSE R
e MBEMROMES 5498 R -
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MR LAU TOM KO YUEN
ABREE

Chairman and Managing Director
FEFRAAE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 69, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is also a member of the
Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Share Repurchase Committee, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau has over 40 years of
international corporate development and management
experience in infrastructure developments as well as
construction and engineering services involving road, rail, port,
power, telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in
the Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as an executive
director in 1993 and was appointed as the Deputy Chairman in
1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company in 2005 and has been responsible for the Group’s
corporate development strategy, and overall performance. He
had been re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman
since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy chairman
and a non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings
Limited (0310.HK).
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K195 F L E A B EJF o 2% 4 712005 F &
ZERTRABIRE BEAEENTREFREKIU
NEEERIE - B2011F9A268# @ 2= /E
ETAIR -BALENASEREEBAERA
AIOS1I0OHK) 2 BIER RIFNITES -



MR SUE KA LOK
BREEE
Executive Director

HITEF

Mr Sue Ka Lok, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in April 2017. He is also a member of
the Company’s Nomination Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Sue has extensive experience
in corporate management, finance, accounting and company
secretarial practice. He holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree
from The University of Sydney in Australia and a Master of
Science in Finance Degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Mr Sue is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a certified practising accountant of the
CPA Australia, a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, and a chartered secretary, a corporate
governance professional and a fellow of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

Mr Sue is an executive director of PT International Development
Corporation Limited (0372.HK) (a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and
Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in
the Directors’ Report). Mr Sue is also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of China Strategic Holdings Limited
(0235.HK), an executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited
(0689.HK), a non-executive director and the chairman of
Courage Investment Group Limited (“Courage Investment”)
(1145.HK) and a non-executive director of Birmingham Sports
Holdings Limited (2309.HK). The shares of Courage Investment
are also listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.
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MS WU YAN YEE
R &zt
Executive Director
HITEFE

Ms Wu Yan Yee, aged 29, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in May 2017. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Wu holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance Degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and holds the Chartered Financial Analyst
designation. Ms Wu had worked for an international accounting
firm and a reputable asset management company and has
experience in auditing, accounting, direct investment and asset
management.
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MR CHAN SHU KIN

PRAGTER B4

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIFBMITEE

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in September 2004. He
is also the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee. Mr Chan has over 43 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management
services. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, as well as an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of GTI Holdings Limited (3344.HK).
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MS WONG LAI KIN, ELSA
EBR Lt

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIFBMITEE

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2012. She is also a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
and Compliance Committee. Ms Wong holds a Bachelor’s
Degree and a Master’s Degree in Law from The University of
Hong Kong, a Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a Master’s Degree in
Social Sciences in Psychology (Schools and Community
Settings) from The Education University of Hong Kong. She is a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme
Court of England and Wales and holds the Chartered Financial
Analyst designation. Ms Wong has over 30 years of experience
in the legal profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed companies
(including the Company during the periods from February 1995
to January 2000 and from May 2003 to December 2007). Ms
Wong is currently employed as Vice President — Legal of
Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited. She is also an
independent non-executive director of Prosperity Investment
Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
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MR LEUNG CHUNG KI
RMETE

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIFBMITEE

Mr Leung Chung Ki, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in June
2018. He is also a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee. Mr Leung
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the De Paul University in the
United States of America. Mr Leung has over 20 years of
experience in banking industry. He is also an independent
non-executive director of China Dili Group (1387.HK).
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MS YANG YAN

BEZL

Chief Representative — China
FHERERFEREAKX— P E

Ms Yang Yan, aged 52, joined the Group in 2003. She
is the Chief Representative of the Company in China and
is responsible for originating and monitoring the
performance of the Group’s investments in the Mainland,
and holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience in
corporate development and general administration and
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
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LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MS HO SZE NGA, MAGGIE

Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM

Group Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH

Group Treasurer

INVESTMENT

MR ZHU YONG MING

Investment Director, China

INTERNAL CONTROL

MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN

Group Senior Manager — Internal Control &
Risk Management & Corporate Compliance
INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG

Group Internal Audit Senior Manager
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MR WANG JIN JUN

Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR CHEN BAO Xl

General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN

Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WEI WEN KUI

Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR LI YONG

Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

MR CHEN KAl

Deputy Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR HUANG JIN HUA

Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY!1 Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders
of PYI and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2019
annual report which can be viewed on PYI’s website
(www.pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for the deviation
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, PY! continued to
comply with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, the Managing Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PYI
(“Chairman’”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and
CEOQO with effect from 26 September 2011.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board” or the “Board of
Directors”) believes that it is appropriate and in the interests of
PYI for Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen to take up both roles at the
present stage as it helps to ensure consistent leadership within
the Group and enable more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board also believes that
the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement
will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current
Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals
with not less than half the number thereof being independent
non-executive directors.
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In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to high
standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a Board
Diversity Policy, a summary of which is set out at page 54 of
this report, in June 2013.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI
directors as well as relevant employees of PYI. After having
made specific enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of
PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2020.

Since the launch of the Code of Conduct of PYI (the “Conduct
Code”) in October 2009, all PYI directors, senior management
and staff have been under specific obligations to comply with
the ethics and principles under which our business is conducted
and have been allowed to report actual or potential violations of
the Conduct Code through stated procedure. Non-compliance
with the Conduct Code will result in disciplinary action. During
the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with the
Conduct Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERLEE
The structure below shows the key parties involved in our UTERBERAEE ZCEEARTFRELBER
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group: SNy ETEAE
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYI is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders’ Communication Policy setting out
various channels of communication with shareholders and
investor community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for
PYI shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, PYI held three general
meetings. Voting on resolutions put forward at the general
meetings has been taken by way of poll and poll results have
been published and posted on the websites of PYl and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). All resolutions
put to shareholders were passed at the said general meetings.
The resolutions and the percentage of votes cast in favour of
the resolutions are set out below:
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PYI'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
RBE2020F3ANBLFERTHRERRAS

Special General Meeting on 26 June 2019 % of Votes Cast For
M2019F6 26 E R THR R XS ERREMLR
v Approval of the agreement in respect of disposal of 51% equity interest in 99.40%

Yichang Port Group Limited
HWEFRLEEEREBEEEREE LD AISI%KREZBZH

Annual General Meeting on 5 September 2019 % of Votes Cast For

M2019F9 A5 HETHRRBFAE ERREHHEER

v~ Approval of the 2019 audited accounts 99.94%
BB2019F EHREZIRA

v Re-election of Mr Sue Ka Lok as director 99.80%
EEHRLLERES

+ Re-election of Ms Wu Yan Yee as director 99.94%

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 per 99.94%

annum for all directors
BBARTEREFHETHBEF4000000ETHESHES

v~ Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to the Board 99.94%
to fix their remuneration

BEZIRY  -HERITEAMTAZEMAERETRECENS

v~ Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to issue shares 95.56%
BTEEFETROBN R REGERE

v Grant of general and unconditional mandate to directors to repurchase shares 99.93%
BTEFRERGH— R REGRERE

+ Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 95.56%

BARTESFHITRND ZED

Special General Meeting on 5 February 2020 % of Votes Cast For
R2020F2 A5 HBITHRRE XS BEREHMOLE
v Approval of the agreement in respect of disposal of 90% equity interest in 100%

Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited
Bt&E B B & 52 B A B BR SR R AG TS SR A BR R B190% AR 1 2 15 &
v Approval of the agreement in respect of disposal of 100% equity interest in 100%
Paul Y. Corporation Limited
HEBHAHERESEFR R F100% M 2 =
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Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PY! also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual) so as to provide extensive information
on the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies
and developments to enable them to make informed decision
on matters relating to their investment and exercise of their
rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available
on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) and HKEx's website.

Our website is an effective means of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through our website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 74 to 76 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI’s bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI's shareholders are entitled
to attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general
meetings. PYI’s shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general
meetings have the right to require a special general meeting to
be convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI’s shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated to the
Managing Director the day-to-day leadership and management
of the Group. The senior management of the Group, on the
other hand, is responsible for the management and
administrative functions and the day-to-day operations of the
Group under the supervision of the Managing Director. The
corporate governance structure of PY| as disclosed in this
report at page 47 shows the detailed relationship between the
Board, the Managing Director and the senior management as
well as other stakeholders.
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Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for UTREEREEFTBENHE -
the Board:

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
EEREEERNAE

v~ Financial reporting and control
B aRE R BT

v~ EqQuity fund raising
BRERE

v~ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions
BEREMDIRNER TSI

v Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance
(ETREDAAB AT RHBMEAER 5 M(EH L E R ENAEHR

v~ Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group
EARBHFIAEEEARAEENHME NS

Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated EERYSAUERRNER
Financial Statements AR ES A R E
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the WHERERAEAEBGAVMERERBIZBAETE
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring ERME ERER] -

that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of

the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and RABINEZEMRAEEEE T BRRER
applicable standards. EHRERRETHNER IR AFHRESE

103E B ZHMBEEA -
The statement of the external auditor of the Company
concerning its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated EERAMK
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent g N N NN
Auditor’s Report on pages 95 top1 03 of this annual re port REBRHHEEEH  EAR R
porton pag port B RECRRIEER BN

EZ-BUFNTEETHEERKMBE T IRF

Board Composition BN RB A BT TR WS T N

As at the date of the Directors’ Report, there are 6 directors in BT o 2NN R B FEFNITE FRE E& Ak B
our Board consisting of 3 executive directors and 3 independent MAANDERNBEEZEER I HEHED
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors HEEREER-

represented not less than half of the Board members, thus
exhibiting a strong independent element which enhanced
independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
=R

(as at the date of the Directors’ Report RAEEFHE = A H)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHTES -+

Mr Chan Shu Kin BR 15 B2 %t 4=
Ms Wong LaiKin, Elsa &= & B & +
Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 12 £ 5 4

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board.

There was no change of directors and Board committee
members during the year ended 31 March 2020. Brief
biographical details of each director (including his/her age,
gender, term of office, professional qualification and experience)
are set out on pages 36 to 41 of this annual report and also
available on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com).

PYI has also maintained on its website and HKEx’s website an
updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such
in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to inform
PY! as soon as practicable if there is any change in his or her
own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

3 ’M‘A*ﬁﬂ:

3 Executlve Directors

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2| & & 4t 4

(Chairman & Managing Director ¥ & 3% #2 %)
Mr Sue Ka Lok & 5 44 4t &

Ms Wu Yan Yee 8 fik & %2 &

E=EREKNEZHLE(BEME 2% ik
S EMBER HERR) EE

BEELEEREZEEKNENEE20206F3 A 31
ALtFEHRBTLSEEES BUESFHNEEF
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HAARAFROEE4AE - UL AR REH L
(www.pyicorp.com) A 32| & o
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All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PY| and its associated corporations, if
any, during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI's
directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of PY!
and its associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’
Report on pages 85 and 86 of this annual report.

Board Diversity Policy

As mentioned above, a Board Diversity Policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board was adopted in
June 2013. Under the policy:

(@ the Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level
as an essential element in achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company;

(b)  the Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying and selecting suitable individuals to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to the Board; and

(c) selection of candidates for directorship with the Company
will be based on diversity of perspectives which can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional and
industrial experience, skills, knowledge and independence
(if applicable).

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the policy and review the policy, where necessary, to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

RERN FMBEEZERKEZTET(EFLYERK
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EZTILRRIATEREERKEZ TiLZ
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) setting out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination
to (i) the Board for appointment and (i) shareholders of the
Company for election as a director of the Company.

Under the Nomination Policy, the factors listed below will be
considered in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@ Qualifications, professional experience, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries;

(b)  Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

(c) Regulatory requirements for appointment of independent
non-executive directors and the independence criteria set
out in Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules; and

(d) Diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The above factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee has the discretion to take into
account additional factors as it considers appropriate.

For filling a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations
for the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation.

On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee may
submit to the Board for consideration a proposal comprising,
inter alia, the personal profile of the proposed candidate, which
contains at least the candidate’s information required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules.

The Board shall be vested with power to make the final decision
on all matters relating to the recommendation of candidates (j)
for appointment and (i) for standing for election at a general
meeting as a director of the Company.
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Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in
steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year is
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 6 Board meetings were held and the overall attendance of
Board meetings attained 97% while 100% attendance was
recorded for Board committee meetings.

The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the request for
seeking such advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.
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Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at least
once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any new
directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject to
re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following general
meeting after their appointment.

All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.

In the 2019 AGM, Mr Sue Ka Lok and Ms Wu Yan Yee, who
retired from office in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws,
were re-elected as directors of PYI.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Leung Chung Ki will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The retiring directors, being eligible, seek for re-election and
their respective biographies are set out in the circular for
re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PY!
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PY! of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Conduct Code, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that it is
effective to enhance corporate governance through regular
training within the Group. Apart from reading monthly
management updates, directors are encouraged to keep up to
date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings
and seminars at the expense of PYI on an ongoing and regular
basis.

This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY! operates businesses and
applicable guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities
and attended seminars organised by professional bodies and/or
had been provided with materials of such seminars. Our
Hangzhou training centre is responsible for organising regular
internal training for management of the Group. In addition to
regular attendance at Board and Board committees meetings,
directors including independent non-executive directors have
participated in field trip to Wuhan in December 2019.

All directors and senior management are required to provide
PY!1 with their training records on an annual basis, and such
records are maintained by the Company Secretary for regular
review by the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. The training records of the directors and senior
management for this year were reviewed by the Committee in
June 2020.
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According to the records, PY! directors received the following

training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in compliance with Code Provision

A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors

E=x

Independent Non-Executive Directors

DT s

REBELE REESFRAFECEX MELESE
LT RAEZAG BERETZHEI - AT
B(RESTRDZ TFAEX EABLIRZARTE

Type of Training
3% 3 B

Attending internal and
external seminars or
conferences

H FE A 3B & Sh 3B
mMAEeRNER

Reading
materials

5O =5 A1 B

BIYKHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin BR f8f 82 % & v v

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & i B2 & + v v

Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 #2 £ 5t 4 4 v

Executive Directors

BITESE

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2/ & R 7%t 4 v v

Mr Sue Ka Lok % 5% £ 5 4 v v

Ms Wu Yan Yee #f ik &5 22 = v v
Board Committees EEREZEY

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PYI's website (www.
pyicorp.com). A majority of members of all Board committees
are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including
independent board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve
projects as it deems necessary.
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All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board
and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

MEESERZBEERMAMLLBEZRER
MRA - BFMLH YERHERERIAE
T EREMMESTRIED

EXRERHEERBIFT

TEBRE-BEERZE
5% BRFEFEREER

BR 1 T~ BE 1F i PE 4 -

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

REZ2020F3A31A L FEBTHNEE 2 HETH

BOARD COMMITTEES
EERZEEE
Corporate
Governance
and
Compliance Share
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination TEEAR Repurchase Shareholders
ESR  EX # B 2% ER 1 19 5 R
Number of meetings held during the year
RERBTEERE 6 4 3 1 2 0 3
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [ 18 B2 5 4 6/6 4/4 3/3 11 2/2 0/0 3/3
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa % & 8 & + 6/6 4/4 — 11 2/2 — 3/3
Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 ¥ £ 5t & 6/6 4/4 3/3 11 2/2 — 2/3
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2l & 8 % & 6/6 — 3/3 11 — 0/0 3/3
Mr Sue Ka Lok #k 3R % 5t 4 5/6 — — 11 — — 0/3
Ms Wu Yan Yee & ik & 22 & 6/6 — — - — - 1/3
Company Secretary
REWE
Mr Chan Kai Ki [ 1% 5 5¢ 4
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2020
B 20204 4 F 22 A #E BF T) 6/6 4/4 3/3 11 2/2 — 3/3
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S EEAEE
The following tables show the composition of the Board AR PR R E E2020F3 A31 8 I F [Z 8
committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary HMEERZEemdK EACEBE AT

and/or report of the works performed by them during the year ERE R/ HRE
ended 31 March 2020:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FM=Ee

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors + 1 Executive Director
A R BYFHTES HITESE
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 45 B % 4 (Chairman & /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2|5 R %t 4

Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 #A £t 56 4

Role & Function*  Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company
A6 e AT AN 2 7 8 BB B R
v~ Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing a policy on such remuneration
HAEEFEHSREEBNFMEERAER URAFEZEFMEER L —EERM
BEERENRERF RMEFRIELES
v~ Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment
AESMESREZENRTESTRAREEENFESTMNES  BEEYHZE  BK
CRAKFEECH(BRANELAIREEBRBAEZEMENNEMNFHES)
v~ Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

MEEBREZIFNITES O

Summary of v Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2019 AGM
work performed EEREEMSATE  HIRRAE2019FRRAF RS EHE
ITHERE v Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior

Management for the year ended 31 March 2020
ZREMENREE2020F3A3NHLFEEARBERSREREN T ZARIER

v~ Considered and approved the grant of discretionary additional incentive bonus
ZREMAERDBRIERINABEA

v~ Reviewed the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior Management for the year
ended 31 March 2020
BRABHEEESRERBNEE2020F3A31 B ILFENHHTE

v Approved the granting of discretionary year-end bonus to Managing Director

HeJfE TR AR AR BB AR TEAL

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

O BBE—SEE BB L H R E S (www.pyicorp.com) 2 BT E B & R E -

*



Py1 C) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

g MhAﬁﬂ:

Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, duties and responsibilities of a director, employment
conditions elsewhere and time committed by the director
concerned.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v toattract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v 1o support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v~ toalign employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

v’ equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in
light of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence
on the Group’s performance and share price.

PYI effectively deploys an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme and share financing plan as well as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZRg

Composition

21

Independent Non-Executive Directors + 2 Executive Directors
BYFHITES PITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin B 151 B2 5 & (Chairman =% /%) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2| = R %t 4
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &= B B 4 £+ Mr Sue Ka Lok %k 3R %2 5t &

Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 #A = 5 4

Role & Function* " Reviews the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
A educational background, ethnicity, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes
ZLOGFERIEEFRNER - A%z&;mu BEETRAMLR - F& - XERBEE
Bk EXRITREHIKLR Kk ‘fu;&&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ) Wt A RIEZE B MES
PiREES
v Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships
MEAECERNEGBAEETESZRNE R EXNEEZRREEZEEATHE
B
v Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors
B IERITESNE L
v Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
the Managing Director
REFLZEXEFZE UREF(HMERTIRFREAFEITINEERRELHESR
v Develops, reviews and recommends to the Board for adoption of measurable objectives for
achieving and improving diversity on the Board
REBRBUEESFRKEZ T  HIF] BRI REBAEHEERETEETRHEE LKA
+ Develops and reviews the policy, criteria and procedures for identification, selection and
nomination of candidates for appointment as directors
ST R e S2ERERGREANBEEEREET 2WE £HRERF
v" Monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy (a summary of which is set out on page 54)
EREERKEZTEER (ERBEHIINESMMER)HATIER
v Monitors the implementation of the Nomination Policy (a summary of which is set out on page 55)
ERREARR(HBEHIINESSE) WHITIER
Summary of v Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2019 AGM
work performed REBRTEEE0190FRRBFAG LERE(T
THERE v Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
ER R RBUFRATESRR(ETMRADEIIBGAR R FEE LEER K
v Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
MU EZRHEE  ABKAEK
+ Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
R EERKE Z T BUR
v Discussed and considered the recommended disclosure in 2019 Corporate Governance Report

*

regarding the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy
AR ERBEHE2019FE 2 (EERRE) T HHEAREEERKEZTIEBER RIERRK
RHEZBEREAND

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

Y BRE TS T L H R E Bk (www.pyicorp.com) 2 IR B E B S BEEE -
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESSAND R &ZREF BREUKRZER

CRITERIA

Nomination Committee
selects or makes

Nomination Committee Nomination Committee recommendations to the The Board makes formal
makes recommendations identifies individuals Board on the selection of invitation to selected
to the Board on any suitably qualified to persons nominated for persons for appointment to
proposed changes become directors directorships the Board
| > >

k%é,\aﬁyﬂfﬂkﬂ’ﬁ REZEEWEEES REZESHREIME EEZRMEKEA T

2ERNEEFRRLER HERATHEES ERREERKERH HEEESENENBF

ATHEES BK|

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
CREARERERS

Composition

AR

Independent Non-Executive Directors + Company Secretary
BYFHTES RRANE

Mr Chan Shu Kin & 45 B 4 4 (Chairman = /&) Mr Chan Kai Ki F& £ 8 %% &£

Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa & B 8 22 & (resigned with effect from 22 April 2020
Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 /A £ % 4 B 202044 F 22 A # E ()

Ms Ho Sze Nga, Maggie fa] 55 7 & £
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2020
20204522 HEEZ )

Role & Function*
AGHERBRE

Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board

FIERBIARFNCEECHERTHR  TAEFRBREESR

Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and
Senior Management

BRAKERETHEGAETEENSTIRGESXER

Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and meets with the management of the Company to assess the Company’s
compliance policies, programs and procedures
BARERARAEETEZEREERATCHENRRELER THARANEERERT
& UAEARFHNEREBE TRERRERF

Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors of the Company

BIE el EREREHEANRAREERESZNEMITIRALENRERAFMWME)
Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or potential
compliance violations that are repor‘fed to the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
AERLRFAEMEEERNERZEGERNEMNERERNEEERS

Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
BAARRBEFCETRADAZKEEFADHBERREE(EEERRE)NNKE
Reviews the Company’s compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as contained in the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report

BAARREF(ETRIDAZCGRE g REAWMEEIDNERAREHANCRE
HERERBEINNEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

TEEARERZES (H)

Summary of v Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

work performed EHHE2019F3A31HIEFE Z(BEERARE)

IHERE Reviewed the updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries

EHARAREPBREIZMNBEARNENTRERRS

Reviewed the report on recommendation of disclosure in the Directors’ Report (Business Review)

ENEHEBEEZRBEEEBKER)AMEREZRE

Reviewed the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training provided by each director

in compliance with the CG Code

EHRESFRHCEFT2EFIICERRE - LWEF(RESFAD

Reviewed the policy on disclosure and public relations

WAt BB R A HBEERBUR

v Reviewed the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2019
FEHHZE2019F3ANBLEFREZ(RE L@ REBRE)

v Reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy

o & P SR AR R

*  Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) for
further details.
 BREE—SHE FRE LERNRER www.pyicorp.com Z TEERARARTE B ERE -

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE
BHEEEES

SR NN

by

Composition Independent Non-Executive Director + 1 Executlve Director
# R BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B #&f EX % 4 (Chairman ¥ &) Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2| & & 5t 4
Role & Function* y Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
AGHERBEE in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
BREBECETHRAD)  REATDABUNARBREFRAZE TERRETESFROBRER
D2 N
Summary of " During the year, no Share Repurohase Committee meeting was held.
work performed REA TEERROHEBEZEEEE -
THERE

*

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI's website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.

* BRE—LHE BRE FHNRE A (www.pyicorp.com) 2 BH EEE S SRS E o
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
BERERE

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors

A R BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin* B 5} B2 5t 4 * (Chairman == /&)
Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa &= B B 2 £+
Mr Leung Chung Ki 22 #A = 58 4

Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services.

# REBRAEERBS—BRAESHE ARY SRV BERRE I EEALEESR -

Role & Function*  Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor
A HEEINEZBMRAESRHRLES
v~ Reviews the Group’s financial information
EHREBEMBER
v~ Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
EEAREBEMBERGE REREERANIERZE RS
v Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to submission to the Board for approval
ERREFRA A ERAEERBNRAEE
v~ Reviews financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s external and internal auditors
é%ﬁﬁ ﬁ?f?r*[i&tu NESEEIE = H - WAl At B /i A IR AR A R JMNIE A% BRAD & A Sp | 5T
M ER 15 B B

Report on work  Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated

performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
ITE®RSE ERAEERCERNTHRGEUBRRILCERNFEGEVBRER YREEFH
Bk

+ Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
EHAEE AR EZE R EREIRER
v~ Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group
ERRENASEMETHENAMEZE AREERADES TENERRE
v~ Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
BHENEZEM R EZAEBEZ2019F3A3 AL FELREVBREMBZNZHE
v~ Approved the engagement and the review fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the
review of the Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2019
HEZFEIIEZHBMRERENARNEBEZ2019F9A30H 1L /<8 A 2 &8R4S B % i
RITEZENEHNE
v Reviewed connected transactions of the Group
FHAEB 2 BERS
v Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor
at 2019 AGM
BER019FRRBFEFAG LEHNETEEH e MERST STMITRAKEEINEZBAD
v Met with external auditor in the absence of executive directors of the Company

EREARRRHATESTHESNBRT & RIMNS KA

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI’s website (www.pyicorp.com) for further details.
* BBE— PRS- ERE E RN R E U (www.pyicorp.com) 2 BiZE B S B E o

*
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board considers that sound risk management and internal
control systems are vital to the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives and acknowledges its responsibility to
establish, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis.

Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to achieve the following business
objectives:

v~ Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v~ Reliability of financial reporting and non-financial reporting
v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aim to
provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has ongoing responsibilities to review the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to report to the Board at least annually.

S 'M\Aﬁi

BEEERERANBEE

Bt

EERRA HE2NRAKREEMANBLELERS
HERASENERESZWUEEZ  THR
EREZTRANRE #ERBIEARM
BT -

EEERAR ERAFEEEASENOA
REEMAMEERG NEHTARBKEIZ:

v BUANERERHEE
v A= BB TS & JE B 7% B =R
v EBFEBEEREARA
ZERFEEEEMIIEEREBREETETR
BEENREE At ZEZ2GHBERERLE
BERH - EASEMIERENRE
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The table below shows the roles and responsibilities of the key TEERBTIETEABERMORRE R AL
parties in our risk management and internal control systems: ERGAFREENACREE

Board of Directors

BEER

v~ Sets strategic objectives v Evaluates and determines the v~ Provides direction on the
4| BLRS B A2 nature and extent for the Group’s importance of risk management

v Oversees management in the principal risks and risk management culture
design, implementation and HEAEE/NEZRER KA EH FRBEESEZMEMERE IR
monitoring of the risk HUEBMEEZ X AL R H T M)
management and internal control
systems

EEETREEYRREE RN
ERERORT BERMER

Managing Director & Senior Management Audit Committee

BEREBREERE ERERS

v~ Assesses risks group-wide and develops v Reviews the effectiveness of risk management and
mitigating measures internal control systems of the Group
5 B g A AT R B R0 E R B AR AR BIEBERREEMAITEZE RSN B XM
i)

v~ Designs, implements and monitors the risk
management and internal control systems Internal Audit
B ERNEEEABRTEMABSERR P &8 2 &t

v Provides confirmation on the effectiveness of risk v~ Supports the Audit Committee in reviewing the
management and internal control systems to the effectiveness of risk management and internal
Board of Directors / Audit Committee control systems
HEBEBNABEEZFNBERIEMES XERERZESHRREEBMAMBEZRR
B/ EREEERMBRE 2B B R E

Operation Management
EEEERE

v~ Implements and monitors the risk management and internal control procedures across the business operations and
functional areas of the Group
EMkEEREEEREBSENRENMNRREBRMANEZERT
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Risk Management Framework [ B o EE AE 2R
The diagram below shows the risk management framework TEERAEEMREMANREESIEESLR
adopted by the Group:
F
Strategy KB

Risks are considered

Vision when setting strategy.
Statement
S =
= £ I 7E 5% BE B
ZREERAE -

—
Process B2

Identify

% Al
Process applies standard
procedures, assessment tools
Risk A”f%’?ze and market practices.
Management 2
Process

ERERRRE

B2 T IR R -
54 77 5k T 0% o

Monitor Respond

B ;3

Elements JT&

Oraanizati Human D Elements that are brought
rganization R — Communlga_tlons ¢ ther t t "
Structures e NV, and Training ogetner 1o support, promote

HERE A h A E BRI and drive risk management
throughout the Group.

PE B S5 (RAEM BB EAE

Performance Management £ @ o s
Measure Commitment FEEUEEE SEEREEMBHOILE -

BARER B E A

R
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g MhAﬁﬂ:

Risk assessment is performed annually to evaluate the nature
and extent of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk
assessment process, the Group has identified its principal and
significant risks. The Business Review section of this annual
report provides description of the Group’s principal risks and
uncertainties, some of which could affect the performance of
the Group’s business and operations. Moreover, risk
management measures are in place to manage the risks to an
acceptable level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular training is
provided to our management to strengthen their awareness of
risk and capability to manage risks.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group’s systems of internal control were developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 2013
and the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Operating subsidiaries in PRC are required to perform control
self-assessments annually to assess the effectiveness of their
systems of internal control. The control self-assessment
performed is in the form of a questionnaire that sets out key
factors in each of the five components of the COSO Internal
Control Integrated Framework. These five interrelated
components are Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and
Monitoring.

During the year, the Internal Control, Legal and Finance &
Accounts Departments of PY| have carried out reviews on
operational, financial and compliance controls of all operating
subsidiaries to ensure that their compliance with the Group’s
risk management and internal control policies and procedures
and the accuracy of relevant reports submitted to the Group.

AEBESFETRRBTGEAREHMEYRR
MEEERRE - ERBIHBRESP  AEEBE
NETEAHNEIEREARR AFERSE
NEEBERITORHETAEENETERAR
MABABAE =AY FE - R — Lk @ R A1 T B B4
AR evEASEEBNEENER B
AREHERBRERRBEAEFRRBREITER
MEEA -

HEERZENLCERE BT HBRMANE
BEFIIHMELRARMEERS A2 AEH
e E R M AEAEI - AR R R B
MEZERBREOEES -

ElEEERABEZRFNR
7% £ 8 ) 7 ¥ B 4 R 4 2 2 % 5 B Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) A 20134 #7 &4 2 1A 20 BS 1 47
SRERERBEGTMAE B2 A ELE 2 EE
e EIR S|P E R ©

ERNPEZEXRBNMBARASFETARN
EZEBRAE U EASABETRFHN
- AHEZERTBRUABELAET H
5| HCOSON MEELA A ERM A E TR
WEEW@OEEMEWW@WE%B%%%
BEIRIR - R ERES ERERER N
REER -

FAR - REZAMEE ZENMMBEREHEF
MEACHMAECDEBEZHBRRETEE ¥
BRhaREZEZRY UBRETEAEERA
BREELABEEORRREF  UREARER
M)A B s R RN o
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Every year, the Internal Audit Department of PYI carries out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control according to
the approved three-year internal audit plan for the Group. This
audit plan adopts a risk-based approach and is re-assessed
annually to ensure that adequate audit resources are deployed
to achieve the objectives of the internal audit plan.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plans to
address the gaps and weaknesses identified during control
self-assessments, internal control reviews and internal audits.
The PYI head office conducts periodic follow-up reviews to
ensure that the remedial actions are taken on a timely basis,
and has reported the results of the follow-up reviews to the
Audit Committee.

The Board has assessed the scope and quality of the Group’s
ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. Based on the results of the control self-assessments
performed by operating subsidiaries, the reviews performed by
the Internal Control, Legal and Finance & Accounts Departments
and the independent audits performed by the Internal Audit
Department, the Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems effective and adequate. The Board was
not aware of any significant areas of concerns that may affect
the Group to achieve its strategic goals.

In addition, the Board has, through the Audit Committee,
reviewed annually the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Procedures and Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Proper measures have been taken by the Group to comply with
the requirements under “Part XIVA — Disclosure of Inside
Information” of the Securities and Futures Ordinance to ensure
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information has been properly approved, and
disseminate in an effective and consistent manner. Such
measures include establishment of the inside information
identification, reporting, and disclosure protocol and
procedures.

S 'M\Aﬁi

BE REZANBABAZCERAN=F1
SEARBEFFE HAKERREERAS
SRR A M LB RE - EEER A
FENRREBASERLEFENFLR:
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EZRCHEEREERRARNEENEEE
THE - ERELEXHBNNBARETHOR
MEE B RAE ABEE ERMUBEEE
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important role
in the internal governance of the Group. With the assistance
from external internal audit consultant whenever necessary, the
Internal Audit Department is primarily responsible for conducting
audit on the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk
management and internal control periodically.

The Internal Audit Department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required
in performing internal audit review. Moreover, the department
comprises well qualified and capable staff and is provided with
adequate resources to perform its duties.

Since 2008, internal audit assignments have been directed by
an internal audit strategic plan approved by the Audit
Committee. This strategic plan is developed by adopting
risk-based approach for every three years and reviewed
annually. In addition, ad hoc internal audit assignments will be
performed on request by the management or assigned by the
Audit Committee. In the past twelve years, the Internal Audit
Department has executed four three-year internal audit strategic
plans.

During the process of audits, the Internal Audit Department
identified internal control weakness, made recommendations for
improvement, obtained remedial action plan of management
and followed up remedial status of the management action plan
and its timeliness. Besides, in order to ensure the continuity of
the ISO9001 certification for the Group’s corporate support
centre in Hangzhou that provides in-house legal, internal audit,
financial (including accounting data backup) and in-house
training services to the Group’s business units, the Internal
Audit Department has performed internal audit review for the
corporate support centre in compliance with the ISO9001
certification requirements.

R EB A

2007 F11 AR MR E R B E R 8P b A &
EABEASAKLETE TEERAREER
ZEQER ABBAMBPIRAEERLER
#*Ex%@*lﬂﬁ%%%&%%mﬁﬂﬁ
AEEOBH T T2EEEAEEARE R
RABEERR Mﬁﬁ& %¢ﬁ§ﬁ°

NEEFHBABINEEETE BRTE2EE
%%ﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁméﬂ THeEFERR
ENMBETHER BRMWEREBITERME -

H2008F#  AEE TIEFRERZE ML

JHEE A R ET BURS T BIPT R 5l - A& AT 8 A A R
RERARA B=FRE - UEFEHF

R BERTEEEME R ABKRZ
BEMERNBREANBET T - EBET =
Frh AMEFHBACKERTTOEA=FARB
BETEIBKETE -
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oRENEEE DNSHEEEANTNRE
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as
the Company’s external auditor at 2019 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 24 June 2020 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2020 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.

3 ’M‘A*ﬁﬂ:

S B8 B BUEm

EHeMEMR S FMIT([EE]) B RN2019F
BREAFAS LESHEZTAARAINEZE
f-EIT—EREBEFASHERAIL B
ZE 20206 A248 2 @3 & 12020
FRRBAFASLEFZTEZHARRFINE
R MEERABZZEEZER —H-

RTRF[BEBINE BHTZEERAEELR
EMBHRRERZBRE UARTEEEES
VHESEBRE UYRBEZZE SR ENIEX
R

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENRENTFESNRBRFLBREHE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Services Rendered 12 4 09 AR 75 FER FAET

Audit services Z B R 5 2,876 3,185

Non-audit services FEZ H AR

Review of interim condensed consolidated EX P EHERAERE

financial statements B 7 3 3k 1,278 1,235

Taxation advisory IS8R 89 83

Special engagements HEZE 4,615 12

Total RG] 8,858 4515

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws (in
both English and Chinese) are available on the websites of PYI
(www.pyicorp.com) and HKEX.

No amendments have been made to the bye-laws of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MBERXH

ARARZHEBER KM R D A4 E (F E SR
) b # P R EE (www.pyicorp.com) & F 7B X 5 P
2 #uh o

AE E2020F3 831 B IEFEEHE AA AW
REAEET R AR -
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PYlI AND SHAREHOLDERS
REEERIR R

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders EERNNIBRF/BEERARTEE  WWHH
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide EIRMHERREEZER -
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND RERE
The Board has resolved not to recommend payment of a final EEZREFEATEA RN EH £2020F3 A31H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020. HFEZRBES -
FINANCIAL CALENDAR Bt %% A &
Event Date
Ei1g H &
2019 final results announced 21/06/2019
FMH2019F REI £ &
2019 PYI AGM 05/09/2019
2019RERFRBFRE
2020 interim results announced 22/11/2019
T 2020F R BRI ¥ 4E
2020 final results announced 26/06/2020
B 2020F KB4
2020 PYI AGM 04/09/2020

2020RERRBAFKE
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SHAREHOLDERS B’ E
Shareholdings as recorded in PYI’s register of members as at M2020F3A31H  EE A RERFTEZM 2K
31 March 2020 are as follows: HEREMT

Approximate

Approximate

% of % of issued
No. of shareholders share capital
Size of registered shareholdings shareholders {EREBE No.ofshares {HERITRA
BTRRERE BRREE 2N B i =] 2N B DL
500 or below siIAT 341 59.51% 43,646 0.00%
501 - 1,000 34 5.93% 25,355 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 108 18.85% 371,015 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 59 10.30% 2,099,127 0.04%
100,001 - 1,000,000 20 3.49% 5,695,560 0.10%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 8 1.40% 20,302,552 0.37%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 1 0.17% 11,259,933 0.20%
Above 100,000,000 B+ 2" 0.35% 5,479,783,384 99.28%
Total #&t+ 573 100.00%  5,519,580,572 100.00%
*  The two shareholders were: ZMAARR 9 R A
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited BEARREE(REA)BRAF
Clearing Participants/ rEsmE/

Custodian Participants AEmLEE 4,439,404,088 80.43%
Investor Participants "EEPOFEA 42,708,321 0.77%
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EBhEPREE

Company Limited BRAA] 576 0.00%

4,482,112,985" 81.20%

2 Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 18.03%
5,477,152,054 99.23%

A The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees A BEEPALE(REBA)BR ARG NIRELHEY

Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Shareholding
Search Report (the “CCASS Report”) available on the website of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The number of shares registered
in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the CCASS Report is different
from that shown on PYI’s register of members because some shares
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been
re-registered.

ARBAAREEMARSMAR R BABUIG
ZHFRBEEABRHRLCBEABRR(PREES
BKR]) P REEFRBRATABEDREE
(REANBRATDAREECLZROEBE BRER
RAMAREAZR &HENCCASSE #17 E &
S Bl 17 ACCASS#E # 17 E iz 2 # 00 B tn i R &
mER-
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

& #
i =y

IRERRMDA1993E9A21 H B IR E T BB A A

on 21 September 1993. e
Stock Code B& 13 4K 5%
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 BB 498
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW A m@EBRA PYW
Board lot 2,000 shares ~ BEZE & (HF) 2,000 %
Securities In Issue BERTES
Shares R 17
As at 31 March 2020 5,619,5680,572 shares 20203 A31H 5,519,580,572 %
As at 26 June 2020 5,519,580,572 shares 202056 A26 H 5,519,580,572 fi%
HKS$ 1.0
BT
0.8
06 = Share price (cum dividend)*
04 A&(E (R
= Share price (ex dividend)
02 |- SE(QESY)
0.0
(o) (o)) (&) (o)) (o)) (o) (o)) (&) (o)) o o o
2 = - - - - — — — N N N
& § § & §&§ & §&§ & & § § 8
) 38 8 S 8 3 2 pa & 5 8 8
* Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993

* BRECER)REZBREBE) REBRERNEZTE LT Z A (1993F9A21 H) MK Z 258 Z &7

MARKET CAPITALISATION

Total Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2020 HK$386 million
As at 26 June 2020 HK$403 million

Public Float Capitalisation*

As at 31 March 2020 HK$259 million
As at 26 June 2020 HK$237 million

The information disclosed under this section reflects the market value of
PYI shares held by PYI shareholders with the shareholdings held by the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the directors
of PYI being excluded.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (“PY1” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 58 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is set out on pages 10 to 35 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 104 of this annual report and in the

accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
declared during the year (2019: Nil).

The directors have resolved not to recommend for shareholders’
approval the payment of any final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Details of the distribution are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 33% of the
Group’s revenue and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 12%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 31%
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately 13%.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
close associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has an interest in any of the five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2020,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$391,872,000 with approximately HK$190,781,000
repayable on demand or within one year, approximately
HK$201,091,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank
balances and deposits as at 31 March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$356,104,000. The Group’s current ratio
(calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 5.19 and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 0.11 as at 31 March 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

TEREFRHER

HE20200F3H3IHILEFE AEERAL K&
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3% MEFRAHRER 2 EEEL/13% °
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a dividend policy with no pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. In considering payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient capital
reserves for future growth of the business of the Group and
allowing shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, the
following factors when considering the declaration and payment
of dividends:

(@ the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

(b)  retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group;

(c) thelevel of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on
equity and the applicable financial covenants that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

()  general economic conditions, cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; and

(@@ any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the Company’s

bye-laws.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

1. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general
meeting held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1)

@

&)

Purpose

To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

Participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time),
executives or officers, directors (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Total number of shares available for issue

(@ Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b)
below, the total number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
issued shares as of 1 September 2017, being
551,958,057 shares.

I 47 B B =t &

1. BRESE

RNABREE2012F9A10B LT 2R E
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4

(%)

(o)  Overriding Limit — The Company may by
ordinary resolutions of its shareholders refresh
the Mandate Limit as referred to in the above
paragraph (a) provided that the Company shall
issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit on the
number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
shares from time to time.

(c) As of the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares in the Company available for
issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 551,958,057 shares, which represented
approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company (that is, 5,519,580,572 shares)
on that date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period
granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue. However,
subject to separate approval by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with the relevant
participant and his close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) (or his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) if the participant is a connected person
(as defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from
voting and provided that the Company shall issue a
circular to its shareholders before such approval is
sought, the Company may grant a participant
options which would exceed the aforesaid limit.

Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, save that such period must not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

(4)

)
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(6)

(7)

)

)

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it is vested

The minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it is vested, shall be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any
minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option and
period for acceptance

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date
on which the offer was issued; or (i) the date on
which the conditions for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant
of the relevant option but shall not be less than the
higher of: (i) such subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the
nominal value of the share of the Company.

Remaining life

The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is
10 years commencing from 10 September 2012 and
will expire on 9 September 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no share options
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme. Also, there were no outstanding share options
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as at 31
March 2020.
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2. Share Financing Plan

This share financing plan, adopted by the Company on 14
February 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares of
the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security, subject
always to connected transaction and other relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was
provided by the Group under this plan.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentive
Schemes”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result

in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,888,337,000 (2019: HK$1,998,373,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Chairman & Managing Director)
Sue Ka Lok
Wu Yan Yee

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Leung Chung Ki

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Ms Wong Lai Kin, Elsa and Mr Leung Chung Ki will
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of each

of the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model

“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out below:
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Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG/ HBEROHUE
(Note ff3£1)

Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total share capital
HERT
B2 /B8 A&z
THABHA 40 PN £ RIkER DEER HipE s wE HHEIH
(Note f17£2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner and interest of 14,672,605 — 498,223,308 — 512,895,913 9.29%

2R controlled corporation (Note f13£3) (Note [ff314)

EanlAARR B LE#R
Notes: i3t -

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions. None of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020.

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares
as at 31 March 2020.

Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen (“Mr Lau”) comprised
14,672,605 shares.

Such interests were held by Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited (“Empire
City”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent
Limited (“Affluent Talent”)). As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by Mr
Lau, Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Rally
Praise.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2020, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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TERR HtALTZRBRAR

MR2020F3A31H MARAEENZSITH
ANBFATH TEREHMALTHRARQRRKHG

positions of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the wm
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO

are as follows:

RAEBROPHALERNRE(GES LB E K
BI)EIBIHREBETRIFZ2ELMAZERZRAR

(1) Substantial shareholders (1) TERR
Number of  Approximate
shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held  share capital
BER®G S HEBTRE
IRER A 56 HEROGBE Z8OBIL
(Note fiz£1)  (Note ff#%2)
PT International Development Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
Corporation Limited R EE
REBEEBEZERSCZBR QA (Note H1#£3)
Treasure Investment Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled corporation 1,305,311,695 23.65%
S NEL T
(Note [17+3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,305,311,695 23.65%

BnEAA
(Note f15%3)
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(2) Other Persons (2 HbAx
Number of  Approximate
shares/ % of
underlying the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares share capital
Bt HEBRTRA
BRREEE8B 514 HEROHEE Z#8AESL
(Note fiz£1)  (Note ff:2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner 14,672,605 0.26%
glmR ExnlEBA
(Note f{7%4)
Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEBE RS
(Note [f17%5)
Affluent Talent Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
REEEER
(Note H17£5)
Empire City International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 498,223,308 9.03%
EEEE RS
(Note f17£5)
Rally Praise Limited Beneficial owner 498,223,308 9.03%
ERBEAA

(Note [15£5)



Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 5,519,580,572 shares
as at 31 March 2020.

3. According to the disclosure forms filed on 26 May 2017, Hollyfield Group
Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Treasure Investment
Holdings Limited (“Treasure Investment”) (which was, in turn, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PT International Development Corporation Limited
(“PT International”)), owned 1,305,311,695 shares in the Company.
Accordingly, Treasure Investment and PT International were deemed to
be interested in the said 1,305,311,695 shares held by Hollyfield.

4. Such interests held by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen (“Mr Lau”) comprised
14,672,605 shares.

5. Rally Praise Limited (“Rally Praise”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Empire
City International Limited (“Empire City”) (which was, in turn, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited (“Affluent Talent”)) owned
498,223,308 shares in the Company. Accordingly, Empire City and
Affluent Talent were deemed to be interested in the said 498,223,308
shares held by Rally Praise. As Affluent Talent was wholly owned by Mr
Lau, Mr Lau was deemed to be interested in these shares held by Rally
Praise.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

Including the directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2020,
the Group employed a total of 566 (2019: 1,343 which included
751 employees of Yichang Port Group Limited) full time
employees. Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well
as performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing
support of the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

Under the Group’s existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to
the merits, qualification and competence of the employees while
promotion and increments are based on performance of the
respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of a
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director concerned.

Further, the Company has implemented various share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff in both
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 62 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set
out in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 45 to
73 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s performance in various environmental and
social aspects during the year is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which is available on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at least 25% (that is, the prescribed public float
applicable to the Company under the Listing Rules) of the
issued shares in the Company were held by the public as at the
date of this report.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

At the end of June 2019, the Group completed the disposal of

its entire investment of 51% equity interest in Yichang Port

Group Limited, which was a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

registered in the People’s Republic of China and mainly
engaged in operation of ports, at a consideration of about
RMB381 million (equivalent to about HK$434 million). Yichang
Port Group Limited and its subsidiaries ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company upon and after the disposal.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have other material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Changes in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

(1) MrLau Tom Ko Yuen resigned as the deputy chairman
and executive director of South Shore Holdings Limited

with effect from 10 June 2020; and

(2)  Mr Chan Shu Kin retired from the office of independent

non-executive director of Long Well International Holdings

Limited (formerly known as Tou Rong Chang Fu Group
Limited) with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the said company held on 19
December 2019.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20
AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2020, advances to entities did not
individually exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to
affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate amount of the
financial assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated
companies (as defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) did not exceed 8% under the assets ratio as
defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. As at 31
March 2020, there was no guarantee given by the Group
for facilities granted to its affiliated companies.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s bye-laws provides that the directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any directors. Directors’ liability
insurance is in place to protect the directors against potential
costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against them.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$724,000 (2019: HK$520,000).
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or
sale and for investment purposes are set out on pages 283 and
284 of the annual report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no major subsequent events occurred since the end
of the reporting period and up to the date of this report.
AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYlI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 104 to
281, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

FRARFLER

REBRMANEXZHE BAREZFZEASEMT
BRABMGEMBBRRTREZNFTE - LML
BERERGAMBHMRMAUTKE R KRR
HEER MIAERBEFEHEREFERER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERONAEEERERSER

Valuation of land being formed and formed land
classified as investment properties (the “Land Under
Development and Developed Land”)
PEEBREYEFREILHREFRELIM([HEFL
MREMZLH])BIEE

We identified the valuation of Land Under Development
and Developed Land as a key audit matter due to its
significance and the significant degrees of management
estimations involved in the valuation.

BMEERER T RERE T NG ERTESERE
ERER REARZHEBEARMGESIREXRREE
HEIREMAET -

As described in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2020, the Land Under
Development and Developed Land situated in Jiangsu
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
aggregately amounted to approximately
HK$1,040,567,000 with a net increase in fair value of
HK$49,814,000 recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2020.

WA GR S B R R M T2 Aratt - FR20205F3 AB1H - iz
RAEEARAMB(HE]) IHENRAERPLHMEE
F 3% + & £ 49 A1,040,567,0007 7T + 149,814,000 7%
THRAFEBBIMEFHEDRNEE2020F3H31 0 IEF
EREE s R PR -

We performed the following procedures in relation to
valuation of Land Under Development and Developed
Land:

BMPERBEP L REOME T MO EERITUTRE
% :

o Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;
AEBUVSERBEEMGEMNERL BOAREER
1

° Discussed with the management, valuer and our
internal valuation teams expert for the latest updates
in relevant property market, status of investment
properties and methodologies and assumptions
adopted in valuations;

HERE HEMIBEMOANDEERRERD
WERMETSNRMBDE REWENMEIN
RETHERRANTERBRR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEERREERER

In order to support their estimation, management took
reference to independent qualified professional valuations
in respect of all Land Under Development and Developed
Land. Management is required to make estimates in
certain inputs in valuations. For determining fair values of
Land Under Development and Developed Land, it
involves significant judgment and estimations including
valuation methodology, saleable land discount on
comparable lands, certain costs to be expended for
completion of land development, etc.
RXFEELOMG EREC2ZF@ LI MAEF
THRERELHMNBYAEREREHE EEEA
FEETHERSEE TOABBELHGS RECHE
P EERBELMNAFEE RESEBREMGE
FECFIBERBRZ T HBBEENE TR LA
PREENE TRAFERNNERHAE RMEE -

Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations with the
involvement of our internal valuation report;
ERMABEERSO BT - BREBER M H
REEBHENMETSERRIELHNAS  FE
BREBEMBN A EREE ML

Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended for completion of development by
reference to formed land;
K2EZCTELH  RETK MR ERESD
A E IR

Checked the validity and relevance of the
comparable samples used; and
REMATELEBREANERE REENT &

Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
valuations.
AR A ENTEN REMERMT -
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Key audit matter
HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEERREERER

Assessment of net realisable value of stock of
properties
FEYEFEY T EEFE

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of
stock of properties situated in Jiangsu Province, the PRC
as a key audit matter due to its significance and the
significant degrees of management estimates involved in
the assessment.
BMERCARPEIHGEMEFENRAIZER FETMG
BERBREZEE RAZRZNEBEARAKITEY
RERIEENEREME -

As described in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2020, properties under
development for sale and completed properties held for
sale amounted to approximately HK$918,118,000 and
HK$523,822,000 respectively.

B AR A B TS R R M sE20FT At - 520203 A31H8 ¢
HEEEEMERETIFELEDES AN R
918,118,000 7T [ 523,822,000 7T °

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
stock of properties:
BHMERDEFENAEREFENEERBEFEATIA
TEF:

° Evaluated the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;
TEBIEEREEMEMNER BIREE
1

° Discussed with management and the valuer for the
latest updates in relevant property market and
methodologies and assumptions used to calculate
net realisable value of stock of properties;
HERENMGEMARAEBEDEDT SN RN E
Mt EMEFENAIERFEMBONTTERRR

° Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge and research on the property market
performance in relevant locations; and
BB MM RGN ET SRR IE
EHREE  TEERBRRAANTEREEN
K

o Tested the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
assessment made by management.
AHEBEEMIET GO TBE R E M &R -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMNERNTEERREERER

As described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in order to estimate the net realisable value
of stock of properties management took reference to the
information on fair value of market comparable samples
and applied adjustment factors on comparable samples
provided by an independent qualified professional valuer.
The assessment is dependent on certain key
assumptions that require subjective assumptions and
significant management estimates, including adjustment
factors on comparable samples used in valuation of
properties under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale and, further costs to be expended
for the development of properties under development for
sale and discount rate used in net present value
calculation of stock of properties.
WINGEE B HRAM T4 BTG EFEN A&
RFE EREC2EBUAERSEMGEMRBEHRNY
TSR E L EEARN R FEBEER LA & L&A
ERNAERRZ A ABEREREERERERE
BEMAFE THRRR R ETHEEEEYE
MEZTIHELEDRGEEMAAIE L BERAH AR
AE UEHABHLEEEMERELANE - FPKAE
Mt EMEGCERBEFEMAMNAIRE -

We further performed the following procedures in relation
to management’s assessment of the net realisable value
of stock of properties that are under development for
sale:
HMEE—THHHEEREFTENATZRFEN
EEENERITUATRER:

° Checked reasonableness of further costs to be
expended by reference to completed properties;
K2ZEXTIVEREMEENE —PRANE
P

o Checked the validity and relevance of the market
comparable samples used in valuation; and
BEETHERTATS B EEEAN AR
MM &

° Checked market data to assess the appropriateness
of discount rate.
ZEMSHEAFGEREMEE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Hib & #

ERRIEFAHHEMERNAKERT EMEH
BREBRTHEENERN BETEREEMH
RN B PIFAUL FH HHORBER S

B GAMBERERFENERL REE LM
BER - BT HEMERBEREAMTANZE

4k A

AE Am ©

REAGEMBHRERMS  RANEEIHE
HiER  HMEBEMEREE RS M
BRIARPEEZEETEENERFEEX
A FUFHEEERHERRL - EHME
REZTKO TERSEMER LR ERBRR

o BMABEL —FE - BRI EAR
EEH-

EEREREHARAMBHRRNE
£

BERREFARERBEEGTMAGREMN
ERUBREENREFERAGIORERE
RESEVBRER USHAVBRRFLE
EMAFHORBR  REEERSREGEE UK
BERMAMVGENABES > UEESHBHRRD
FREBNRFHERMEBWEANFERRAL -

ERESAVBHRET EFABEFE &
SEBELENRE ) UREEFBELLERH
MERER) BRIFEFTEAER BE5EHB
BoHELEE RPN ETEEMERA
THME BREZTARAUSELE RER
GOR-

s

NAN
/B

TE]
NS

AEEE ESRENHRERE-



iy rexmERAT 202058

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BB RES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB RES

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWlER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE2020F3A31ALLFE
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FET FAET
Revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries 7~ & &) & E 8B A 8 2 WA 7 363,929 628,368
Gross proceeds from securities trading of RARREMB AR &S
the Company and its subsidiaries BEEAS IR 7 68,271 126,000
Share of revenue of associates and BEBERRRAELEZ
joint ventures I@N 7 5,344,040 4,556,237
5,776,240 5,310,605
Group revenue EERA
Sales and services income $HE LR A 6 303,820 551,878
Interest income FLEMA 6 54,471 65,797
Others Hih 6 5,638 10,693
363,929 628,368
Cost of sales 58 AR (239,659) (419,649)
Gross profit E F 124,270 208,719
Other income E A A 8 5,921 7,728
Administrative expenses THEA (159,828) (140,776)
Distribution and selling expenses DIENHEEER (45,372) (54,147)
Other gains and losses HAub s M E1E 9 (25,592) 39,065
Net (loss) gain on fair value changes of eMEEZAVFEBEEZS
financial assets (B58) W F58 10 (223,766) 1,139
Other expenses HiEH 11 (28,745) (33,360)
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed on TMEEZRERE (R
financial assets, net ¥ o] SF 58 12 (166,135) 20,113
Finance costs B & Pk AR 13 (24,005) (32,007)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QR .z WS 47 88,573 —
Net gain on fair value changes of investment & MEQAFBEEEFH 2
properties W% 21 46,663 38,718
Share of results of associates HhEE N R EE (94,166) 33,215
Share of results of joint ventures BhAECEER (5,341) 677
(Loss) profit before taxation A (Ei8) % 7 15 (507,523) 89,084
Taxation g 16 (57,432) (24,728)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EIB) % (564,955) 64,356
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: IMTATEEFE (BB)
v A
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEF SN (572,268) 49,208
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RS 7,313 15,148
(564,955) 64,356
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) earnings per share i (E518) & A

Basic HA 18 (0.104) 0.009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEEHEWNER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31HIEFE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

TERT FHETT

(Loss) profit for the year FE(BE) R (564,955) 64,356

Other comprehensive (expense) income Htt2mH (%) =
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss # T & &% 748 AE=2EH
Change in carrying amount of investmentsin =~ # =% TE&R & 7 REEE
equity instruments (61,551) (60,960)
Iltems that may be subsequently reclassifiedto FIREEE#H S B FE»ZHH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from translation BREBINEBMEEZ

of foreign operations ME H ZE R (153,229) (177,197)
Share of exchange differences of associates BEBME A ATIREENEY
and joint ventures EHZER (27,849) (24,961)
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HEWB AR ZEHPDHEFHE
subsidiaries 8,584 —
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHEMEEEX (234,045) (263,118)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FE>EAXBE (799,000) (198,762)
Total comprehensive expense for the year LWTATELEFE2EMA B -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAREARE A (768,235) (161,390)
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR % (30,765) (87,372)

(799,000) (198,762)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e TR R

At 31 March 2020
P2020F3A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
M 3 FER FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YDEE - MW N RS 19 157,731 1,308,915
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 20 64,904 -
Investment properties "EYE 21 1,109,706 1,324,481
Project under development ERERAPIAAE 22 163,950 175,428
Prepaid lease payments JENMERIE 23 - 302,131
Other intangible assets HEfhmEEE 24 2,832 7,004
Interests in associates RN 25 294,698 654,591
Interests in joint ventures AEPERER 26 108,261 118,446
Investments in equity instruments EaTARKE 27 313,966 375,845
Other non-current assets B 3ERBEE 28 — 84,050
2,216,048 4,350,891
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments EMAERE 23 - 4,180
Stock of properties MEFE 29 1,522,775 1,556,864
Inventories of finished goods EmEE 2,835 12,631
Loans receivable e E = 30 150,119 230,322
Amounts due from associates JE U Bt 42 N B) TR 18 31 68,552 70,721
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —HEAaEhERE 32 3,335 4,839
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B REMEWESR T2
prepayments R IE RIE 33 154,160 310,609
Investments in debt instruments held for BEESEKIAEKSE
trading 34 248,335 299,241
Investments in equity instruments held for BEEEEERIAKRSE
trading 35 191,668 309,950
Pledged bank deposits BERFETHER 36 11,528 117
Short-term bank deposits RERITE R 36 48,959 137,507
Bank balances and cash RITEGFE AR S 36 295,617 380,621
2,697,883 3,317,602
Assets classified as held for sale PERAFBELECEE 37 753,412 -
3,451,295 3,317,602
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

At 31 March 2020
202063 A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
M 5E FET FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 REMEMNRR R
expenses Bt 38 124,180 298,733
Contract liabilities EXBE 39 47,472 4,055
Lease liabilities HE&aRE 40 7,778 —
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEATIEIE P AE S B 41 96,132 95,683
Taxation payable FER IR 2,305 10,302
Bank and other borrowings — due within —FRAEFZRITR
one year Hinfg 3} 42 190,781 674,231
468,648 1,083,004
Liabilities associated with assets classified as 825 %8 AiFELE 2 EE
held for sale HEzAaE 37 195,709 -
664,357 1,083,004
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,786,938 2,234,598
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 5,002,986 6,585,489
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FRRINBPIRITR
one year H g 42 201,091 370,053
Lease liabilities HEaRE 40 12,201 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEAE 43 736,905 810,269
Deferred income I FE WA 44 - 76,092
Other payables H i & BR X 38 - 19,499
950,197 1,275,913

4,052,789 5,309,676
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

At 31 March 2020
7202043 A31H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FHET FET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXK#E
Share capital Ji& < 45 551,958 551,958
Reserves & 3,125,901 3,894,136
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 & # B A 7 FE{5 3,677,859 4,446,094
Non-controlling interests FIEE IR M = 58(b) 374,930 863,482
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 4,052,789 5,309,576

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 281
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
£y
Chairman and Managing Director

FTEREH

BN E104E281 B 2 ér A H MK E 1K2020F
6HoBHEEZEEZERZAENMKERNZE  AH T

EERREFRESE

Sue Ka Lok
B g
Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

B ZE2020F3A31HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KRRAREEAZEEER
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other  payment Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserves  reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
A RR 19
RE& X FIE FEIERR
BA BHEE EXRE ZERFEE E0EE il EREE REEH It Ba BEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000 HK$000 HKE000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
ThEr Tz FThEx FTEx FTEx TEx  FTEx TEx TEx  FErD Tz
At 31 March 2018 R2018E3A31H 551,958 544,511  (95,368) (256,550) 58,683 3,182 206,798 3,698,600 4,711,814 900,978 5,612,792
Change in accounting SHBEREY
policies - - - - - - 16 (104,346) (104,330) - (104,330)
Restated balance at 20184 A1H
1 April 2018 WEY| 2% 551958 544511  (95368) (256,550) 58,683 3,182 206,814 3,594,254 4,607,484 900,978 5,508,462
Exchange differences BMEBINERT
arising from translation EECZERER
of foreign operations - - - - - - (124,677) —  (124,677)  (62,520) (177,197
Share of exchange Bemanak
differences of associates A& MEVEHR
and joint ventures £E - - - - - - (24,961) - (24,961) - (24,961)
Change in carrying amount % T ERE 7
of investments in equity REGEE
instruments - - - (60,960) - - - - (60,960) — (60,960
Profit for the year FE&A - - - - - - — 40208 49208 15148 64,35
Total comprehensive FEZE(FEY)
(expense) income for WanE
the year - - - (60,960) - —  (149,638) 49,208 (161,390) (37,372 (198,762)
Release upon lapse of BEEBERELAN
vested options B A% - - - - - 318 - 3182 - - -
Transfer of reserves of EEMBAAZ
subsidiaries [ - - - - 1,662 - - (1,662) - - -
Dividend distriouted to [EE R R 5 R
non-controlling interests 7 & & - - - - - - - - - (124) (124)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 551,958 544511  (95368) (317,510) 60,345 - 57,176 3,644,982 4,446,094 863,482 5,309,576
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AN < 4=
mEEREEX
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ANREBAZELES
Investment Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation Other Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve  reserve reserves reserve  profits Sub-total interests equity
RE FER
Bx BROEE EAGEE EMRE EURE ERARE REEN et BiE REEAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TFEx TFiE=R

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TEn TR TiEx TFExT FEx TiE=

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 A1 H 551,958 544,511  (95,368) (317,510) 60,345 57,176 3,644,982 4,446,094 863,482 5,309,576
Exchange differences RABBNEBMES

arising from translation ZERER

of foreign operations - - - - (115,151) — (115,151) (38,078) (153,229)
Share of exchange BEBMENARAE

differences of associates b V¥ E5

and joint ventures - - - - (27,849) - (27,849 - (27,849)
Reclassification adjustment HEH B AR 2 E#

on disposal of PEAZ (W #47)

subsidiaries (Note 47) - - - - - 8,584 - 8,584 - 8,584
Change in carrying amount ##% TAKE ZREE

ofinvestments in equity £ &)

instruments - - - (61,551) - - - (61,551) - (61,551)
(Loss) profit for the year 4 & (548) % ¥l - - - - - — (572,268) (572,268) 7,313 (564,955)
Total comprehensive FEZARYASE

expense for the year - - - (61,551) —  (134416) (572,268) (768,235 (30,765) (799,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries &K B2 &l (A1 iF47)

(Note 47) - - - - (11,546) - 11,546 —  (484,095) (484,995)
Acquisition of assets BRKENEAF

through acquisition of BOZAEWE

subsidiaries (Note 48) (H1:248) - - - - - - - - 1,366 1,366
Contribution from FERERLE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 25,842 25,842
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 551,958 544,511  (95,368) (379,061) 48,799 (77,240) 3,084,260 3,677,859 374,930 4,052,789

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and
liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests in
subsidiaries acquired by the Group as described in Note 3. The
amount would be transferred to retained profits upon disposal
of interests in the subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is
earlier.

The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in
carrying amount of investments in equity instruments designated
as fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
since its initial recognition.

Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the
appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as pursuant to the PRC regulations and share of other
reserves of associates and joint ventures.

BEARFBEASEMKBHE QR 2B ER
BECHBAEERABEZAVFEBEREER
ZEB(FBAMES EHRSBREN L EHE
NRAZRANEEEE(ARTERE) KB

ERE A

REEMRBEHEEEBNIBAREEREATE
BEmARftemls((RAFEESARLME
mEDNERETAREZREEZS -

HitEETBERBEPEARKMB(HED
ERBER BRI Z B R E Z BRI R SR
ETHHBERERE MBEBERANRA
BhEZHEMRER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020F3A31HIEFE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#& T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEH
(Loss) profit before taxation B i AT (&5 18 ) gl (507,523) 89,084
Adjustments for: BB R ETHRHE
Finance costs LR N 24,005 32,007
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and B E ¥ - Wi LR &REZE1E
equipment (Y zs) 15 (2,471)
Share of results of associates BALH S N AR 94,166 (33,215)
Share of results of joint ventures BEAECEER 5,341 677)
Release of prepaid lease payments FEENEERE — 5,151
Amortisation of other intangible assets HE b E A 476 986
Depreciation of property, plant and W W REZITE
equipment 41,446 50,234
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEECITE 10,244 —
Loss on changes in fair value of investments BEEEEESIEKREZARTF
in debt instruments held for trading BEZHEIE 58,384 11,633
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments & & 78 4 & 208 2 W3 - (44,121)
Net unrealised exchange loss R IE N 18 E 5 13,043 9,764
Gain on disposal of investment properties BEREME 2 W — (2,155)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & I B D7) 2 Y ek (88,573) -
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of RIEEBEED TAREZ NF
investments in equity instruments held for BEZFEE(WKZF)
trading 165,382 811)
Gain on change in fair value of other financial ~ E & gl E E v A FEEE
asset g - (12,461)
Net gain on fair value changes of investment ?y\ é MEAFEEEDH 2 W
properties S EE (46,663) (38,718)
Bank and other interest income fE 71 R E A F B U A (3,191) (3,343)
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) on ERE R 2 REBERER(EE)
loans receivable 124,003 (20,429
Impairment loss recognised on amounts due & I Bt 4 A B 3018 2 R (E & 18
from associates R 7,350 275
Impairment loss recognised on trade and =0 )SZ H e W BR R 2 R (B
other receivables E R 34,782 41
Write-down of stock of properties MEFE /UZ B U 18,233 -
Dividend income from investment in an equity  #£% T A& 2 % 2 U A
instrument - 919
Operating cash flows before movements in RETE BB KLEET
working capital BeEneE (49,080) 40,355
Decrease (increase) in stock of properties MEFER D (EMN) 4,528 (14,631)
Decrease (increase) in inventories of finished EHomEaERA gm)
goods 8,970 (1,911)
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable fE W B 5k (38 ) i > (43,800) 155,000
Increase in trade and other debtors, deposits & 5 & E #h EUBE 3% « 51 RIE
and prepayments FXIE $E A0 (25,100) (56,030)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from JE W B 4 8 B) FRIE (B2 hn) R
associates (5,181) 2,589
Increase in investments in equity instruments #F{EE &S T AR EE N
held for trading (47,100) (273,675)
(Increase) decrease in investments in debt BEEEEFIAKRE (EMm)
instruments held for trading D (7,478) 9,300
Decrease in other financial asset Hib o mEER D - 196,000
Increase in trade and other creditors and B NEMEMERNEGSHY
accrued expenses BBl 740 58,306
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities EHBaEEMNRD) 51,176 (8,147)
Decrease in amounts due to associates & -] Bt 44 A B FE R - (17,400)
Net cash (used in) generated from operations  (FBH) 3k & %&7 &R e FE (112,325) 94,756
Income tax paid, net BENEHE B8 (7,296) (10,138)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

(AR REEEEH 2HEFE

(119,621)

84,618
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
IL _\éIﬁdﬁ\;ﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020F3A31AILFE
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEETEH
Payment in relation to property, plant and BREYE BWEEREZ
equipment BEN (98,192) (105,382)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of 3% i3 I B [} & A 317 2
subsidiaries & E W 48 (27,225) —
Increase in pledged bank deposits B 1K 35 85 17 17 338 0 (11,528) (117)
Additions to investment properties TE W EIL M (1,609) (7,304)
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture WEE—HAS T EES (1,200) (27,179
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A7 2] LR A
perke] 47 208,155 —
Bank and other interest income received B YR 17 R E A R B A 3,192 3,303
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEME B EREME
plant and equipment KIA 2,636 12,742
Repayment from joint ventures BEDREENR 1,236 2,334
Release of pledged bank deposits FEEEBEITHER 117 30,5857
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease BEEBNHEEREZ MG
payments KIB - 56,740
Repayment from an associate — & QA ER - 5,000
Proceeds from disposal of investment REREMEMNSRE
properties - 2,872
Dividend received from investment in EREZTEKRERE
an equity instrument - 919
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING RE(AR)RETH RS
ACTIVITIES T 75,582 (25,511)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMER (1,251,605) (923,190)
Interest paid B FE (46,000) (53,179)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEAEAE (6,364) —
New bank and other borrowings raised IR 1T )32 HifE 1,200,108 880,202
Contribution from non-controlling interests ~ FE3EAkfEzR H & 25,842 —
Advance from (repayment to) non-controlling 3 T F% #EE 25 B 30 (17 FE4E R
interests EXEBER) 1,179 (2,334)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of &= 1 Bﬁ BARJEERER 2
subsidiaries B - (124)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR B EZSH 2B & B (76,840) (98,621)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRHEBESEEEBRD
EQUIVALENTS 8 (120,879) (39,514)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEERREE
CHANGES (9,464) (18,481)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT & R EHIR €% EIE B A&
FORWARD 518,128 576,123
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED #BR& NHRSEEHERLE
FORWARD 387,785 518,128
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH HehHESEHEER &%
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ks
Short-term bank deposits 52 HA fE 1115 3K 48,959 137,507
Bank balances and cash BITHEFERES 295,617 380,621
Bank balances and cash included in assets ’F]ﬁﬁ/\\\ SEABIELEZ
classified as held for sale BEEZRIEFRAS 37 43,209 -

387,785 518,128




GENERAL

PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in Note 58.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC)- Uncertainty over Income Tax
Interpretation 23 Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31HIEFE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using modified
retrospective approach with the cumulative effect
recognised at the date of initial application on 1 April 2019
and has not restated comparative amounts. Right-of-use
assets relating to the Group’s operating leases are
measured at the amount of lease liabilities on initial
application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition,
adjusted by the amount of any advance/prepaid lease
payments.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

()  elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends within
12 months of the date of initial application; and

(i)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The incremental borrowing
rates applied by relevant group entities range from 4.2%
t0 6.9%.
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HZE2020F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

On transition, the Group has made the following

adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16:

FE R ¥ 5] AR R] B R BB 1R
EEA(TEREMBEREZER D

(&)
BREMBHRELERE 1655 HE | (F)
ERAHEA (H)

RBER  AEBCRERBTEMBERS
R EAGRRIFH AT HE

At 1 April 2019

R20194F
481H
HK$’000
FAT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as A 201943 A31 B 5 v K & T & #4E
at 31 March 2019 17,490
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term 5 : R % — CHAELHAER EXER
leases and leases with lease term HH12@EARNGER2EE
ending within 12 months from the
date of initial application (5,872)
11,618
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant R2019F4A1BEABT BT BHEEAFE 1695
incremental rates relating to operating BIZ AR S T R AL IR MR AL T S AH R
leases recognised upon application of ZHEaRFE
HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 9,964
Analysed as DB
Current B 3,724
Non-current FERB 6,240

9,964




iy rexmERAT 202058

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 April

2019 comprises the following:

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE
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Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
HK$'000
FAT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating RERBBMBRELERF16REERELE
leases recognised upon application of HEHEBzERESE
HKFRS 16 9,964
Advance lease payments for operating R2019F4A1HBERFAREFTREEE Y
leases adjusted to right-of-use assets on KEHEZENBEENK
transition at 1 April 2019 983
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BT ERIBE HH 88 (1 :)
(note) 306,311
317,258
By class: RERE S
Leasehold lands HELH 306,311
Land and buildings T RiEF 9,845
Motor vehicles AE 1,102
317,258

note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were classified
as prepaid lease payments as at 31 March 2019. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portions of prepaid
lease payments amounting to HK$4,180,000 and HK$302,131,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Bfat : R2019FE3A31H  REME L 2 FERN R
WHEAENEERE - REAE MK
EEHFE16E  ENEEREZ RB L IE
B E8 H H B114,180,0005 7T K 302,131,000
BLTETDEEFERREE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment on
transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16
from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets under
existing lease contracts are accounted as if the existing
leases are modified as at 1 April 2019. The application has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 April 2019.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right-
of-use assets and should be adjusted to reflect the
discounting effect. The discounting effect is immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

As a lessor, the directors of the Company considered that
there is no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts

FE R ¥ 5] AR R] B R BB 1R
HERN(ERYHREER]

(&)

BREMBHRELERE 1655 HE | (F)

R2019F 4 A1B G AV BEMRARPER
ZEHEBETH AR - BESHIAZTEHE

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial e 2 MEIEE o
position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 March at 1 April
2019  Adjustments 2019
120194
5% Bl P 2 3] 4A1HRE
R2019% ERUYBHRSE
3A31HZ ZRI%E165%
BREE AE HEZKREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET
Non-current Assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments FENTE B 302,131 (302,131) -
Right-of-use assets FERELE — 317,258 317,258
Current Assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments 78 14 f & k8 4,180 (4,180) —
Trade and other debtors, 2 5 Kk H e AR
deposits and prepayments e RIBARIEA 310,609 (983) 309,626
Current Liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEa’E - 3,724 3,724
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEa’E - 6,240 6,240

For the purpose of reporting cash flows under indirect
method for the year ended 31 March 2020, movements in
working capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April
2019 as disclosed above.

ABEEEEZ2WMEE202063A318 1k
FEZHRERECZEN 2EEESEHD
RIE EXAHTHEZ2019F4 A1 2 1 9)
REMBRARE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020FE3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. EAFIIRKREITETAMKER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG E£EB((FEBUBEREED])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
EEMERERZHET REMERT
EEMBHREER

AEEYEIRFEA T EEMERER
ZHEI MR ERI BB MRS ER

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective: BEAUBRELR RGO

FEATH
S St Bt 7% EP A5 O A : i E 22
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* Egsﬁfﬁ;&{; :T)J XBHER
L . 5 i (K125
Amendments to Definition of a Business & e A Fl R E
HKFRS 3 F395 - BAUTH
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ s ERIE IR &
HKAS 39, HKFRS 9 BEAVBREE
and HKFRS 7 AR CRLEE) —
=2 & > | L >
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets & ,§ 12 fig % % AJ & %Q ﬂ% /yf;\\ ;:/E -
. B 578 = NAEE =
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its L3RI 085 ST EEHE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture® (4 IEET) 51 &S
Amendment to COVID-19-Related Rent B TR & A 2019 B 4R 5 =
HKFRS 16 Concessions® F169% (L1 E]) HEHeER®
Amendments to Definition of Material’ Ll EE;E\‘J F1H EANER
kEZE G AL
HKAS 1 and s o 5 e e
F 85 (1B 5T)
HKAS 8
! H2020F 1 A1BE M s 2 FHHE 4
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. e
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for 2 U B H A22020F1 A1 H A B RHIRZ

BEEE2FHEMAREAINRZEBHAH
REEMEEM -

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

s R2020F6 A1A A FmB 2 F A4

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. "
5(‘ o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 4 B202141 B1A BB 1S > & 4 Hi RS A4
o
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined. ° RAFRETEH AR ARRGR 2 2 FHMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on or
after 1 April 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipated that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a
Business”
The amendments:

o add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test
is available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

o clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs; and

o narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs
by focusing on goods and services provided to
customers and by removing the reference to an
ability to reduce costs.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a
Business” (Continued)

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 April 2020, with early
application permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the
amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was
considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
Services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Asset”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes

into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in the relative interests in the
subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is

calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of

the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting
a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, and land under development for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

An investment property carried at fair value is transferred
to properties for sales when there is a change in use
evidenced by commencement of development with a view
to sale of the relevant properties. The fair value of the
property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost of the
property for its subsequent accounting in accordance with
HKAS 2.

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised and
classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process after the intended
purpose of the land development can be determined and
transferred from project under development. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the land under development and its carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties under development for sale or
property, plant and equipment or investment properties,
as appropriate, when the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined upon commencement of
land leveling process.

Stock of properties

Except for the leasehold land element which is measured
at cost model in accordance with the accounting policies
of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS 16,
stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting period,
or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting period, by
management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale upon completion.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEE

(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

R (48)

RBERAREGELEZRE

EaRADASREHERBEEARENZ
ER-BAFENESEARRETUBR
BERRZEN MU IFZF R ZIEH|
1 2l K [R)4% ) 4

»t

EELCEE-"HAARLTH HRHHEBHR
FEHIEZTOTBRESRRZ I CEE
FERERN HAZHERERRAH
%E%%ﬁﬁw% LA Rz I - KRR
HEEEEABEBERAAZTHEHE
ZEFTEH-BRABZRERFE -

BENRRAELEZEE BENREBRE
TSGR ARFRATHRE -
REEDE RBEERARAGELREZR
B LT RRARER A MBI RK +
o MR ERIFLAEUERANEEE#(S
ZBERNRRAECECEENEMEE
Wam-rEmhEMEEKEN BER
ﬂ é%ﬁ%ZéE@f“@ﬁﬁA$

%W%W%°%$El%ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂ‘ﬂw
EhXEBERBLHERZBERAXA
ErEZRER(BREMNEEAKNEIEE
RBERRIFECLEREFEDINE
B MASETBESERELEN
ZE—FEBE BIBEENAEBECDE
EEESHEEERRRZBERALE
EEEELNRERSRBHER -



iy rexmERAT 202058 @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the investment in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal or partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset
(or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 which
continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequently accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and
compressed natural gas (“CNG”) for sales, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are determined using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade debtors arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term;

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the other income in profit or loss.

(iij) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
held for trading.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including amounts due from associates and a joint
venture, trade and other debtors, loans receivable,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances) and financial guarantee contracts which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
debtors. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant and credit-impaired
balances and/or collectively with appropriate groupings by
common risk characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

FTESHBERE)

€I A (&)

ﬁﬂgﬁg (/lﬁ)
THREERE#&)

(i)

1= B /= B A 15 18 Jo (&)

Aim D FF A AR - B A HNR
EaHER0BE FEESERER
BB\ 8 1) BB ARKEE N - B
FAREEREAERAEENBATIE
SUAL FEL0 L

WM BERAGOME  AREXRR
TR AE - 2 AHRARE
TERTARENBZONLERA

Eﬁoﬁﬁlﬁéﬁﬁﬁ% R EMBRERE
#) 0] 90 HE R E ﬁjifllaai"mh K
sEg %F#—#E1 BARORRZ

44
= °

AEETHEEALBAEER
BT BRI N2 A2 A -
BB ITIED - UH R SR
RREF R B EERRE S E
e IE



iy rexmERAT 202058

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(iij) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or
HKAS 17 (prior to 1 April 2019).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined, the
Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are
taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped based on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other debtors, amounts due from associates,
amount due from a joint venture and loans receivable
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

FTESHBERE)

€I A (&)

TREE(H)

THMEEREE

(v FAHEEERZTERER (H)
MEMAREREEZ AKREER

g KRIFEeRmEELREERE " A

MEBBMAREREE 2 B HKAG

e
= o
Ft

I

S

AU BEFRGAOME  BREEZ
REEEVBBRESERNFIORETE L
BREBERY TR S BR(E
R RERARERZ Rt WAREA
ZBREHER -

AEEEZEABMBAETRITAZRE
HEXREZEREBREREXNE
B WE S R EAM R - B
BRAFIA - BW—BAEZEEERE
AR W E RSN HRRRAERIE
BEBRBEERER -

AEBERBEERDRREREZANE
MEREK XM ERERTREER
RZEEHAE 2B D Ak &3 R R
IHEREBREE - MWAKRELEERITE
REMRMAEZBABO AR EEEK 2
MEZHCEREE  ASERIERN
ZREBEECREES  WHEABEANZ
REEREBEE HAKERECDEE
CRMEEMARZEBRB D AR R OWR -
AIRGEHEESERZEMEE TEND
WHRZ ISR BERERIEE -



iy rexmERAT 202058 @

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amounts due to non-controlling interests and bank and
other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combination on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
Allocation of consideration to components of

a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
(Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office and business premises that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognises right-
of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Except
for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property as separate line items
on the consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are presented within “investment properties”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

U variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

FTESHBERE)

HE (&)

AEEEDBEBEAN (RRER ZF22 8
BERXEREBHMBEREERF165
&) (&

HE&E (&)

MENREE:

e BEEMNR(BREBEEMZEENR)
TR EEEERSE

e BFHRHBIMETMEZAEZMEEN
;o W ERREEE B2 8 BEA

KETE

e REERZABKEEMGFHINZ

TE

e AEEAEBMTITEBEEERZ
TEE: &

o RIEME XA Z S5k (17 B R
AEEITERIERE) -

REERBBERE HERBRMNERE
NHEEMRIELHE -

HEET
i IRIATER  AEBEBHEBFIES
—HEBENHEEETAK:

s ZEEFBBENER-EHKXZHE
HEEEZRNBEARESRE : &

. HEREHEN BMEBAERRE
R 2 BB B4R T K BB B 4
AT R B A 01 OR 2 AT £
A



P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
(Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)
Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (prior to 1 April 2019)
When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such costs
are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)
Allocation of consideration to components of

a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 and the
related amendments to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price at
which the Group would sell a promised goods or service
separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is
not directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction price
ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects
the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress toward complete satisfaction of

a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (income
from port related services), the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using
the expected value method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Variable consideration (Continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

The Group recognises revenues on the following basis:

Income from port related services

Income from port related services is recognised over time
in which the benefits of the services are received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer as the Group
performs. Revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts using the
expected value approach, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognised for
advance from customers with contracts while a refund
liability is recognised for volume discount, if any.

3.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

FTESHBERE)

KEEFEHNZWA (B

o818 ()

AERBZAEFERTARZE  HER
Rt BEBHR AR R R ZEHEEH
ZAEERARERERRMEHERKA
B[ -

REBRESHMTHEE AEEBEF[HARS
BREAENERAJEREGTRERR
EHZREE) REERRRRE M TE
REEZBERAARRBSHAZBERE
3 o

REBRATEEBBUYA

& [ 46 B8 FR 7% WA
BOMEBERBEABREATEPRAEER

J@”JIHH#HX I ¥ A AR %5 2 F) 25 B
R WATIREMNT A2 BRI MG
HEFHN R - HWEBGHBRELERE

MWEE XZERRRBLHEEIRE
FHENEE - AKEERBEHREBEN
Rt RAF REHRIT MBS BERT
Kﬂﬁ%ﬂjfﬁiﬁﬁé@%ﬁ@%%%lk a
WEBBEDREPAKNZBRIER - MER
BERRSEEFN(NE) #ER -



P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFFHERE)

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sale of LPG and CNG products

Revenue from distribution of LPG and CNG is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed. A
contract liability is recognised for advance from customers
with contracts.

Revenue from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties developed for sale is
recognised upon the execution of binding sales
agreements and delivery of the properties according to
the contract, which is the point in time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property. A
contract liability is recognised for advance from customers
with contracts.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Effective
from 1 April 2019, any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalised rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense or capitalised in contracts in
progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve. When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to the relevant cash-generating
unit when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate assets belong, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or a group of cash
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

3.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties
As described in Note 3, for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences
in respect of investment properties are assessed
based on the best estimate of the tax consequence
upon sale of the properties directly or sale through
entities holding these properties or consume
substantially over time.

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land and
buildings, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the
developed land and land under development are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or
sale through entities holding these properties. For
those properties which would be subject to the PRC
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) upon disposal,
deferred tax on the temporary difference between
the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income
tax.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Continued)

The relevant amount of potential PRC LAT had been
recognised as a deferred tax liability based on the
above judgment. The amount of PRC LAT of
developed land and land under development as at
31 March 2020 is approximately HK$252,938,000
(2019: HK$256,372,000).

(b) Project under development
Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to (1)
properties under development for sale if the
properties are for sales purpose during the ordinary
course of business; (2) property, plant and
equipment if the properties are for own use; or (3)
investment properties if the properties are held for
rentals and/or capital appreciation.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. Management of the Company
works closely with the valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 21, 27 and 49(c) provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

Write-down of stock of properties

In assessing the net realisable value of stock of
properties, the Group engages qualified professional
valuer to provide information on market comparable
samples used in the assessment. Management of
the Group applies adjustment factors on market
comparable samples used in valuation of completed
properties held for sale and properties under
development for sale; estimates further costs to be
expended for the development of properties under
development for sale by reference of development
costs expended for formed land and the latest
market information; and determines discount rate
used in net present value calculation of stock of
properties.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

4. FEESFHERTEEMTZ
EFERIR (F|)

THE M 2 EERIF(H)

(a)

(b)

RAFEEAERGERESF
RMBHREMS  AKEETEETS
BMAFEEFE NEFAEEZRYF
BERN AEEEREJERNTS
AERHIE - WERERE —REA
B AEEEZEBEYABERER
HEMETEE - ARAEEERMG
BMBOEE URERBIEE 2
f (B Bl N B A BUR -

AREFEFRAERETHEERATERD
SR 2B A BUE 2 R ER - HET
ETHEASMTAZ AFEE- KT
21 2TRAQEBERAREETZHE
EAFEBEZGERN - § AKX
FEREZFHB -

Y 3K 77 & 6l 12 36l
RFEMERFEZAIZERFEE
AEEZEAERBERMGEMEHR
AERERMSEAELREARAZE
o ASHEEEEMETE S THNE
HEMEEREHEERMEAEER
FRERzmGRAELBREAEAR
BRAX 2REVFELIMAELEZE
ERRARRHTHERMGHERH
HEERMER TELEZE - FTK
K AEEAEDEFE 2 FREM
ERZEEE-



P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b) Write-down of stock of properties (Continued)

(c)

The Group recognises write-down of stock of
properties according to net realisable value of the
stock of properties. Write-down of stock of
properties is required to be recognised when there is
sign showing that the net realisable value is lower
than the carrying value. Recognition of net realisable
value involves judgment and estimation.

If the result of new estimation differs from current
estimation, such difference will impact the carrying
value of stock of properties for the corresponding
period.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group will only finalise its LAT returns
with the tax authorities when the disposal happens
in its property development projects. Accordingly,
significant judgment is required in determining the
amount of land appreciation and its related taxes
when considering the deferred tax impact. The
Group recognises these liabilities based on the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover the carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. As at 31

March 2020, the carrying amount of LAT provision
(included in deferred tax liabilities) was approximately
HK$430,438,000 (2019: HK$446,299,000).
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UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
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4. FEESFHERTEEMTZ
EFERIR (F|)

THE M 2 EERIF(H)

(d) Deferred tax asset

(e)

At 31 March 2020, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$1,039 million (2019:
HK$753 million) and deductible temporary
differences of HK$460 million (2019: HK$333 million)
has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position due to unpredictability
of future profit streams of those subsidiaries. In
cases where the actual future profits generated by
those subsidiaries are more than expected, a
material deferred tax credit would be recognised in
the consolidated income statement in the period in
which the tax losses and deductible temporary
differences are utilised.

(e)

Provision of ECL for financial assets
measured at amortised costs

The Group estimates ECL for financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. Except
for financial assets with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired which are individually
assessed for ECL, the Group collectively assesses
the ECL of financial assets, including trade and other
debtors which consist of large number of debtors
with common risk characteristics.

The assessment of ECL is based on historical
observed default rates and adjusted by forward-
looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL on the Group’s
financial assets is disclosed in Note 49(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the
borrowings disclosed in Notes 41 and 42, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE
REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue is analysed as follows: WAZAIIAT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Sales and services income $HE N RS U A
Income from port related services 7 O A8 B AR 75 A 163,545 400,128
Sale of LPG and CNG products HEREABAKR
4R ARE @ 114,654 146,148
Sale of properties SHE M 25,621 5,602
303,820 551,878
Interest income FLE WA
Interest income from loans receivable FEWE F 2 7 B A 27,049 37,763
Interest income from investments in debt BrEEEEKIAKEZ
instruments held for trading B U A 27,422 28,034
54,471 65,797
Others HAty
Property rental and related income MEMH e RAEBKA 2,863 9,482
Dividend income from investments in BrEEEERITAREY
equity instruments held for trading ENON 2,775 1,211
5,638 10,693
363,929 628,368
Revenue from contracts with customers is derived from KEBEPAHOZWARBERSBE  E81F
the PRC, which includes (i) revenue from sale of properties (NEEHEERZWESIHBETHEED
under property segment and sale of LPG and CNG ZHUEAEORY RS IPETITHEERILA
products under ports and logistics segment that are RN B e K R U R MR T (i) BE B T R
recognised at a point in time and (i) income from port RA7BORDEDHBETHEDORBRE
related services under ports and logistics segment that is NG

recognised over time.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group are determined
based on information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (the Managing Director of the
Company) for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising business
units with similar economic characteristics into an
operating segment.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Paul Y. Engineering — Building construction, civil
Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities and
asset management services
and investment in properties

Ports development — Development of ports facilities
and ports related properties

Ports and logistics ~ — Operation of ports, LPG, CNG
and LNG distribution and
logistics businesses

Property — Development, investment, sale
and leasing of real estate
properties, developed land,
land under development and
projects under development

Securities — Investment and trading of
securities

Treasury — Provision of credit services and
cash management
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Both ports and logistics segment and property segment
include a number of different operations in various cities
within the PRC, each of which is considered as a separate
business unit by the Managing Director of the Company.
For segment reporting purpose, these individual business
units have been aggregated into reportable segments
according to the nature and similarity of their products and
services, the customer type or class, the method of
products distribution or providing services, and the
regulatory environment, which give rise to a more
meaningful presentation.

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings or loss before interest expense and
tax (“EBIT” or “LBIT”) and earnings or loss before interest
expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA” or
“LBITDA").

7.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. oEHEFR(E)
Segment revenue and results DB ARFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAAREBKRAREELZKERATFRE
results by operating and reportable segment: DEE D 2D
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HILEFE
Paul Y. Segment
Engineering Ports  Ports and total and
Group development  logistics  Property Securities  Treasury consolidated
RE BOR 2BEE
B¥£E BORR b S EH E# RiGE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
T THr FHBx FExr  TBx  TE=x T
Revenue of the Group REEZ WA - — 278199 28484 30,197 27,049 363,029
Gross proceeds from AEECBREE
securities trading of MENEAE
the Group - - - - 68,271 - 68,271
Share of revenue of associates B {EFH 4 AT RA &
and joint ventures rEZRA 5,296,756 - 41,866 5,418 - - 5,344,040
5,296,756 - 320,065 33,902 98,468 27,049 5,776,240
EBITDA (LBITDA)* EBITDA (LBITDA)* (106,934) — 157,03 16978 (196,387) (137,602  (266,842)
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation** - - (43,276) (2,231) (594) (594) (46,695)
Segment results — EBIT (LBIT) 9 8% & — EBIT
(LBIT) (106,934) - 113,827 14,747  (196,981)  (138,196) (313,537)
Corporate and other PEREMET
expenses™ (169,981)
Finance costs BB (24,005)
Loss before taxation BREAER (507,523)
Taxation iy (57,432
Loss for the year FEEE

(564,955)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

7. ZEHERE)

DERAREE (E)
HZE2019F3A831HIEFE

Paul'Y. Segment
Engineering Ports  Ports and total and
Group  development logistics ~ Property ~ Securities ~ Treasury — consolidated
RE BOR ARty
e 3 3] BOER b ES &7 E% &,ﬁqm
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAL TAEL FEL FAEL TAEL AL
Revenue of the Group KEBZWA - - 546,276 15,084 29,245 37,763 628,368
Gross proceeds from AEECERBE
securities trading of FERIBEE
the Group - — - - 126,000 - 126,000
Share of revenue of associates #{EH & A A R A%
and joint ventures rEZWA 4,508,366 - 42,259 5,612 - - 4,556,237
4,508,366 - 588,535 20,696 155,245 37,763 5,310,605
EBITDA EBITDA 19,855 919 151,198 29,299 26,716 56,265 284,252
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation* - - 46945  (4,231) (22) (22) (51,220)
Segment results — EBIT DEEE—EBIT 19,855 919 104,253 25,068 26,694 56,243 233,032
Corporate and other PEREMAL™
expenses™ (111,941)
Finance costs AR A (32,007)
Profit before taxation B % A A 89,084
Taxation B (24,728)
Profit for the year FEE 64,356

Segment results of Paul Y. Engineering Group included an
impairment loss adjustment on share of results of the associate
amounted to approximately HK$122,987,000 (2019: Nil)
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020, which was
resulted from the alignment of accounting policy on expected

credit loss provision of PYI regarding certain non-trade receivables

of the associate.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$88,573,000 (201
Nil) has been recognised in the ports and logistics operating
segment during the year ended 31 March 2020.
- Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets and amortisation of other intangible assets.

Represents mainly unallocated administrative expenses and

9:

includes unallocated depreciation of approximately HK$5,471,000

(2019: Nil), acquisition-related costs for potential projects of
approximately HK$22,721,000 (2019: HK$26,983,000) and net
exchange loss of approximately HK$25,577,000 (2019:
HK$9,682,000).

* RERESEZHDBEERERT EXLH
BRAIZAETHESRKERERERE
HEEBRBRBBZETHRERE —®Mm
RE E2020F3A318 IEF E#EZEE
ARAEIEERERAZ —BEREEBEFAEZD
122,987,000/ 7T (2019 : #&) °

BB 2A R 2 IR 488,573,000 T
(2019 : ) B RN EH E202043A31 B It F &
EAEORYREE D BEIAR -

o BEDE BMEREBEUANRERBREERE
REMELEERE -

o FBABRPEMNTHER YERERD
B 37 & 495,471,000 7T (2019 : 4% ) - £
BB 718 B M8 B 2 Bk A 4922,721,0007% 7T
(2019 : 26,983,0007% 7T ) & [ X E5 18 )F 5 4
25,577,000 7T (2019 : 9,682,000/ 7T) °
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. DEER(E)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UWTAAEBREERBEZRLERARSE
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: DERE| D T AT
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H
Paul Y. Segment
Engineering Ports  Ports and total and
Group development logistics Property  Securities ~ Treasury consolidated
RE BOR FBEE

BE&HE BORE R L/ES # E#% k&8
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

ASSETS EE
Segment assets DEHEE 298,958 309,706 946,527 3,204,966 444,747 389,126 5,594,030
Unallocated assets AOBEE 73,313
Consolidated total assets LRAmEE 5,667,343
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities NBEE - - 247,894 1,298,271 487 37,130 1,583,782

Unallocated liabilities *oEAE 30,772

Consolidated total liabilities RABERE 1,614,554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 March 2019

Paul'y.
Engineering Ports
Group  development

R
BEE BOER
HK$'000 HK$'000

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE202063A31BLFE
2 EE R (&)
PHEEREE(E)
201943 A31H
Segment
Ports and total and
logistics Property  Securities Treasury  consolidated
;% og AR _AB/\ +
b ES £ B RiEa

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET  TET  TAT TET

TEL TEL
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NHEE 421,867 360,560
Unallocated assets AABREE

Consolidated total assets LABEE

LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilties nNEHAE - -
Unallocated liabilties APEAE

Consolidated total liabilities 44 @& &

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and
liabilities of the operating subsidiaries, as well as interests
in associates, joint ventures and investments in equity
instruments that are engaged in relevant segmental
businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude
corporate assets which are mainly certain bank balances
and cash, interests in joint ventures, right-of-use assets
and other receivables, and segment liabilities exclude
corporate liabilities which are mainly certain other payables
and lease liabilities.

For the purpose of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance, deferred tax liabilities are
allocated to segment liabilities but the related deferred tax
credit/charge are not reported to the Managing Director of
the Company as part of segment resullts.

2,269,036 3,396,561 610,544 577,962 7,626,529

41,964

7,668,493

1,016,799 1,198,278 8,460 121,799 2,345,336

13,581

2,358,917

MEELRBEBRREEHAIMEHZ
REWMBRAIZEERBE URBER
Al -AERERBamTAREZEx - &
- DHMEETBRIBERETRITET
ki A20X#n ERAEEERA
fEBERCEXREE  MoBEERT
BRIZAETHEMENERIXLEERAE
ZIERAE-

‘Al t’)

REBERIERDERBEFHZBEH
EERBRERSEESHAE  BEHE
Eﬁﬁk%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ)\/ﬁﬁ]r?{’ﬁ%"*ﬁ%ii
B AR X BB 47 (A AR X A 4B 2 TR
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HE20205F3 AB1HIEFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. oEHEFR(E)
Other information H fth & 8
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TRAERKERARED I RAERE
information by operating and reportable segment: HER Z OH
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HILEFE
Paul Y.
Engineering Ports  Ports and
Group development logistics  Property Securities Treasury Unallocated Consolidated
RE BOR
EX5E BORR L/ L/ &% E# APE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TET TFEx FExr TER TET TET
Amounts included in the measure 3t A2 £ &R 2 5
of segment results or segment  EEFEZHIE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets EBERYEE (2R
other than financial instruments TEABIN - - 30,123 52,138 - - 17,170 99,431
Impairment loss recognised on BURERZHEEBSR
loans receivables i - - - - — 124,003 - 124,003
Impairment loss recognised on Z 5 REMENR @'E g
trade and other receivables JREEEER - - 906 - - 33,876 - 34,782
Impairment loss recognised on EUEE ARFRIBL
amounts due from associates REBRBER - - - - - 7,350 - 7,350
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, B E W « #iH &
plant and equipment FiEz W (5E) - - 59 (74) - - - (15)
Bank and other interest income BITREMFBRA - - 930 235 - 2,009 17 3,191
Interests in associates BMENRRER 294,698 - - - - - - 294,698
Interests in joint ventures AECEER - - - 85393 - - 22,868 108,261
Share of results of associates BEBMENREE (106,934) - 12,768 - - - - (94,166)
Share of results of joint ventures BEABNEERE - - - (1,531) - - (3,810) (5,341)
Loss on changes in fair valug of FiEEEREEIA
investments in equity instruments & 7 A LB
held for trading ZEEE - - - - 165382 - - 165,382
Loss on changes in fair value of BEEERKIA
investments in debt instruments R & 7 A T {BE
held for trading ZEEE - - - - 58384 - - 58,384
Assets classified as held forsale DA EHE Y
RE - - 753,412 - - - - 753,412
Liabilties associated with assets ~ E A AHEHE Y
classified as held for sale EERBZEE - - 195,709 - - - - 195,709
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

7. ZEHERE)

Ha &R (&)
HZE2019F3A831HIEFE

PaulY.
Engineering Ports  Ports and
Group  development logistics ~ Property ~ Securiies  Treasury Unallocated  Consolidated
RE BOR
BEEE BOER min ES &5 B AR Ba
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TExT TErT TErT T FET FET
Amounts included in the measure 5t A2 £ &R 2 5
of segment results or segment  EEFEZHIE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets ERERYEE (2R
other than financial instruments TEKIN - - 88,661 13,650 4 4 — 102,319
Release of prepaid lease payments 39 # 18 (1 7 & 3018 - - 5,123 28 - - - 5,151
Impairment loss reversed on loan I & 3 7 R E B 1B
receivables el - - - - - 20,429 - 20,429
Impairment loss recognised on Z 5 R H R 3K
trade and other receivables ZREEEER — - 41 — — _ _ 4
Impairment loss recognised on EUEE ARFRIEL
amounts due from associates REBERZ - - - - - 275 - 275
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, & E W « #iH &
plant and equipment FEWE(BR) - - 2,607 (136) - - - 2,471
Bank and other interest income BITREMFBRA - - 2,428 149 1 752 13 3,343
Interests in associates AN ERER 406,911 - 247,680 - - - - 654,591
Interests in joint ventures aelxEs - - - 92968 - - 25,478 118,446
Share of results of associates BEMENRER 19,855 - 13,360 - - - - 33,215
Share of results of joint ventures BLALOEEE — - - 2,374 - - (1,697) 677
Gain on changes in fair value of BEEERRIA
investments in equity instruments % & 2 A FEE
held for trading Z2EU s - - - - 311 - - 311
Loss on changes in fair value of BEEERKIA
investments in debt instruments BREZATFEERE
held for trading EHEE - - - - 11,633 - - 11,633
Gain on change in fair value of HteREEZRT
other financial asset BEEZHKS - - - - 12,461 - - 12,461
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HZE2020F3A31AIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC other than Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

7 wE R (&)

& &R

AEBZEBTBZUREERTE(TE
BEE) -

TERA/AEEBRARMETSE H (RIE
EPHMAEME - T E /R R M)
Z o

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Hong Kong A 56,062 57,780
The PRC other than Hong Kong FECTRIERS) 306,683 561,360
Others Hih 1,184 9,228
363,929 628,368

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets excluding financial instruments,
analysed by the geographical location of assets:

NTRERBEE(TERESRITA)ER
BEREEZMEMRE D Z D :

Non-current assets excluding
financial instruments

FRBEE(TEFEEMITA)

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETT

Hong Kong BB 333,599 435,639
The PRC other than Hong Kong AE(TeEEE) 1,568,483 3,539,407
1,902,082 3,975,046

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2020, a customer from ports
and logistics segment contributed approximately
HK$44,045,000 to revenue, which represented over 10%
of the revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 March
2019, there was no customer who individually contributed
more than 10% of the revenue of the Group.

FEEFZEHR

P EH E2020F3A31B tFE — £
KEEORY R B2EPER AL
44,045,000/ 7T - G A& B 2 I A A
10% ° N & Z2019F 3 A1 B L F & © #
EENEPHAEE ZWAREIRBI0% -



iy rexmERAT 202058

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR MR
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EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE
OTHER INCOME 8. HfW A
Other income includes: Hag A8 45
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Bank and other interest income R1T M E AR B U A 3,191 3,343
Rental income from short-term leasing of HEEEEFECHSWA
stock of properties 1,727 2,422
Dividend income from investment in T EEEZRBWA
an equity instrument - 919

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. HtW=EREE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Net exchange loss FE 5 &5 18 )5 5 (25,577) (9,682)

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant BEEWMZE EWMEEEZ

and equipment (B18) W (15) 2,471
Gain on disposal of investment properties EEREWMEZNE - 2,155
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments & & 78 1~ 18 & #0182 i 25 - 44,121
(25,592) 39,065
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HZE2020F3A31AIFE

10. NET (LOSS) GAIN ON FAIR VALUE

11.

10. T RMEEZAFEESS (F

CHANGES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS B)WRFE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss on changes in fair value of investments H{EEBEBEHE TAKEZ AT
in debt instruments held for trading BEEZHEHE (58,384) (11,633
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of HBIEEERRITAREZAYF
investments in equity instruments held for B 1{& & & (E518) W 2%
trading (165,382) 311
Gain on change in fair value of other financial it & f&E 2 A FEBEEZE
asset s - 12,461
(223,766) 1,139
OTHER EXPENSES 11. HtE B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FAEXT
Acquisition-related costs for potential BT BEEETE B AR 2 R
projects 22,721 26,983
Net development expenses for resort project HEERIEH 2 B & E H H%E
in the PRC 6,024 6,377
28,745 33,360
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HE202063A31BLFE
12. IMPAIRMENT LOSS (RECOGNISED) 12. TREEZBEES (BR) &
REVERSED ON FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET B 7 &8
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed on U E R ZRIEEIE (ER
loans receivable [ (124,003) 20,429
Impairment loss recognised on trade and B kEMEWERRZRE
other receivables (including interest EiEER (e EEWF L)
receivables) (34,782) (41)
Impairment loss recognised on amounts due & U B & N T 21 18 2 R B B 18
from associates R (7,350) (@79)
(166,135) 20,113
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. A& B A&
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAEXT
Borrowing costs on: BERA :
Bank borrowings FITHE R 31,520 44,261
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE T FE PR AR 2 TR IB 3,969 5,092
Imputed interest expense on other payables E b B EEZ 2 #HE F S X 193 873
Imputed interest expense on lease liabilites fE & & 2 #HEEF B 5 X 590 -
Other borrowings H g 3% 4,538 7,677
40,810 57,903
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BIEBERME - B R
construction in progress (included in BEBANZERIRER
property, plant and equipment) e ¢ (2,771) (11,232)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERMEREZ
properties under development for HEEEEMEEARY
sale (included in stock of properties) g (9,646) (9,776)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERZERREMEER
investment properties under 2 B
development (4,388) (4,888)

24,005 32,007
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HZE2020F3A31AILFE

13. FINANCE COSTS (CONTINUED) 13. BE B A (8])
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BMAERNZIEERAIETEREEHES
costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds ZEERA MERNEBEEIRERE
were specifically invested in the project and properties RIEE RYE -

14.

during the year.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 14. EE - ERTHRAEREE#MS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

() ESERBEETBRAEMHS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments

EfHEMNANEQR9: ER)ES

BEAZBEMT
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six
(2019: seven) directors are as follows: FAMETNEENETMNENS
(2019 : #&) -
None of the directors has waived any emoluments
during the year (2019: Nil).
Retirement
benefit
Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EERA Fees Salaries bonus**  contribution Total
RIAER
we M BB 5T &t =K &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHERT FHERT FHET FEXT THER
2020
Executive directors HITEE
Lau Tom Ko Yuen =R 462 6,068 10,506 607 17,643
Sue Ka Lok ik 3% 4% 409 - - - 409
Wu Yan Yee A IR 126 576 48 18 768
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE
Chan Shu Kin e 18 B2 865 - - - 865
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =HER 623 — — — 623
Leung Chung Ki* RINE 179 - - - 179
2,664 6,644 10,554 625 20,487
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EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 14. EEX - EETTHRAEBREEMNSE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) EERESTTHRAEMS (E)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Retirement
benefit
Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EEHEZ Fees Salaries bonus*  contribution Total
BRIKER
we £ I UL =¥ Sl BTN =1
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET THET
2019
Executive directors HITES
LLau Tom Ko Yuen 2= R 440 5,779 482 578 7,279
Sue Ka Lok Rt 389 — — - 389
Wu Yan Yee HA TR 120 542 105 18 785
Independent non-executive directors B I FHTEE
Chan Shu Kin e 18 B2 824 - — — 824
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa EBER 593 — — - 593
Leung Chung Ki* P2y /N 142 - — — 142
Mok Yat Fan, Edmond" 5| 105 — — — 105
2,613 6,321 587 596 10,117
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above FXFIRBRITEENES  ARENER
are for their services in connection with management ARAAIRAEBSEHKZEHRORBEmMIEL -

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

XA BIRRTEETNES SRS
The independent non-executive directors’ EAKRAREEREMREMEL -
emoluments shown above are for their services as
directors of the Company.
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(&)

14. EE BETHAEREEME

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

(b)

Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to Chief Executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.

#

ke

Resigned with effect from 1 June 2018.
Appointed during the year ended 31 March 2019.
The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on individual

performance which has been determined and approved by
the remuneration committee.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2019: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 14(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2019:
four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of
the Group, are as follows:

() ESRESTHRAEME (F)
FERAEENMB/ARBEFERAE
(HEREZSTTHRAR)  EXMHEE
BeMEeBRREFEREIFRAEIIRE
IR 2% -

# B2018F6 A1 HEBI(T -
* REE2019F3AN B It FEHRT -

B LA IR B E R KRR E 2B
B URHFMWEESETE RIE -

b) EEME

REBAREELMNSESHEAESD
BARQNR —RBEE(R019: — K E
£) HM S # B E XM 14 F
%ﬁo

HpBASERE 2M% (2019 M
H)BE@RFABZEMEWT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEFR 13,684 14,328

Discretionary bonus (note) BB IEAT (B 7t) 52,319 1,094
Retirement benefit scheme RIRE R B 3R

contributions 315 362

66,318 15,784
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14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

14. EE BETHAEREEME
(48)

(b) EEME (B

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REZHMERBNWT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7t & 2,000,000 7T - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T Z 3,000,000 7% 7T 2 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T & 4,500,000 7T
(note) (Ktit) 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 % 7T Z 6,000,000 7% 7T
(note) (Ki7t) - 1*
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7% 7T % 7,000,000 7% 7T
(note) (k3] - 1
HK$56,500,001 to HK$57,000,000 56,500,001 }# 7T % 57,000,000 % 7T
(note) (K1at) 1 -
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

note: For the year ended 31 March 2020, an aggregate amount

of discretionary bonus to members of senior management
(excluding directors) of HK$50,234,000 (2019: HK$826,000)
had been determined and approved by the remuneration

committee.

# The above emoluments represent the remuneration paid/ #
payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.

FA-AEBEYEANRUREHAR
REEXNMEAERMAREE
ERMAREE S 2 2B - HAEQEE
Biw(E -

Kfit - & =2020F3A31H Ik F & % B

ZEGCDETRBE—FERER
50,234,0007% 7T (2019 : 826,0007% JT.)
ZHBERATERELZEKE (TR
RESE) -

LBl EEMERE S 2B
ENSREREKRE(TREER)Z
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15. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

15. BRELAT (B 18) s Al

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived [ % /il (E518) % A 2 05 -
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b & =
(note (a) below) (R X M1 (@) 476 986
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT B &
— Audit services — ZERH 2,876 3,185
— Non-audit services — R ERE 5,982 1,330
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEBRZIFEKAK
an expense 81,126 107,083
Write-down of stock of properties FFABERN A 2 YWEGFTERE
(included in cost of sales) R 18,233 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y R EEREZITE
equipment (note (b) below) (FXHtat ) 41,446 50,234
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZIE
(note (c) below) (FXHiaE) 10,244 —
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KETERES
Land and premises T REF - 12,025
Plant and machinery i I 22 - 1,453
Release of prepaid lease payments S TEA B A - 5,151
Staff costs (note (d) below) B IRA(FXH et () 179,946 194,787
and after crediting: WEEA
Dividend income from investments in BIEEBEREm LTAKRE 2R
equity instruments held for trading A 2,775 1,211
Dividend income from investment in EaITAEKE KBl A
an equity instrument - 919
Rental income from investment properties, H&AME B A - 2K
net of outgoings of HK$1,489,000 X $51,489,000% 7T (2019 :
(2019: HK$3,557,000) 3,557,000% 7) 1,374 5,925
Government grants recognised B 7 58 BT 48 B
(note (e) below) (FXHiiE ) 7,320 8,853
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B £2020F3A31HILFE

15. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 15. BRBLAT (B 18) &R (&)
(CONTINUED)
Bt -
notes:

@ HitEPEEHH

(@) Amortisation of other intangible assets

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Amount provided for the year FERER 520 1,082
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIERERMEFTECHEE
properties under development for sale EEMEEARZHE
(included in stock of properties) (44) (46)
476 986
(o)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ) MHF BHMEREINE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHx FHEIT
Amount provided for the year FERER 41,475 50,366
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of W BIERERMEFEIHEES
properties under development for sale EEMEERZHE
(included in stock of properties) (14) (94)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERESRYE EMEEZENR
construction in progress (included in ZHEEIREANZ HEE
property, plant and equipment) (10) (4)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERBRREMEERZHE
investment properties under
development (5) (34)

41,446 50,234
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15. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(©

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Hiat : (%)

15. BRBi A (B 1R) a7 (&)

€ ERAEEEZNE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amount provided for the year in respect of: FREBER:
— Leasehold lands —HE+i 4,916 -
— Land and buildings — i REF 4,991 —
— Motor vehicles —AE 545 —
10,452 —
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIERERME BB EEHEA
construction in progress (included in ZERIREARAZHE
property, plant and equipment) (208) -
10,244 —
Staff costs @ BIKAK
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)) BEE2ME (i 14) 20,487 10,117
Other staff costs: Hfh 8 ITARA :
Salaries and other benefits (including bonus) T REMBEFR (RIEILLL) 165,825 187,141
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKAE T B3R 2,613 7,596
Share-based payment expense U RBEZAL - -
188,925 204,854
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of properties & : B{EBE R MEFEZHEE
under development for sale (included EEMEEARZHE
in stock of properties) (568) (2,304)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERYE BB ERER
construction in progress (included in JIHERTIREARA YA
property, plant and equipment) (8,113) (6,553)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERBZRHRBREAMEERZH5E
investment properties under
development (298) (1,210)
179,946 194,787
The government grants mainly represent the government cash e BT ERERNRSBERERIEEE R

subsidies on operating cost of ports and logistics and property
businesses of approximately HK$7,320,000 (2019: HK$8,853,000)
recognised in distribution and selling expenses and administrative
expenses during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
other contingencies attached to the receipt of the government

subsidies.

MERATEERTEIBFRE DR R
EMREBEERARENR S 2/
7,320,0007% 7T (2019 : 8,853,000/ 7T.) © FT i
B2 TR 3 B 3 8 K 5 PRI AR ST A At
RAFEH -
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EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

16. TAXATION 16. BiI1E
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Taxation charge (credit) comprises: MBI (A B
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EEMBIM
Current year REE - 15
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFE(BEREB BETR (15) 23
(15) 38
Taxation arising in the PRC excluding FE(TEEEE)EEZRIE:
Hong Kong:
Current year KNEE 32,680 9,449
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEBRBTT (BERE) 2,226 (509)
34,906 8,940
Deferred taxation (Note 43) IR IR (M3 43)
LAT 4 18 (E F 13,684 8,049
Others Hib 8,857 7,701
22,541 15,750
Taxation attributable to the Company and 7&K 2 &) & H K /8 A 7 fE 15 B 18
its subsidiaries 57,432 24,728

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

20183 421 H » BB VA& MiB(2017
FHBUER]) (B75) A E R &M
BR]) HEIAMAHFESHEHE - K
Bl E ZE R 2018 F3 A28 H B BEX BEET
2R FEFER o R IE R ARSI FIS B
B - &EREBE TR H2008 % K F
1% 1R 1 R 8.25% W Bt - 1M #E @200 8 7 7T &Y
i 1R T R 16.5% B o T & M AR Fl
FMEMEHEER 2 EEERE 2R FKE
B E — T E16.5% MM E o
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16. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%
for both years.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the taxation arising in
the PRC excluding Hong Kong included an income tax
charge of approximately HK$28,065,000, which
represented the PRC income tax charged on the gain on
disposal of subsidiaries (see Note 47 for details). The
capital gain derived from equity rights transfer by a non-
resident enterprise, representing the difference between
the consideration and the cost of equity rights, is subject
to a tax rate of 10%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (P A R HAE + 118 {E
T E 1 T{541) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (2 A R HAE + i 18 E
1T EBIZHeAmAl) effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of
the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.

16. Bi1E (§)

ARRABEZRRE MM EH FEH X E
BHPENEBRHGEAVHBRRME LT
BER-BENERDEMESFE 2G5 E
AR A HZ B E16.6% At &

RETECEMSBETEEMEED
REXRMEFABERAR  AEERF
Z M8 A AR E R B R R 25% ©

B E2020F3A3IHIEFE (T &
RAEBEEZHRBEEMGHRILELD
28,065,000/ 7T+ A& Bt HE M B A 8 (F
R sH47) 2 WXt 2 AR EH -
—AERCXEEREEELE CEARK
wm (AR ESERER AR Z58) BRH X
10% & Hi °

BIEA1994F1 A1 B E M 2R FE A
ERHEFME + I8 ERETHRO) - LKA
1995F 1 A27 B B A 2 E AR £ H
Bl T B ERE TR ERAAD) TE
REHENEERR L ERE  BEY
T2 B 75 58 B 2 YR A 15 B HR 35 (8 5B (AR R (
FEARLME T ISEREITE) R E
BB E) LLH30%E0% T EH 2 &
HE TR B £ R (E RS o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

16. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

HZE20205E3A31HILFEE
16. Bi1E (§)
AFEZMIEBEST HEGE KRR

AT (B 1R) @ M 2 H AR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Loss) profit before taxation BT (B 18) 3% T (507,523) 89,084
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable %75 B a) A # = i@ B 2 i f XK
in the respective jurisdictions SEZHIE (50,355) 20,663
Tax effect of share of results of associates/ H{EH & AT,/ &L E
joint ventures ZRBE 14,834 (7,210)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax & % 7% /5 T 1~ A #0085 Sz 2
purpose B e 11,976 23,642
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ERBHEBERBRKAZ
purpose MEEE (2,466) (3,226)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FMEERBMEEREBZHBETE 46,037 3,768
Tax effect of other deductible temporary R VEME SR E fh 0] 3035 Ba S = 28
difference not recognised LR E 24,592 243
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BALARER B EEE 2
previously not recognised M E 1) (4,075)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible ) i 5& Al 7 #E72 = £ b 7] 41
temporary difference previously not RREE BB E
recognised (43) (14,628)
Effect of LAT in respect of the fair value MEEMERNTFEEZHER
changes in investment properties THRERFE 13,684 8,049
Effect of LAT for stock of properties MEGFTEZ tHIBER 2 FE 512 —
Tax effect of LAT THRERZREEE (3,549) (2,012)
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFERETR (BEREE) 2,211 (486)
Taxation charge for the year AEEHREAXH 57,432 24,728
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17. DISTRIBUTION

No dividend was recognised as distribution during both
years.

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not
to recommend for shareholders’ approval the payment of
any final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
Nil).

18. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

17. 9K
BERENMEEENERAEDE -
ARFEEROBRATESERE RN

HE2020F3A31H IEFE 2 (MK E MK
B(2019 : ) o

18. #R(BR) & F

ARREEAREFEEREXR(ER) A
TR IA T BURFTEBH

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to AUTESRERNEE) AT
owners of the Company for the purpose of 7 &R QAT B AELEE
basic (loss) earnings per share (E48) %@ A (572,268) 49,208
2020 & 2019
Number of
shares
& HE
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose A LAGTE SR ER (E1E) BT 2 @RS
of basic (loss) earnings per share 5,519,580,572

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2019 did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options which the exercise price was
higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares.

RABREE2020F3831H IEFEI &
FEEETETHSLEBRRMD - 22
2019 3HSIHILFRE 2 HREFTRFN 2
HEUEEBRITEARARF AR WD
HRETEESRARATAIRMN ZFEHT
{go
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

190. 1% - W R RE

Furniture,
Port LPG and CNG Motor fixtures
infrastructure  logisticsand  vehicles and
Plant and Port andrelated distribution and computer Construction
Buildings machinery equipment facilities facilities vessels equipment  in progress Total
BICABRER ®E-
171 BOEER BEXARY AER £EBR
- ES RE%fE BORE - HAERE ARIERE i EHRE HRIE Ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET TR TR FEx  FER  FER  FER AR
COST D&
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 A1 A8 239,345 8,756 173,606 634,199 535,986 138,184 50,918 299,160 2,080,154
Exchange realignment [ i §§% (13,984) (611) (10,139) (36,876) (31,755) (7,632) (2,681) (17,269)  (120,847)
Additions NE - — 253 2,106 303 1,091 2,188 84,153 90,094
Transfers 283 - - 2,467 2,173 13 204 50 (4,907) -
Transfer to investment  EEZREYE

properties (42) - - — - - - - (42)
Disposal BE 8,312 - (7,037) (717) (207,753) (13,175) 618) — (287,612
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3HA31H 217,007 8,245 159,150 600,885 296,794 118,672 49,857 361,137 1,811,747
Exchange realignment  [E & 3% (11,379) (540) (5,603) (27,168) (18,871) (5,358) (2,553) (11,399)  (82,871)
Additions RE - - 1,482 2,602 559 1,544 4,258 67,667 78,112
Transfers =304 - - 595 2,509 - 629 16 (3,749) -
Reclassified as assets ~ E#H 558 A {E

held for sales HEZEE

(Note 37) (Bre£37) (66,016) - (37,238) (284,418) - (14,333) (3,303) —  (405,308)
Disposal of subsidiaries i & }f & 2 @)

(Note 47) (BiaF47) (66,976) - (116,803) (294,410 - (42,644)  (11,632) (337,435)  (869,900)
Disposal RE (2,221) - (1,583) - (22,419) (7,660) (715) - (34,598)
At 31 March 2020 R202063 4318 70,415 7,705 - - 256,063 50,850 35,928 76,221 497,182
DEPRECIATIONAND  $HERFE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 R201854 A1A8 60,964 7,880 35,024 46,897 473,531 62,924 34,576 - 721,796
Exchange realignment  [E & F5% (3,554) (460) (2,033) (2,696) (28,092) (3,373) (1,755) - (41,963)
Provided for the year KEERR 6,412 - 10,429 13,739 8,036 8,211 3,539 - 50,366
Eliminated on transferto & & 7 1% B ¥ ¥

investment properties Eag (26) - - - - - - - (26)
Eliminated on disposal (& & 5 ¥ i (5,146) — (5,356) (247) (205,022 (10,989 (581) - (227,341)
At 31 March 2019 #2019 3A31H 58,650 7,420 38,064 57,693 248,453 56,773 35,779 - 502,832
Exchange realignment  [E 5 3% (3,375) (485) (1,472) (2,794) (16,137) (3,158) (1,842) - (29,263)
Provided for the year REFEHIR 4,441 - 4,554 8,607 16,774 4,443 2,656 - 41,475
Reclassified as assets ~ EF DM AEE

held for sales HEZEE

(Note 37) (Br#£37) (8,096) - (12,661) (34,108) - (7,436) (2,589) - (64,890)
Eliminated on disposal of (& ff 8 7 7] 6

subsidiaries (Note 47) %13 (Kt 47) (12,847) - (27,93) (29,398) - (2,064) (6,512 - (78,756)
Eliminated on disposal [z & B ¥ 84 (2,096) - (550) - (21,549) (7,085) (667) - (31,947)
At 31 March 2020 R202053 4318 36,677 6,935 - - 227,541 41,473 26,825 - 339,451
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 #H2020F 3831 H 33,738 770 - - 28,522 9,377 9,103 76,221 157,731
At 31 March 2019 H2019F3A31H 158,357 825 121,086 543,192 48,341 61,899 14,078 361,137 1,308,915
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y15 - W E R E (&)
(CONTINUED)
EE RS (E R TR RSN B

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other BEULEGENE  FXMT:
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: B3 HHEEERE K
50F (A& &
Buildings Over the period of the %)
relevant leases or fifty % N 5% 1 10%
years, whichever is shorter B 0% 6%
Plant and machinery 10% BOEZRB@ARE 2%-20%
Port equipment 6% BB RRREHE  4%-10%
Port infrastructure and 2%-20% RART K7 88
related facilities B3ii)
LPG and CNG logistics and 4%-10% RE N A AR 2.6%-20%
distribution facilities RAREE 8%-20%
Motor vehicles and vessels  2.6%-20% ER B 20%-33"/,%
Furniture and fixtures 8%—-20%

Computer equipment 20%-33"/,%
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EHZE2020F3A31HILFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS 20. EFAHEEE
As at As at
31 March 1 April
2020 2019
A 20204 R 20194
3A31H 4H1H8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Leasehold lands HE 44,702 306,311
Land and buildings T REF 19,703 9,845
Motor vehicles a1 499 1,102
64,904 317,258

Leasehold lands represent up-front payments made for
obtaining the land-use rights related to property and ports
and logistics operations in the PRC. In addition, the Group
has obtained the right of use of other land and buildings
as its offices and business premises through tenancy
agreements, which are typically negotiated for terms
ranging from 2 to 10 years as at 31 March 2020.

Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$16,300,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The expenses related to short-term leases and leases with
lease term ending within 12 months from the date of initial
application for offices and business premises that are
exempted from recognition as right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$7,190,000 and the total cash outflow for
leases amounted to HK$12,559,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
certain offices and business premises. As at 31 March
2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed above.

HEtTHEARSENPEZMERERD
IR RESERBz TWFEREMELZ
B 3 o AN R2020F3 A31H - A&
EEaAHERENSEM Lt HmREFT
FERE WEAERRERERS %
ZHERB s ATHR—RAMFETF

%o

HE20200F3A31IBILFEE  FRAEEE
NE & %8 516,300,000/8 It °

BE2020F3A31IHIEFE #BEERA
FERAEEEZHAZRERSH2REM
ERFAHREXERBA SR 12EARE
RezHMEBB2FEZ A7,190,0007 T - i
HE 2R &% 4% /512,559,000% 7T ©

AEBEBRETHAEREBIGMGIAL
EIMHE - 20203 H31H  mHAEE
HEemBHHERSIHERN EX R HHE
EHREEE -
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. BEWE
Leasehold
properties in Developed Land under
the PRC land development Total
BBz
HEWE CHELH B R R £ty &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHT FET
(note fffiza) (note [ff3#b)
FAIR VALUE AEEE
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 A1H 274,708 474,102 601,735 1,350,540
Exchange realignment fE 5 (16,002) (27,619 (35,050) (78,671)
Transfer from property, plantand e #7% « # 0 % 53 4
equipment and prepaid lease WRFEMEERIE
payments A 2,386 — - 2,386
Additions NE 3,285 — 8,940 12,225
Disposal RE (717) - — (717)
Net increase in fair value recognised R 47 & U 2 & W #E 2
in the consolidated income L FEEE
statement F 5,633 17,578 15,507 38,718
At 31 March 2019 RA2019F3 A31H 269,288 464,061 591,132 1,324,481
Exchange realignment fE 5 3% (9,781) (30,779) (39,663) (80,223)
Additions NE - - 6,002 6,002
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47)  H &K B A 7
(Bt zt47) (187,217) - - (187,217)
Net increase (decrease) in fair value FA4r & R R NIER
recognised in the consolidated 2R EEE
income statement () F88 (3,151) 16,554 33,260 46,663
At 31 March 2020 A2020%F3 A31H 69,139 449,836 590,731 1,109,706
notes: /%LE .
(@  Inprior years, the Group completed the reclamation of certain land @ RBEFERN AEBTHRARTELGES

area and obtained the certificate of completion of land reclamation

(the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project engineering and

construction manager in respect of certain land area (the “Formed

Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Upon obtaining the

certificate, such Formed Land held for capital appreciation had
been recognised as land held under operating lease and classified

and accounted for as investment properties.

(b) In connection with the reclamation of certain land area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet completed,
the land leveling process (mainly representing the sand filling work
to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land Being Formed”). Upon
the commencement of land leveling process, the Land Being

Formed that held for rentals and/or capital appreciation as
investment properties had been recognised as land under

development and classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

TrREsHEIR UGETLiBRE
(EFBL)REHAAEKREBERIRZRE
EREHEHZEARABL 2B E (X
ED -RESZEER  Z/HIEEALEZ
EFRITHEERARELEHERAEZ

T WHBRRARRREYE -

b BRPEIHEETLIHREZAETRE
ME AEBCRMAIHMFETR(ZE
EEADTUFEFEARE)((FEH L
Wl ERARTER RFEH L FETIE
W REREMEHRTBER REREEL
FEA IO HERBMBE PR L A
RABRIIEREDE -
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out as at those dates by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The
management works closely with the external qualified
professional valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
and inputs for fair value measurement and reports to the
board of directors from period to period.

In determining the fair value of leasehold properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
The comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

In determining the fair value of Formed Land, the highest
and best use of the Formed Land is for tourist and resort
use, which correlates to the zoning of the area for tourist
resort by the government. The comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of
recent transacted prices of comparable lands is made.
Comparable lands of similar size, characteristic and
location are analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of capital values. Certain costs, including government
levies and all necessary fees and expenses associated
with the change of the Formed Land for tourist and resort
use to be charged by the government, which are the best
estimate based on the latest information available to the
management of the Company, have been considered in
arriving at the fair value of the Formed Land.

In determining the fair value of Land Being Formed, the
same highest and best use and the same comparison
method are adopted and valuation has been considered
for further costs to be expended for the development of
the Land Being Formed into Formed Land. Further costs
for completing the land leveling process and other
development works as at 31 March 2020 are estimated to
be approximately HK$432 million (2019: HK$463 million).

21.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

REW* (H)

7K &£ B 72020 3 A31 B K%20194 3 A 31
BZREMEZ ATFEERKEAHER
SEMERECBUAEREEGBEMSP
WELETEBERNERARBEITZMER
H- BEBERIIEAERZEGHEMER
S UMATEEFEHEEEZEE
REASE YA EECER-

RETHEMEZATEER WENHNK
BhRERELAEARAE RABZLR
ERAI B BMEZ RORXERERR
HE-HEE MHERMHBEEZATEL
BMEETON UREXREEERAF
FE#

RETEFEIMZAFEERR FE
TwnsskREAERKERERD
& E R BT K% R R B R IREE
BE - KB ZHEBOENAIE LR T b 2 &
MRREEMSERE - HEE  EE kit
HEEZAELBRIMETON  UBLE
AEEBEFRAFLEER -ETHRABERF
BELABRFWRAE FELWEEES
RELERBEEBZMALTER LA
XRBRBRELAAFAERBNRHELR
tEhZz & EMRF) HEEZEBUABLD
TR NFEE-

REFFEP I ATFEER - FRAMHE
A&EmkaERE RERLEE  R#ETT
HERTZEEFERIHERADFEL
MFTE AR E — AR TR T FET
R HEMERE TIE 2 — PR ARR20204F
3A31B1EEH 4 A4.3218 % 7T (2019 : 4.63
BEIT) °
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

One of the key inputs used in valuing the leasehold
properties is the market price per square meter of
comparable properties which ranged from RMB658 to
RMB10,300 (2019: RMB410 to RMB13,725), using direct
comparison approach and taking into account of the
difference in the nature, location and condition. The
increase in the market price per square meter of
comparable properties would result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment properties, and vice versa.

One of the key unobservable inputs is the 20% of saleable
land discount on the comparable lands applied by the
valuer in valuing the Formed Land and Land Being
Formed. A slight change in the saleable land discount
used would result in a significant change in fair value
measurement of the Formed Land and Land Being
Formed, while a slight change in the other unobservable
inputs in valuing the leasehold properties would have no
significant effect to their fair value.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
and methodology used in the prior year. The fair value
hierarchy of the measurement of the investment properties
as at 31 March 2020 is Level 3. There are no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

For the Formed Land, the Group may have to obtain
certain appropriate certificates for the disposal. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these
certificates for the Group.

21.

REW* (H)

HEMEGEBERAZEF —EHEIEZHAH
BAAUELEMERAREESTE AR
#10,3007C (2019 : ARBE4OTLE AR
18725 TL) NEZBFHARAMBER Ty
FREELEE TZRIIME - NER
MRZAE A BELEEMEZEFHL AT
GEREA BERREMELAFEEL
T RZINR e

RREFEI R FEALHMEERAZ
EP AT ERAEREABERMGER
RARAIE LB 2 20% Al $5 & L 37
EoAHELTREEMEYKEEHD
FEI R FEF L 2 AT EABFEL
REXEY MEEMEGEESTZEMIE
AERBARBEMEGBTIEUEQT
BEBRKERTE-

FTE Az B Bl R 77 0% 81 K F 3 & %
o WEWMEFEN2020F3A31THZA
FEESHEAF=-H TN RE=ZHIL
£:32 NI

HEFEIHWNT AEEXFTREET
PHEBEENELE - RENERR A2
FAEERRAEENDGZEEERLE
BREH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balances as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 mainly relate
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value
to properties under development for sale, property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments were analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

22.

23.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

RBEHIEE

M2020%F K2019F3HB B 2 EH T E M
URFBIHE CEREEEHA A& H
FHT I TERERAAERE NI
FERIREMARE IEE THEE 2 TEH
R UEKEBEEZEEXNAKERES
BREFEREDPME WE - BB EREE
RIREME(WER) -

BAAEERE

AEBZENEERRAENMIERE RS
LI

2019

HK$’'000

FBT

Non-current assets EREEE 302,131
Current assets BB E 4,180

306,311
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24, Hih B &EE

Motor
vehicles Club and
registration golf club Land Rights of Customer
marks memberships premium operation base  Know-how Total
B R
RE SRR
HERRE BEE 1R E RERE EBEFE®R EWRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TET TET TET
(note fifita)  (note fifztb)  (note fifztc) (note fifztd)  (note fifite)  (note fifif
COosT B
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 1,168 905 16,237 45,182 2,556 2,644 68,692
Exchange realignment [ 3{ 5 % - (49) (947) (2,636) (150) (154) (3,936)
At 31 March 2019 A2019F3A31H 1,168 856 15,290 42,546 2,406 2,490 64,756
Exchange realignment &5 AR - (52) (823) (1,761) (99) (103) (2,838)
Write-off i 85 - - - (40,785) (2,307) (2,387) (45,479)
Disposal of subsidiaries  H & if & A a]
(Note 47) (Htzta7) - - (4,272) - - - (4,272)
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 1,168 804 10,195 - - - 12,167
AMORTISATION #ey
At 1 April 2018 A2018F4 A1 H - 110 11,095 43,827 2,556 2,644 60,232
Exchange realignment B 5 A2 - ) (646) (2,555) (150) (154) (3,512
Provided for the year REEFE - 46 137 849 - - 1,032
At 31 March 2019 A2019F3A31H - 149 10,586 42,121 2,406 2,490 57,752
Exchange realignment (& i, 3§ % - (10) (661) (1,744) (99) (103) (2,617)
Provided for the year KEER - 44 68 408 - - 520
Write-off 1 85 - - - (40,785) (2,307) (2,387) (45,479)
Eliminated on disposal of & [ff & 2 &) &
subsidiaries (Note 47) %184 (Hf7t47) - - (841) - - - (841)
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H - 183 9,152 - - - 9,335
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 M202063 A31H 1,168 621 1,043 - - - 2,832
At 31 March 2019 M201963HA31H 1,168 707 4,704 425 - — 7,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

notes:

(@)

The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the
opinion that the motor vehicles registration marks are worth at
least their carrying values.

For the club membership in Hong Kong which has indefinite useful
life, the directors are of the opinion that it is worth at least its
carrying value.

For the golf club membership in the PRC, the amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful life of 17 years.

The amount represents the land premium in Wuhan and Yichang,
the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through the acquisition of
the relevant business and the amount is to be amortised on the
same basis as the related prepaid lease payments over 33 to 70
years.

Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate LPG
business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the period of estimated
operation and the operation licence period of 50 years.

Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation was provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for motor
vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation was provided on a
straight-line basis over 10 years.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

24. Htt B & & (&)
At

@ ZEAEAEERVUCAFH -BFEERRA
EERRBEERLHESNEREE -

b HEETRAUEAFHNTESHEEMS
EERREEEEIREKREE-

HRPEEMRREMEEMS  ITURERE
FEEAERFHITFHE -

© ZEBERRAKECLBEERELTRH
URPERETREED 2 L E - JhiR
HRMENHEFEMARZ EERIZET0
FREH -

) KEBRRRETPERETLL2RLEABR
K2 N AFEE - RERTIAERE
ERAR2HAREEFATEHROFZR
ISRt Sl

e BFEBRARXREBURBEBAMKERLEA
HMREBBEFPBEREZATEE  HUERE
T10F N#H -

M BREREARABRICAHRRBREZTE
BiRE 2 A FEE  TDAEHREEI0FA
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020F3A31HILFE
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25, BtE N TER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Cost of unlisted investments in associates & & 3 F f Bt & A 7] 2 5K 289,271 411,854
Share of post-acquisition profits, other BOEKEZZS EMcrm
comprehensive income and other sk R E R 0B E WK
reserves, net of dividends received & B 5,427 242,737
294,698 654,591

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the unlisted
investments include:

M

(i)

48.23% equity interest in Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of South Shore Holdings Limited (“South
Shore”), which is engaged in building construction,
civil engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management
services and investment in properties; and

40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise
registered in the PRC and operates the container
terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
As at 31 March 2020, this investment is classified as
held for sale (Note 37).

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 58(c).

MR20205F3 A31H &20193A31H » 3
FTHERERE:

) RREZEXESEEERQFA(RER
¥])24823% B AR R AR A
EmrRERERAR(EEE @J)Z
FEBWMBAT  REBFESE
ARIRE HREE BEEHE- ?&TJ@
REEEERBEEMERE R

i) MNIEHEEERSEEHEEFARA
AT %A 240%0% 7 #
wm RARARTEEMZPINEE
_IJ:% Eq]./léﬁ‘é/lg/%zﬁgﬁﬂi
FETETE - W2020F3A31H » &
DEAFELE (MEES7) -

AEBZFTEHZ QA R2020F & 2019
F3A31H ZFBEAN M 5E58() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The financial information in respect of Paul Y. Engineering
and its subsidiaries based on financial information
prepared by management in accordance with accounting
policies of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019 is set out below:

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

25. BE NFEE (&)

EBRREZERENE QRN EE20204F
N2019F3 A1 A IEFE 2 3 7% & B (E
REBRERRBAESESHBERE CHE
ERD T

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Financial position: B 7 AR5
Non-current assets IERBEE 383,829 323,250
Current assets MENVEE 4,900,504 4,518,617
Current liabilities TEBEE (4,603,421) (3,988,952)
Non-current liabilities IEREBEE (69,884) (9,227)
Net assets attributable to the owners of BERNREEARBGEEFE
the associate 611,028 843,688
Reconciliation of its net assets to the HEEESFEEBE R A #ER
carrying amount of the interest in the BRI E < ¥ B8R -
associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners of BERNREAEARBGEEFE
the associate 611,028 843,688
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest s £ & {5 Bt & A 7] A HEE R
in the associate pasal 48.23% 48.23%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin -~ AR&EBE Z B & A RIER 2
the associate BREE 294,698 406,911
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 25, Bf& N T #E = (&)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Results of the associate: /NS S
Revenue A 10,982,285 9,347,637
(Loss) profit for the year FE (18 EF (221,715) 41,167
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHME2mEMAX (10,945) (10,097)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for  FE 2@ (5 %) YR 4258
the year (232,660) 31,070
There are no significant restrictions on the ability of BENTNRSREFRBESERBEER
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of EESEEAEEEE 2ERNBRAEE
cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by NAEZEERRH -
the Group.
IRHE M RFEAERRI12A31H
The financial year end date of Jiangyin Sunan is 31 MAEBA B R BEERAEHEER
December and its latest financial information that is 2019F12A31H LB FE 2 &EH -
available to the Group is in respect of its financial year I - 7N 2 B 722020 F K 201 9$3 ﬂ 318 &
ended 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the Group’s HESBMERAICEERER DD AIRZ
share of results and interests in the principal associate at & QA R B £ 20194 & 201 8¢ 12 A 31
31 March 2020 and 2019 are determined based on the AtFERRZEABM2UBERETE -
financial information of the associate for the years ended EZBME N FEREARER 2 F4H
and as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively. No R EEEENEARSHHEE -
significant transaction or event is noted between the year
end dates of the associate and of the Group. B IR RE 220194 K2018412
RA3BAILEEZHBAMBER (EREIR
Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangyin RRASREEHBRER UG AR

Sunan based on financial information prepared by o
management in accordance to accounting policies of the

Group for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

is set out below:
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE20205E3A31HILFEE

25. BE NFEE (&)

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
R2019%F MR 20184
12HA31H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
Financial position: B I AR5
Non-current assets FERHEE 120,919 140,869
Current assets MENE = 502,803 502,557
Current liabilities mEAE (11,951) (21,864)
Non-current liabilities FERBBE (1,966) (2,362)
Net assets attributable to the owners of BE R NREEARLEEFE
the associate 609,805 619,200
Reconciliation of its net assets to HEEFEEABS A ARIER
the carrying amount of the interest in FRE B 2 H R
the associate:
Net assets attributable to the owners of BE R NREEARBLEEFE
the associate 609,805 619,200
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest Z< £ & {5 Bt & A 7 B =S
in the associate sl 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in =~ AEB 2 Bt & RN AR 2
the associate (note) BREE (M aE) 243,922 247,680
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
HZE2019% HE20184F
12A31H 12H31H
LtFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue WA 104,666 105,648
Profit for the year FERA 31,921 33,399
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHM2mEMAX (41,316) (86,212)
Total comprehensive expense for the year  FE 2 HEM X 458 (9,395) (2,813)

note: The Group's interest in Jiangyin Sunan is classified as assets held

for sale (Note 37) as at 31 March 2020.

Bt 72020438318 - AEBMN T &/ A4

SO BRAFEHEZEE (HH37) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 25, Bf& N T #E = (&)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of AREBED K IEEREN —H 2019 —[)
losses of one (2019: one) of the associates. The ERBZEE - Rt ARBERAEBEES
accumulated unrecognised share of losses attributable to EESB(ERNRALCEXETEERB)NA
the Group (based on unaudited management accounts) 54,770,0007% 7T (2019 : 54,770,000/ 7T ) °
amount to approximately HK$54,770,000 (2019:
HK$54,770,000).
26. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 26. ST EES
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures & & R I3 LT A & 1 2K A 115,038 113,838
Share of post-acquisition profits and HukER 2SN REMEE
other comprehensive expense, net of ¥ MkRERRE
dividends received (6,777) 4,608
108,261 118,446
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31 KREBZFEAE D ER2020F & 2019

March 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 58(d). F3A31H ZF BN 5E58(d) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 26. & ERES (E)

(CONTINUED)
TX 2 BEERENIEXBEZAR

The summarised financial information below represents NAEIREHEEWE R B M LR H 52
the consolidated financial information of #T/T<E & %5 BERAFIZEAMKEER  ZZHEER

R /A &) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, i) £ 88815 58 DIEBAEEGHBRERMAA -

PR A 7], which is prepared in accordance with

accounting policies of the Group.

7

N

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial position: B # AR5
Non-current assets FERHEE 195,847 219,046
Current assets mEEE 5,067 5,807
Current liabilities BB & (10,909) (15,559)
Non-current liabilities FRBBE (19,223) (23,358)
Net assets of the joint venture BENTEBESFE 170,786 185,936
Reconciliation of its net assets to HEEFHEEGEPEER
the carrying amount of the interest in BRI E < ¥ B8R -
the joint venture:
Net assets of the joint venture EEPELEEEE 170,786 185,936
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 78 &£ Bl {5 & & 1> £ A
in the joint venture s ]l 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin -~ AEBZ A& b ERERZ
the joint venture EmEE 85,393 92,968
Results of the joint venture: AEDEEE:
Revenue e A 10,835 11,224
(Loss) profit for the year FE(E18)&ET (3,061) 4,748
Other comprehensive expense for the year FE H 2 EFA X (12,089) (11,214)

Total comprehensive expense for the year  FE 2 HE M X 458 (15,150) (6,466)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The Group shares loss of approximately HK$3,810,000
(2019: HK$1,697,000) and carrying amount of
approximately HK$22,868,000 (2019: HK$25,478,000) in
aggregate from joint ventures that are individually not
material to the Group.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint
ventures to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the
Group.

27. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

26. S EER (HE)

ZRERMELAEELTERZEE
¥ AEEEHELZZEGELEL
5 18 #93,810,000/% 7T (2019 : 1,697,000
78 7T ) & BR ™ {8 4922,868,0007% 7T (2019 :
25,478,000 7T) °

& ﬁ%ufﬁfi\l& g E‘Hﬁé‘i\ﬁ;%§$
H BE

SESEERNREEL 2ERHBR
NI ES B EARRS

27. EZTERE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Listed equity securities, at quoted market =il HleK BE5  BREBZ
price in Hong Kong (note a) Mg WmE (M ita) 4,260 14,956
PRC unlisted equity securities (note b) e I I ETmRARE S (M itb) 309,706 360,889
313,966 375,845

notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2020, the investment in Hong Kong listed equity
securities represents 4.47% (2019: 4.47%) equity interests in
South Shore.

et

(a) TA20204%3A31E MEBLTRAZESRZ
EIE4.47%(2019 1 4.47%) f 7= £ B AR HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

)

As at 31 March 2020, the investments in unlisted equity securities
are stated at fair value and include 9.9% equity interest in Jiangsu
YangKou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou
Port Co”), which is engaged in the business of development of port
and related infrastructures of approximately HK$309,706,000 (2019:
HK$360,561,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the investments in unlisted equity securities
also included less than 20% interests in certain PRC companies
held by Yichang Port Group Limited which were mainly engaged in
port related services of approximately HK$328,000. These
investments were disposed through disposal of subsidiaries during
the year (see Note 47 for details).

A reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques appropriate to the market and industry of each
investment. Valuation techniques used to support these valuations
include the asset-based approach which uses the fair market value
of its total assets minus its total liabilities, and the market approach
which uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
businesses.

In determining the fair value of property assets of Yangkou Port Co
under the asset-based approach, the comparison method is
adopted under which comparison based on information of recent
transacted prices of comparable lands is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristic and location are analysed
in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

A key unobservable input being 20% of saleable land discount on
comparable lands of Yangkou Port Co to discount the fair value of
properties by approximately HK$2,699 million (2019: HK$3,019
million), has been applied in valuing the properties. A slight
increase in the saleable land discount used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value measurement of the properties
and hence of the unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5%
increase in the saleable land discount (i.e. revised to 25%), holding
all other variables constant, carrying amount of the properties
would decrease by approximately HK$675 million (2019: HK$755
million), and fair value of the Group’s investment in corresponding
equity instrument would decrease by approximately HK$19 million
(2019: HK$20 million).

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

27. EFZ T EIRE (4B)

Kiat - ()

(b)

HR2020F3A31H I AFEEIERIEL
TRAFHRZLERLERESEOREBAE
ERBEREBZIGHIOEREAHES
RAR(DFABRALD Z29.9%KiE - BEL
309,706,000 7T (2019 : 360,561,000 7T) °

HR2019F3A31H RIELETMBRAESR 2 &
ENMBEEERKEEAERET ARG
EZETEIEREEOHEBERBEZ2FER
Al Z T R20%E & + A #1#1328,0008 7T © 3%
ERECRFRERBHENBRAREE (F
B R M FE4T) o

AFBEZAERGHANDERAERAKAEZT
BRITEEBZEETEAEE - BRI %
EhHEZHENEEREEEAREZ(ERE
REEREGLEBEBEZRAFME) RHEHEE
RERRSEERLATELREELED
ZHBRGMEE 2 EMBHEER) -

BRIBEEEEREZETFABRAMEEE
ZRTFEER  RANATELR L2 &
RRZEREM BEEZ LB HEE &
BERIHBEZATELRYERETOMN - A
HREREBEERAFLE -

MEGEERAZ —BEE2FAJERE ALY
BARKZFEFOBRANELR LM 220%0]
HE TR AEMEZ AT EENELD
26.9918 % 7T (2019 : 3019188 L) » Al $4 &
THTEEN AR SE R ERIELD
BRAFSHZAFEEFAEHEERARD K
IR o H RIS E £ I £ T 5% (BIERT
225%)  MATEHEMBERETE  AYE
2 BEE B #m  #6.7518 7 T (2019 : 7.55
BAEAL)RASERAEREEZTIAREZR
B {E #5 8 2 £91,900& 7 7T (2019 : 2,000
BB -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

28.

29.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group entered into an
agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive certain construction floor areas of the New
Premises as compensation (the “Compensation”) within
four years from the date of surrender. On 22 December
2017, Yichang Port Group received a notification from the
local government office that the compensation shall be
received by first quarter of 2020. As at 31 March 2019,
the New Premises were still under construction.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Resumption
Properties were transferred to the local government and
the fair value of the Compensation, estimated as

HttERBEE

M20134F3H8H EE BB S B HiH 75
WRNRAEERHZE AEMBRNTBERE
FTHE(THEBEME]D UERESER
(IFEm MEEAKEERRERZ
HRNFNEESZNREM2E TELED
HREEAME(ZME]D - R2017F12 A
2 EEABSEEEMWAIBRFSRAE
WA HER2020F F — = E AT ERZE
E - M2019F3 A3 IRATTNEREZR
n:p o

REE2014F3A3MBIEFE - wBWY
XEOBREGHEBN  ZMEIATEE
EH st A A R#74,420,0007T (793,025,000
BL)BERARERELHEREBEMRS °

RMB74,420,000 (approximately HK$93,025,000), was B H M ;‘F MEEEDN2019F6 AKX B
recognised as deemed consideration and was @SB AR S GEE R M E47) -
approximate to the carrying amount.
These other non-current assets were disposed of through
disposal of subsidiaries at the end of June 2019 (see Note
47 for details).
STOCK OF PROPERTIES 2. YIEFE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
Properties under development for sale (note a) ft H & 1 i ¥ % (Kt it a) 998,953 1,129,309
Completed properties held for sale (note b) B 52 TiEHE W% (Kzb) 523,822 427 555

1,622,775 1,656,864
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29. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

30.

notes:

(@)

Properties under development for sale of approximately
HK$80,835,000 and HK$918,118,000 are situated in Hong Kong
and Jiangsu Province, the PRC, respectively. They comprise (1)
Land Being Formed which is developed for future sale; and (2)
Formed Land which is also developed for future sale in the ordinary
course of business.

At 31 March 2020, properties under development for sale
amounting to approximately HK$345,778,000 (2019:
HK$368,101,000) are carried at net realisable value.

At 31 March 2020, properties under development for sale include
Formed Land of approximately HK$669,673,000 (2019:
HK$711,636,000) for which the Group may have to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed Land. Based
on the past experience, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no material impediment to obtain these certificates for
the Group.

Completed properties held for sale are situated in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. At 31 March 2020, completed properties held
for sale amounting to approximately HK$367,180,000 (2019:
HK$240,368,000) are carried at net realisable value in which
write-down of stock of properties of approximately HK$18,233,000
(2019: Nil) has been recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2020, stock of properties includes an amount
of approximately HK$1,328,135,000 (2019: HK$920,698,000)
which is expected to be realised after more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

20. MEFE (H)

et

@ s & &M E 480835000%F T &
918,118,000 7T 7 Bl iz 1A & & & # Bl )T &
B HEBENBERAEGRBEEZFES
TH ROR—REBBERREERAE
EREE D FR LM -

HR2020F3A3IH HHEEEEMEY
345,778,000/ 7T (2019 : 368,101,0007% T )
R #IRFESEE -

MN2020F3AB1TH - HHEEERMEBREL
669,673,000/ 7T (2019 : 711,636,000 7T )
ZEFELH MALSEFRESETAESR
ZPHEZDFE L - BIBUAELER - &
ARAEERBAEENDNEZEEFERT
MmE AR -

b) EBEXIHEHEVEMLAREIHRE B
202043 A31A ER IHELEDEY
367,180,000 7T (2019 : 240,368,000 7T )
RO IR FENE - HR Y ETEREMR
#718,233,00078 7T (2019 © ) B A F AR °

MR20205F3A31H MEFE B IEEH
BRmEHTEEBA T —@AAKE
I 7 & % £1,328,135,000/8 7T (2019 :
920,698,000 7T °

30. EWE K

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FBT

The amounts, net of allowance, include: SR ER 2
Fixed-rate loans receivable (note a) FEWEEFEER (Hita) 132,944 164,200
Floating-rate loans receivable (note b) FEWOE B R E R (A D) 17,175 66,122
150,119 230,322
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

30. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

31.

notes:

() The gross amount of loans receivable of approximately
HK$213,800,000 (2019: HK$170,000,000), before netting off
cumulative loss allowance of approximately HK$80,856,000 (2019:
HK$5,800,000), are unsecured, bear fixed interest rates from 10%
10 15% (2019: 11% to 15%) and are repayable within one year (2019:
one year).

(b) The gross amount of loans receivable of approximately
HK$68,700,000 (2019: HK$68,700,000), before netting off
cumulative loss allowance of approximately HK$51,525,000 (2019:
HK$2,578,000), are unsecured, bear variable interest rates from 5%
10 6% (2019: 5% to 6%) over the Best Lending Rate of Hong Kong
Dollar as quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“‘HKBLR?”) (i.e. 10% to 11% (2019: 10.125%
to 11.125%)) and are repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group provided HK$124,003,000
(2019: reversal of HK$20,429,000) impairment, in
particular, specific loss allowance of approximately
HK$122,697,000 (2019: Nil) for loans receivable which
have been default and considered as credit-impaired.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
49(b).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand, except for an amount of HK$70,000,000 (2019:
HK$70,000,000), before netting off cumulative loss
allowance of approximately HK$8,750,000 (2019:
HK$1,400,000), bears variable interest at 2% over HKBLR
(i.e. 7% (2019: 7.125%)) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
49(b).

30

31.

. B E R (&)
Wit

@ 0Bk 2 F A 1B % # 480,856,000/8 T
(2019 : 5,800,000/ 7T) Al 2 FE W B R ABFE XY
213,800,0007% 7T (2019 : 170,000,000 7T )
BEKE - L10EE15E (2019 - 11EE15
B)zBEEFEFE WAL —F(2019: —
FIREE -

() 0B 2 F B B B # 49516250008 T
(2019 : 2,578,000/% 7T) Al 2 FE W B R AR B XY
68,700,000 7T (2019 : 68,700,000 7T ) A
EIRH UEBLSEZRTERARZE
THREBEEMNER(BIRERERENE])
IN5EZE6E (2019 : 5EE6E) (BN10E =11
[E (2019 : 10.125[2 = 11,1258 )) 2 % &) 7
KB - WEKREREE-

F RN A& BB F H124,003,000% 7T
(2019 : ¥ [2120,429,0007% 7T ) 2 W 1B #
B HPREBNORBEEAGTEREER
BEZEWRERELBANEBEEREED
122,697,000 7T (2019 : f&) °

BB AT ff S IR R M EE49(0D)

FE Wx Bt & 1 Bl RIR

ERREAREEMR RERERERE
B ME—Ek R BB 48,750,000
7 70 (2019 : 1,400,000 JT ) A 2 X A&
70,000,000 7t (2019 : 70,000,000 7T ) A
BT REBREEF X N2E (AI7E (2019 :
7125E)) 2 FEBFFKRE S -

BB T ff A IR R M EE49(D)
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AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, except for an amount of approximately
HK$3,272,000 (2019: HK$4,668,000) which bears fixed-
rate interest at 6% (2019: 6%) per annum and is repayable
within one year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
49(b).

TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

32.

33.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

Bl -—EaegEhERR

ZxBEBAEEF 2B RARERE
8 H — £ 43,272,000 7t (2019 :
4,668,000/ 7T ) 2 B 1 [E E F F| X6 [E
(2019 : BE)FF B RER —FRNEE -

BB T S IR R M EE49(D)

ESREMEBERERR TR
ICRNE /|

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Trade debtors (note) B 5 B (Y it) 25,295 126,219

Deposits and prepayments & MIENA FOE 49,002 91,225

Interest receivables JiE U F) B 13,725 12,436
Other receivables for ports and BO KRR ER 2 B ER

logistics business 8RR 1,081 3,850
Other receivables for properties development 47 5 35 & % $5 & 2 H b E UL

and sale BRI 29,819 21,466
Other receivables for resort project in RPRERER ZH M EW

the PRC BR 6,904 6,628

Others Hih 28,334 48,785

Total w5t 154,160 310,609

note: As at 31 March 2020, trade debtors from contracts with customers
amounted to HK$24,412,000 (2019: HK$125,706,000). As at 1
April 2018, trade debtors from contracts with customers amounted
to HK$100,146,000. The Group’s credit terms for customers of
ports and logistics segment normally range from 30 days to 90
days.

it 720203 A31H R BEEFANHNZE
5 & W BE X A24,412,0007% T (2019 :
125,706,0007% 7T ) - M2018F4A1H * R &
BEP &K 28 S E WK A100,146,000%
Lo AEBBORYRIBZEFZEES
—MH30EEQANTE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

note: (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors, net of allowance for

V. EERHMEBWERERNR FTEK
A ()

et - (#)

NEZAMAEE NMREEBRRER
BSREERFNBE R TER ZRE DN

credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at the end of MR
the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 90 days Q0HR 5,943 109,263
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBiBIOHEMRI80E R 13,526 16,240
More than 180 days HBiE180 H 5,826 716
25,295 126,219

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s trade debtors
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of

M2020F3A31H  AEE 2 & 5 KWK
AL B 1R 4 R ™ {8 A&20,238,000/8 7T

HK$20,238,000 (2019: HK$25,464,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$10,464,000
(2019: HK$3,172,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default as they have no history of defaulting
on repayments. The Group does not hold any collateral over the

(2019 : 25,464,000/ 1) Z FE W BR 3 - B BF
FRERBEAHCI S - SR HERF
10,464,000 7T (2019 : 3,172,000 7T) & 2
HOOH MU F - EHRZSEEHILETET
EBNEBZRE AT ERELN - AEH

balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
49(b).

34. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS

HELD FOR TRADING

VERZEERFAETMAERR -

BB RT (4 F IR BB £ 49(0) ©

M BFEFEEEKXRITARKRE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FETT

Listed debt securities, at quoted market EHEBES  EmH®RE

price in

Hong Kong a8 45,212 46,829

Overseas PEEIN 203,123 252,412

248,335 299,241

The debt securities held for trading are carrying fixed-rate

coupon interest ranging from 5.65% to 11.25% (2019:
5.65% to 10.75%) per annum.

BIEEEGEHEFLEN T565%1011.25%
(2019 : 5.65% t0 10.75%) 2 [E T R HE F F|
KET B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
HELD FOR TRADING

The balances represent listed equity securities at quoted
market price in Hong Kong.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group with maturity within one year from the end of the
reporting period and are therefore classified as current
assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.15% to 2% (2019: 0.3% to
2.21%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 0.35% (2019: Nil
to 1.495%) per annum.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into conditional
agreements with independent third parties for the disposal
of its (i) 90% equity interest in Jiaxing International
Container Feeder Port Limited (“Jiaxing Port”), which is
engaged in the business of port operations, and (i) 100%
equity interest in Paul Y. Corporation Limited (“Paul Y.
Corp”), which holds a 40% equity interest in Jiangyin
Sunan, at a consideration of RMB373 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$414 million) and RMB286 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$318 million) respectively,
subject to adjustments. Net proceeds expected from the
disposals of Jiaxing Port and Paul Y. Corp are greater
than corresponding net carrying amounts, no impairment
is required.

35.

36.

37.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

FFEEERTARE

BREHRAEBEMBSREZ LHRAE

BEARTER SHRTHE
RRRGREERES

EEFRTERERERRTAEEZ —
RIRITEEMERTRTZHEFR HAR
BEMTHEE-—FRIREE LHE LD
BRRBEE -

EEBETERARIBELIR=ZEAZE
BRI EARM S EF015EE2E (2019
03B ZE221E) 2EEF K - RITHETF M
EEFZTZ035E (2019 TE1.495E) 2
TIZF & o

DTEAFFHEZEERED
?CEEE%%YE&'%ZEE@BEZE
L

M2019F 1274168 - AEBH BB L F =
ARV EBERHEHE AAEBEEEHE()R
AR EEMIBEAR AR ([ZHEE
] HEEBOZEER) 290%0% #
FiyREEBERAR(REQR] - H#F
BILREME 240% 87 ) 2 100% % #& - 1%
BoRlAANREI7TIEIL(BERH4.14
BETL)RARK286E T(FHEMN43.18
BT  HAMELAR B HERE
WHERREQRZAFHIBFEE SN
JE2 BRMEEE - B AEITRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

37. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE & (48)
(CONTINUED)

37. 7 ERBHFUEZEERED
BRARFHEZEENMNRBZE

HEEHBEDPN2020F 2858 817 2 ] E

The disposals were approved by the shareholders in a
special general meeting held on 5 February 2020 while the
completions are yet to complete as at the date of this
report. The transactions are expected to complete within

twelve months from the end of the reporting period. . _
porting p PR 2 15 A B AT

FRIRg DERRIE BEARERH
ZELEFHERFTK BRRX AR
RIEMTAER T —EARTHK -

AIMAEREHEK 5=

7N
EISBERREQRREENBEZEREN

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Jiaxing Port
and Paul Y. Corp after elimination of inter-company
balances at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

mT

2020

HK$°000

FExT

Property, plant and equipment MDE - MW R E 340,418

Right-of-use assets EREAE 107,795

Interest in an associate —MEgE ARz 243,922
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B o5 REMEWIR - 5Te KB FIE

prepayments 18,068

Bank balances and cash BITHETFRES 43,209

Total assets classified as held for sale SEABELECEELSE 753,412

Trade and other creditors and B RHEMEBENERRRETHAZ

accrued expenses 24,305

Bank borrowings RITIE R 169,029

Deferred tax liabilities EIETIE A G 2,375

Total liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

HOBRARIFLEEERB A ERRE

195,709




iy rexmERAT 202058

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE202063A31BLFE
38. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 38. EZRHMENSERARESRH
ACCRUED EXPENSES X
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors B 5 Ko Ho b B A BR 3R N B 5T RS S R 3R 5 B
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period: STER 2T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade creditors ageing analysis based on HEZEHHZESENERZ
invoice date: BREe AT
Within 90 days QAR 21,707 86,645
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBBI0HEMN180H K - 3,456
More than 180 days HBiE180H 1,795 13,196
23,502 103,297
Construction costs payables JE 1~ B SR B AN 2,161 11,949
Other payables for ports and logistics BEABORMRER 2 EM
business JE 1~ BR 3K 3,489 53,794
Other payables for staff salaries, retirement B T#H 4 - EAR R EMEH 2
and other benefits (note) H Ath jE A BR 2R (B aF) 8,468 52,288
Other payables for properties development ¥ 2 3¢ R K §5 € 2 H 4th & 1~
and sale BRI 36,693 33,117
Other payables for resort project in the PRC A B [E (R 1B B 2 E #b i
AR 3% 12,257 12,593
Retentions held for construction works and 5 {EEE T2 LR E 2 RE S
equipment 11,598 14,863
Others Hib 26,012 36,331
Total amounts BB 124,180 318,232
Less: Amount due within one year shown 3 : 7 — & R 2| HA Y 51 B 7R &
under current liabilities BfE A (124,180) (298,733)
Amount due after one year —F BB H 2 B - 19,499
note: At 31 March 2019, the amount included other payable of Ktit :R201963A31H B BB E A Y
HK$43,558,000 (2020: Nil) which represented staff salaries, 43,558,000/ 7T (2020 : £ ) ~ H b & {1 BR
retirement and other benefits of a port business. Based on agreed FoME-AASODEBRZEIHS  EHRE
payment terms, an aggregate amount of approximately HMWEAN BE&HREZNRER &HL
HK$19,499,000 (2020: Nil) was to be paid after more than twelve 19,499,000 7T (2020 : ) 2 X BN R &
months from the end of the reporting period and was determined gt _EABIN TIRERF
using an effective interest rate of 4.56% per annum. Such other FERASGEETE - FNEHEMENERSE
payable was derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries (Note BEEN B AR (M 5E47) MR IEFER -

47) during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

39. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

30. EHEE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Income from port related services 7B O A8 B RS WA - 3,790
Sale of LPG and CNG products ER(E AR REGE KRR

7 o 580 265

Sales of properties SHEY)FE 46,892 —

47,472 4,055

As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$7,648,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue of
HK$111,000 (2019: Nil) from sale of LPG and CNG
products and HK$3,716,000 (2019: HK$7,185,000) from
income from port related services were recognised that
were included in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year.

Most of the Group’s remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

R2018F481H & # & & A&7,648,000
I o

HE2020F3HANBIEFE  EH®RKE
HERILABAEBERARER ZWA
111,000 7T (2019 : &) & & 0 48 B AR 7%
I A.3,716,000% 7t (2019 : 7,185,000 JT)
WEFAFVIEHNBEEHRNA -

AEEREFANZBTRBIBHEE
FHAR—FHNUT - DEEZFRETT
BHZRZEBEREERBMBREENF5
SRETAERT M AN T IR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE202063A31BLFE
40. LEASE LIABILITIES 40. HESE
2020
HK$’000
FER
Lease liabilities payable: JENHEEARE:
Within one year —F R 7,778
In the second year FE_F 5,460
In the third year to fifth year inclusive Fo-EELF(HEMFREEAN) 5,082
Over five years HBiERF 1,659
19,979
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : R—F REBIL 5 ArEaE 2 HE
under current liabilities (7,778)
Amount due after one year — & B H 2 I8 12,201

41. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 41, E{tFFEREZRERIE
INTERESTS
REREASER 2EREETERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and without (2019 : N F1EEH.35E 7 B F FF =X
fixed repayment terms (2019: bore fixed-rate interest HE WRMEHTEE —FRNIE) o

ranging from 1% to 5.35% per annum and due within one
year from the end of the reporting period).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

42. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

42, RITR HAB 15K

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITREMERBIE
Bank loans IRITER 391,872 910,417
Other loans EMER — 133,867
391,872 1,044,284
Analysed as: ST A
Secured A 359,229 628,195
Unsecured £ 32,643 416,089
391,872 1,044,284
The bank and other borrowings are BITREMEREZREOT
repayable as follows:
Within one year and/or on demand —ERRESHIZEK 190,781 674,231
More than one year, but not exceeding BR—F BETEmE
two years 43,620 134,792
More than two years, but not exceeding BRMFE  ET@AF
five years 52,781 147,747
More than five years BEAF 104,690 87,514
391,872 1,044,284
Less: Amount due within one year or o — FE AR ESR B E
on demand shown under FERB B E 2 RIE
current liabilities (190,781) (674,231)
Amount due after one year — F % BB k18 201,091 370,053
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42. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$345,771,000 (2019:
HK$384,069,000) with approximately HK$144,680,000
(2019: HK$354,314,000) repayable within one year,
approximately HK$43,620,000 (2019: HK$3,501,000)
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two
years, approximately HK$52,781,000 (2019:
HK$26,254,000) repayable more than two years but not
exceeding five years and approximately HK$104,690,000
(2019: Nil) repayable more than five years. The fixed-rate
borrowings are carrying interest ranging from 5.66% to
6.85% (2019: 4.28% to 6.53%) per annum.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 3.34% to 5.61% (2019: 3.42% to 6.37%) per
annum.

As at 31 March 2019, the above other borrowings
included fixed-rate borrowings of approximately
HK$12,325,000 repayable within one year. The fixed-rate
borrowings were carrying interest ranging from 3.5% t0 9.9%
per annum. The remaining other borrowings carried
floating-rate interest ranging from 5.25% to 9% per
annum.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

42, R1T R EAb 15K (&)

£t 8R 17 8 B ¥ £9345,771,0007% T
(2019 : 384,069,000/8 70) Z E BB &
F 49144,680,0007% Jt (2019 : 354,314,000
EIL) B —F AEE - 443,620,000 T
(2019 : 3,501,000/ 7T ) 7B B B — F BT
B F R EE 0 452,781,000/ 75 (2019 :
26,254,000 7T) AR HB B M 8 T8 h
ME 8 » 1 49104,690,0008 JT (2019 : &)
BARBBARIFEREERZ ZETSEREN
T 5.66/E £6.85F (2019 : 4.28/F £6.53/F)
ZERMEEL -

HERRITIERF B ARG 8 - FRIRH
3342 Z5.61/E(2019: 3422 £6.372 )

%o

20193 A31H - Fat E {8 B IEA
R—FRNEEZTE LB RE12,325000%
TLo % EEBIERIZSSEEI9EZ FF|
KB o HpEMERZE A RS -
FRRNFE52BE9ETE -
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HZE2020F3A31AILFE

43. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following items are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior years:

43. EEF 18

ATEBRAFERAEFECRRBZE
BEEHEAME  AREBBER -

Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fair value  adjustment
on  adjustment on project
investment on stock under
properties of properties development Others Total
REWH MEFE BRPEAR
AVEE  AVEE  AVEE
Bz 2k Bz 24t @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET TET
(note ffzt)
At 1 April 2018 »2018F4 A1 H 461,135 262,620 93,850 26,102 843,707
Exchange realignment & &R (26,868) (15,322) (5,476) (1,522) (49,188)
Charge to consolidated 47 & U ss & 2 %

income statement (Kt 16)

(Note 16) 15,603 — — 147 15,750
At 31 March 2019 R201943 A31H 449,870 247,298 88,374 24,727 810,269
Exchange realignment M R (29,074) (16,182) (5,782) (816) (51,854)
Charge to consolidated 47 & Wk &k 2 7 i

income statement (Ktzt16)

(Note 16) 22,131 - - 410 22,541
Classified as held for sale 98 AR {EH &

(Note 37) (M1at37) - - - (2,375) (2,375)
Disposal of subsidiaries & [t /& 2 7

(Note 47) (Btetar) (22,117) - - (19,559) (41,676)
At 31 March 2020 7202043 A31H 420,810 231,116 82,592 2,387 736,905

note: Included in the balance approximately HK$252,938,000 (2019:
HK$256,372,000) represents LAT arising from the fair value on
investment properties.

et 5t A & 8 2 #9252,938,00075 JT (2019 :
256,372,000/ 70) AR EMELNTFEBEEL

ZEHIREMN
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43. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,038,738,000 (2019:
HK$752,514,000) available to offset against future taxable
profits. No deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax
losses has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams on those subsidiaries. The unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$460,274,000 (2019: HK$332,726,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$577,461,000 (2019: HK$679,878,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of stock of
properties arising from the transfer of Formed Land and
Land Being Formed from investment properties are
assessed based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of the properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties. For those
properties which would be subject to PRC LAT upon
disposal, deferred tax on the temporary difference
between the tax base and their carrying amounts would
include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

43. EEF E (&)

B2020F3A31H A E B B K FE A
TR %% &5 18 491,038,738,0008 7T (2019 :
752,514,000 7r) A A R 85 15 2R 2 JE =R
A ARELATERZEH B AR KK
B z@EDBR EmMTERRERA 2
BEEERAECREELEE - KERAZHB
B 18 Al MR HAth 45 8 o

RREHTEE AEE 2 A /G
B = % A& #9460,274,00078 7T (2019 :
332,726,000 7T ) © B3 A B A FE AR X g
AANKETNMABRREEE 2T ET
A AmMTERBEATNRBRREEERER
BEEBIEEE -

RmERATER  REMNBE QR EERDIK
B EEMEAEREERIEAEZE
By 2= 248 58 A %577,461,0007%8 7T (2019 -
679,878,000# JT.) © B3 7A 7N & [ ] 4% i 5
ElZEhBEER o RE EZERKEER
BreEr R RATEE - B &5t
ZEEZHERRAEG

HEREAVEERZVWEFEZEFEL
WhPERIMESL ZBREHRBERRZF
e DERGERHEMERBBLESR
BRENEIERFMELERARR &
EhE - BRFAREERBRTE L
BERZDE AREREREEEECH
MR ZE ERERES R E L i
BEREEEMSH -
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HZE2020F3A31AILFE

44. DEFERRED INCOME

The amount mainly represented the government grants
related to certain ports construction projects and would
be recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related depreciable assets. Such deferred income was

44, EE W A

ZETHRIBEAWETEORERAABZ
B YN AR THEEEZA
ERFHARARBETER - FREMELT
WA B 38 6 BB R (BT R 47) 4% 118

derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47) R o

during the year.

45. SHARE CAPITAL 45. R
Number of
shares Value
R4 EE Kok
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FROI0E T 2 LR
Authorised: VATE ¢
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 12018 4 A1H - 20194
31 March 2020 3H31H K&202063H31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITEAMT
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and R2018F 4 H1H ~ 20194
31 March 2020 3A31H K&202063H31H  5,519,580,572 551,958

46.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or reward to any employees, executives or
officers, directors of the Company or any invested entity
and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group or any invested entity, who have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any invested entity (“Eligible
Person”). The 2012 Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years commencing after the
Adoption Date.

46. LR XA REBEZ2RZ

M2012F9A10B (TR H A 1) XA A
R4 — 18 B8 IR 0 5T &I ([20124F fE AR 4 &1
g EEHEARBAEAEE N EME
BERBIAERRERELERZ AR
FAEEEBZEMEER - TTHRABSS
LBE EZFRASEETEKEARSKT
REBERB2AMAORBAL BB - &7
AKREBATEERATD G T RE 5
Bio2012F EREFE KA HEMARER
ERBEBTF-
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46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the share option offer and an offer must be accepted on
or before a date as specified in writing, being a date not
later than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer was
issued; or (i) the date on which the conditions for the offer
are satisfied. The directors of the Company may at their
discretion determine the specific exercise period which
should expire in any event no later than the last day of the
ten year period after the date of grant of the share options.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules
from time to time; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may initially be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date, i.e.
455,849,357 shares. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the limit
may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meetings of the Company held in 2013, 2015 and 2017,
the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the
respective dates of such meetings.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

46. LR XA REBE 2R Z (&)
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46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Person under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
those exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time unless such
grant has been duly approved by shareholders of the
Company at general meeting at which the Eligible Person
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Person is a connected person (as defined in the Listing
Rules)) abstained from voting. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.10% of total number of shares in issue and
have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting in advance.

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled
during the year. Also, there were no outstanding share
options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as
at 31 March 2020.

46. LR XA REBE 2R Z (&)

PER + 8 A B - RIE2012F B A AE
it & AR R BRI E B A T & AT R
TEAREBMALTZERB(BEETR
WAL R W RITE 2 BB ) T 2 K
RABNEBE  REILFEBITRD T
BOEBZ1% RIFLEREEESHE
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AEBEA(ERR EMRAD)) RERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

47.

At the end of June 2019, the Group completed the
disposal of its entire investment of 51% equity interest in
Yichang Port Group Limited (“Yichang Port Group”), which
was a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise registered in the
PRC and mainly engaged in operation of ports, at a
consideration of approximately RMB381,220,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$433,697,000). Yichang Port Group
and its subsidiaries ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group

upon and after the disposal.

HEME R

HZE20205E3A31HILFEE

R2019F6AE  AEBEXNEEERE
EBKEBAEREIRARNIEEEKE

E1)51% Kz 2

MEE RKEABOAR

#381,220,000 7T (48 & 7 #7433,697,000 7
T BEABKEERA—RXRPEZMZ
FHNGERLE  FBREBFOZEE-T
EAKEEREMNBRARREEZRRY
BTBAAEBZHBAR -

2020
HK$°000
THET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment PIEE - B KRR E 791,144
Right-of-use assets CREAE 134,556
Investment properties BEME 187,217
Other intangible assets Ht@mEEE 3,431
Investments in equity instruments ERHTARKRE 321
Other non-current assets HtIERBEE 81,946
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B o5 RHEMBEWER - 5Te B IE
prepayments 116,141
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRER 177,502
Trade and other creditors and accrued B RHEMENERERRETHAI
expenses (111,141)
Contract liabilities AHAERE (7,494)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE A5 FE 4% P& 48 25 FTE (2,275)
Taxation payable &1 B¢ 18 (7,241)
Bank and other borrowings R1T R EH A& K (428,852)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERTE 8 & (41,676)
Deferred income EE WA (73,882)
Other payables HiEABER (18,137)
Total net assets mEEFHE 801,560
Less: non-controlling interests 0 IETR AR 2 (484,995)

316,565
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47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEKM B QA (&)
(CONTINUED)
2020
HK$’000
FHET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBRAR Z WS :
Cash consideration WeRE 433,697
Directly attributable costs and levies EEEOEXARGE (19,979)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (801,560)
Non-controlling interests IR E S 484,995

Gain on disposal before taxation and release & i & F& 51 4 5 B B A 2 & U35

of attributable reserve 97,157
Cumulative exchange differences in respect R EUH B AT 2 HIESHEREE

of the net assets of subsidiaries reclassified E#H 7 HB AR EEFEREB 2 RTER

from equity to profit or loss on loss of =%
control of subsidiaries (8,584)
Gain on disposal before taxation PR AT 2 B W e 88,573
Less: taxation (Note 16) B RIE (M 16) (28,065)
Gain on disposal after taxation BrBife 2 & W 60,508
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEAZIRE® R AFRE:
Cash consideration HERE 433,697
Less: income tax, directly attributable costs & : Fr{5 % - HiEEEKR AR MU E
and levies (48,040)
Net cash consideration received BWEEKEBFE 385,657
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of J§i : EHEZHRITEFELRES (177,502)
208,155
Yichang Port Group contributed approximately HK$88.6 HE2020F3A31IBIEFE EEBKE
million to the revenue of the Group and approximately BAKRKER WA SE48,8608 8T &
HK$4.3 million to the net profit attributable to owners of BARNTIEA ANFEALSFEREE B 2430
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020. BEITL-
Other reserves in relation to the above subsidiaries HEMMEBAR BB EMREED
amounting to approximately HK$11,546,000 had been 11,546,0008 LN E & 5T ARE ‘& F o

credited to the retained profits upon the disposal.
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48. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 48. ZBWBENBLARAEITZEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
acquired a group of subsidiaries from an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately
HK$27,238,000. The group of subsidiaries was mainly
holding parcels of land in Hong Kong that were classified
as stock of properties upon the acquisition. The
acquisition had been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets and liabilities.

The effect of the acquisition is summarised as follows:

W k&

HZE2020F3A31HILLFE  AEEH—
B E = 75 LA B 927,238,000 T UK
B—ANBRAR - ZAWNBRRAEEESR
ERHEH ZEHMRRRBEIEEY
¥GEE-ZKEBEARIE—BEERA
B -

B BB MT

2020
HK$°000
FERT
Net assets acquired: BWEEEFE:
Stock of properties MEFE 80,835
Prepayments T8 A 4
Bank balances and cash RITH 7(_ kIR & 13
Other creditors and accrued expenses HEMNBEREETRS (4,536)
Amount due to a non-controlling interest JE 1< S 2 AR 4 25 20 0E (7,7112)
Bank and other borrowings BR1T R E A & 3K (40,000)
28,604
Less: non-controlling interest W IR RR R (1,366)
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 27,238
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of BBWENBRARET Z2EERBEMEELEZ
assets through acquisition of subsidiaries: I8 & 7 i /F %8 -
Bank balances and cash acquired BWERTEF RS 13
Cash consideration paid EMBEERE (27,238)
Net cash outflow WemLFE (27,225)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 49. €M T B

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(@ €I EZEE

(i)  Financial assets () =MEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Financial assets measured at REBHK AT EZ © R
amortised cost BE
— Loans receivable — FEE 150,119 230,322
— Trade and other debtors — B REAMBERER 105,158 219,384
— Amounts due from associates — FEYEE & A R FRIE 68,552 70,721
— Amount due from a joint venture —ER—HEaetE
IR 3,335 4,839
— Pledged bank deposits — BEBBITER 11,528 117
— Short-term bank deposits — EHIRITIE K 48,959 137,507
— Bank balances and cash —HRITEFELRES 295,617 380,621
683,268 1,043,511
Financial assets measured at fair value ZAFEBEAE 2 £ 7
BE
— Investments in equity instruments —EBATFEEFAHM
at FVTOCI cEWEzEET
HERE 313,966 375,845
— Investments in debt instruments —EBEATFEEFAER
held for trading at FVTPL RZBIEEBERR
TEEE 248,335 299,241
— Investments in equity instruments —EBEATFEEFAER
held for trading at FVTPL R EEEER
TEEE 191,668 309,950
753,969 985,036
Total ya =t 1,437,237 2,028,547
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. €@ T & (&)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) €I EZE3 (&)

(Continued) (i) SEEE
(i)  Financial liabilities

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Financial liabilities measured at REBEK A EZE R
amortised cost afE
— Trade and other creditors — B REMEMNER 121,060 311,425
— Amounts due to non-controlling — FEffIEIE IR R s B
interests 96,132 95,683
— Bank and other borrowings — RITREAMER 391,872 1,044,284
609,064 1,451,392
Lease liabilities HEAaE 19,979 —
Total Bt 629,043 1,451,392
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) EREREEEEREE
and policies AREZTESRTARERGR
The Group’s major financial instruments include HoRTEFRRE EHRHME
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and WEER - JEINER  ERTAEKRE
other debtors, loans receivable, investments in equity FHEEEBHIARE FHEEER
instruments, investment in debt instruments held for mTAKRE B RHEMEMNEKR-
trading, investments in equity instruments held for HEAE BRUHBEERF,/ —M
trading, trade and other creditors, lease liabilities, BELE RS AN RIRT
amounts due from (to) associates/a joint venture/ REMER  SEeBTAZHBR
non-controlling interests and bank and other MR EE - LS T BRI
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are 2 LB Fo o Rt & L B 2 B R
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated TX -EREEEMEZZZRAR -
with these financial instruments and the policies on NHRERE MR ZEREM &
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. ZEEEIEEEAFER -

Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is
attributable to its financial instruments that are
subject to both variable rate and fixed rate.
Those financial instruments of variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments at variable rates have
been disclosed in Notes 30, 31, 36 and 42.
Financial instruments at fixed interest rates
expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
Details of the Group’s interest bearing financial
instruments at fixed rate have been disclosed
in Notes 30, 32, 34, 36, 38, 40, 41 and 42.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk, the
Group adopts a policy of maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings which is achieved primarily through
entering into different contractual terms of
borrowings. The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference to anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the rates
announced by The People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings and
advance at variable rates and Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate and HKBLR arising from the
Group’s HK Dollars loans receivable, amounts
due from associates, and borrowings at
variable rates.

49. £ Rt T B (&)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

% B B

i) F=EERE
AEEBZHMERBRKEZE R
FTEERMTE -ZF 254/
TAGEALEEHERESREFN
KRR - AEBZFESHT
EFIE R 5E80 31 36K42
NEZR - TEeMIAFEALAS
EEHAFEEMNERR - A
EECZEESRMITAFBRH
F£3032:34+363840"
41 R 42N o

RTENZER AEEDK
BER T2BRBIZTRE
HMRBZER REER T
BERZEEMAG - EikRTS
EHER YRMENRLZE

B B 1T T4 -

AEERTRABETEEMEX
Rk #ERAMEABRR
PESEREEFDEL - K
SEZReERENXARTE
SRRFPEARRITHAQMA
RZRHOCREAEEZFEA
REERRBR)  UAREBEBR
TRE¥EFRERBEEREERE
ME(REAXRKBEZFEABTE

o B AR M A RSO R
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable rate instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been 50
basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2020, would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$188,000 (2019:
post-tax profit for the year, excluding the
capitalised borrowing cost of HK$1,308,000,
would decrease/increase by HK$1,499,000).

For loans receivable, amounts due from
associates and bank balances, the effect on
interest rate risk to the Group’s post-tax profit
is insignificant. Therefore, the effect is not
included in the sensitivity analysis above.
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49. £ Rt T A (&)

b) EREAREEBEREE &)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value
of a monetary item will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain
receivables and debt investments held for
trading of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies such as RMB and United
States Dollars (“US Dollars”) and which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company also have certain transactions
denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages its
exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

49. £ Rt T B (&)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

4% B e (#E)

(i) E¥ERK
SNERBRIEEYXEEEBERKE
EXxSFHMEB AR KNE
B TREURERFEEER
BTEAREDUARERET
(TETDEHNEEFE FARE
EZEEmEIINERR - AERE
AT I 4 SN B S R BUSR o SR
EEEeRIERINERR -
WERVERZEHFEKRIN
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in HK Dollars, US Dollars and RMB. The Group
mainly draws borrowings in the functional
currencies of the entities as management
considers the repayments can be sourced from
income to be generated in those currencies.

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US Dollars which are entered
by group companies with a functional currency
of HK Dollars to be insignificant.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of
RMB against HK Dollars. The Group regularly
reviews the balances of assets and liabilities
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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49. £F T B (58)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (excluding inter-company
balances), with exposure to foreign currency
risk which are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

49. £H T B (88)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

5 E k2 (&)
(i) E¥ER(E)

7N 5 B LA SIS 5 B8 AL 30 T A0
KRR EKEERER AR
(TREAARER) (BEEER
RERE)RBREHTER 2K
HERT :

Liabilities Assets
a8fE BE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHT THERT FAET
RMB AR 2,006 1,804 184 1,279
US Dollars e - — 300,336 357,239
In addition, foreign currency denominated inter- BESN - AN SHE 2~ B E A
company balances, with exposure to foreign BRAEATEBERSE A I
currency risk which are considered as B N EE a2 E15
significant by management, at the end of the ONE
reporting periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000
FTET T THER TETT
RMB AR 1,542 2,545 175,294 92,667
HK Dollars BT 71,983 69,950 — —
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group’s foreign currency risk exposure related
to US Dollars is not considered to be
significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
is presented for US Dollars against functional
currencies.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB against HK
Dollars and 5% decrease in HK Dollars against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss/an increase in post-tax profit
where RMB strengthen 5% against HK Dollars.
For a 5% weakening of RMB against HK
Dollars, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the (loss) profit for the year.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

49. £F T B (58)

(b) ©RLEEEREB S RBER (E)
45 B (4)

EWER (E)

HEBEET

MR THEIXTAHB  KEE
Y BRETZ2INERRRA
EWMARE Bt WERE
TLHIEER 2 5IGURE D -

TERFWAEERARE LB
TLEERB NN R B TE AR
M [E R OF D 5%HE 2 SRR E -
ERNEEZEIEREASERIN
BREBE - DEA%AFHRE
tbE - HRESTEBRERT
BREWUIINEREN 2 EEIE
B r-BEERBREHTERINGE
R7E%FEETHE - TR
EE8BERAREL BT EH5%
W Bt 18 B 1B R A BE 18 0 B 15
me AR B ITT TN KE%E -
HERN(EB) R8T E
R MEFRAAR -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET TETT
Decrease in loss/increase FREER D55 F 58
in profit for the year 10,183 6,661
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk from its
investments in equity instruments held for
trading. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group's price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities operating in
healthcare, technology, banking and finance
sectors. In addition, the Group also exposed to
price risk from its investments in debt
instruments held for trading, which are listed in
Hong Kong or overseas. These debt
instruments are issued by issuers listed on the
Stock Exchange which principally operating in
property development and investment sectors.
The Group has monitored the other price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk for
investments in equity and debt instruments
held for trading at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices or fair values of these respective
financial asset had been 5% higher/lower,
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$18,370,000 (2019: post-tax profit would
increase/decrease by HK$27,516,000).

49. £ Rt T A (&)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

5 E k2 (&)
(iii) HEERE

AEERARKFEEEDZT A
BREMAEERRR - EEE
NEBBERRFESRE 2K
EHaRERLERR KAK
BHEBRRRIEEPRESE
BREAE MO RTRER
TERRARES - WIN K&
B AR ERERE B KGN
EHRIFEEEBTAZER
BB o ZFE T H B RBER
IEMBEEREMEERREK
BRETERZETAET AR
BeEREMERAR L&
EEFEREZRE MAEYZ
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HEEZ
BREISMNBBENTHER
ZHREEERGaMEB AR
EffEYSERRARMEE -

MEBSRMEEZEBRHKQF
BE LT H%5% & Z2020
FIASA L FEH & B B
i T B+ 718,370,000 T
(2019 : BB HEFIH EFA /T
27,516,000 7T ) °
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
obligations by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade debtors

In order to minimise the credit risk of the debtors,
management is responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Credit sales are made to
customers with good credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers and credit term granted to
customers on different business units are reviewed
regularly. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on debtor
balances individually or collectively with appropriate
grouping by common risk characteristics.

Loans receivable

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment
on loans receivable on an individual basis. The
assessment includes evaluation of collectability of
the loans receivable based on management’s
judgment on creditworthiness, collateral and past
collection history of each borrower and forward
looking information that is reasonable, supportable
and available without undue cost or effort.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

In determining the recoverability of the loans
receivable, the Group will consider the change in the
credit quality of the loans receivable, if any, from the
date the loans were initially granted up to the
reporting date. This includes assessing the credit
history of the borrowers, such as past experience of
financial difficulties or default in payments,
background assessment and evaluation of financial
position and performance and forward looking
information.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.
The management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an
evaluation of financial background, as well as
financial condition of the borrower and the
anticipated receipts for that individual loan, at the
end of the reporting period.

Amount(s) due from associates/a joint venture
The credit risks of amount(s) due from associates
and a joint venture are managed through an internal
process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party and
identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order
to reduce the credit risk. Further, the Group closely
monitors the financial performance of associates and
the joint ventures. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL. model on the
outstanding balances individually.

49. £ Rt T A (&)
b) tREREEEEREE(E)

1= B i Bz K 6t 18 57 1 (A8

P& W & 5K (4D
RETERKE R 2 Al fg @18 - A&
B E EEWE R REEE K
FPHEEERESAHLZEEER
g(mA) EFREFEERAZ
EERC 8 (1038 1 B B IR 2 s #8 R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The credit risk of other financial assets is managed
through an internal process. The Group closely
monitors the outstanding amounts of other financial
assets at amortised costs and identifies any credit
risk in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of
a credit related loss. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risks in
relation to its bank balances that are deposited at
several banks. Management of the Group considers
that the credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited at several banks is limited, because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as the
total loans receivable as at 31 March 2020 is due
from seven (2019: four) borrowers and the amounts
due from associates as at 31 March 2020 is due
from two (2019: two) borrowers.

The credit risk on investments in listed debt
securities is limited because the counterparties are
corporations of good reputation.

The Group does not have significant concentration
of credit risk on investments in listed securities as
counterparties are brokers of good reputation.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. €@ T & (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) £rELEREEBEZERBEEE
and policies (Continued) = 5 E B B (R ()
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEEEHTER(E)
(Continued) Br FatESN - AEEZ FERR I &
Concentration of credit risk (Continued) HipBAgEE D - HEM O BRZER
Other than the above, the Group has no other S8 F o
significant concentration of credit risk, the exposure
of which spreads over a number of counterparties. AEEB2ABEERRTRTHE
LA 8
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:
Internal Other financial
credit rating Description Trade debtors assets/other items
HthemEE
REEE TR  utt B EWERN HhE B
Performing The counterparty has a low to Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
RiF moderate risk of default and its (not credit-impaired) 121E B A= B /&5 18
credit risk has not increased >HEBEEERE
significantly since initial recognition. (3 & {5 B8 &)
REBFrEARBRRBEZS B
HEERR B2 #R AR &
BEIE -
Underperforming  There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

R = in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or externally.

NBHINBAEER BT EERR
BB ARD BEEIEM -

Non-performing There is evidence indicating the asset
TR is credit-impaired.
FRBEREREZEELREERE-

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
i 85 debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.
EEBELEBSALEYERETR
R AASEE T EEFERILERE
TRIE ©

(not credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)
T HITEHIE B RS >HEHEERER

(I EEERE) (I &A= B R E)
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
THEBEEERE >HBEHEEEE

(EERME) (EERME)

Amount is written off  Amount is written off

EHSBEEMH BB E MH



iy rexmERAT 202058

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

49. £ Rt T A (&)

(b)

TREREZERE
1= & 21 B2 X 6t 18 2 1% (4F)

=R B ()

TR AEKEB R2020F83A318 &

(Continued) 20193 A1 H/AEEITEHEEFIE
The table below details the credit risk exposures of FEzeRmEEREIEAFBEL
the Group’s financial assets (included those EZeMEE) MNUBKERENZE
classified as held for sale) and financial guarantee ERBFS
contracts as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,
which are subject to ECL assessment:
2020 2019
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
Notes credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
12BAR2HES 2020 2019
ME RBEETIR GEESR REAE KEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT FHT
Loans receivable ;note ) 30 Performing 12mECL 108,800 238,700
PR E R (M7t Ruf PREAESREEEE
Non-performing  Lifetime ECL 173,700 -
TR (credit-impaired)
2HEBEEEE
(EERME)
Amounts due from associates (note i) 31 Performing 12mECL 7,302 72,121
JE L Bt 1 ) B (WY AED) Rof PREAESREEEE
Underperforming  Lifetime ECL 70,000 -
YNES (not credit-impaired)
FHIEHE “‘EESTE
(FEEERE)
Amount due from a joint venture (note ) 32 Performing 12m ECL 3,335 4,839
JEU — & & X RIE (K i) Rof 12@ AEHEEER
Trade debtors (note fi) 33 Performing Lifetime ECL 38,113 126,336
B 5 W R (H i) R not credit-i |m aired)
S H% HifE g EER
(T EEERE)
Non-performing Llfetlme FCL 20,789 20,146
TR credit- |mpa|red;
i H%E HEEBR
E 5 /
Other debtors (note ii) 33 Performing 12m ECL o 51,593 94,894
H At 1 Uk B A% (A 2t i) Raf REAESREEER
Underperforming  Lifetime ECL - 101
e (not credit-impaired)
’\HH%EHW “JEH@
(I &1 S R1E)
Non-performing Llfetlme ECL 78,502 12,214
R credit- |mpa|red;
2 BEBESD
Pledged bank deposits (note iv) 36 Performing 12m ECL e 11,528 117
EERRITER W i) Rof 12AAEREEER
Short-term bgnk deposns (note iv) 36 Performing 12m ECL e 48,959 137,507
RERITER (W itiv) Rof 12AAEREEER
Bank balances (note iv) 36 Performing 12m ECL 338,826 380,577
RITETF (M itiv) R REAEHREEEE
Financial guarantee (note v) 52 N/A N/A - 5,834
B ER (M itv) TER TEA
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its borrowers (including
associates and a joint venture) on the outstanding amounts.
The ECL rates are estimated based on its credit rating, past
and current default record and current past due exposure
of the borrower of which the loss rates ranging from 0.1%
t0 4.5% (2019: from 0.1% to 5%) for performing, 12.5% (2019:
n/a) for underperforming and 50% to 75% (2019: n/a) for
non-performing receivables, respectively.

For trade debtors, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance on
lifetime ECL basis at an average loss rate of less than 0.1%
(2019: 0.1%) for performing trade debtors at 31 March
2020. The provision matrix for groupings of trade debtors is
based on debtors’ historical payment pattern taking into
consideration of quantitative, qualitative and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses historical past due experience and forward
looking information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. Loss
allowance for the performing and underperforming other
debtors are measured at an average loss rate of 0.1% (2019:
0.2% for performing and 30% for underperforming debtors
respectively). Loss allowances for the non-performing
debtors are measured at loss rates ranging from 50% to
100% (2019: 100%).

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances were placed in the banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong governed by China Banking Regulatory Commission
and Hong Kong Monetary Authority, respectively. In view of
the stable bank system in the PRC and Hong Kong and the
high credit ratings assigned by international or PRC rating
agencies to these banks, the loss allowance is expected to
be very minimal and close to zero.

For the financial guarantee contract, the gross carrying
amount represented the maximum amount the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contract.

49. £F T B (58)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

1= & 21 B2 X 6t 18 2 1% (4F)
ff &t
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. £ ® T H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) cREAKEEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued) _
1= B m B R el (8 57 1 ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment TRHFE S EWES - H#hE K EE
(Continued) B EUE KRR E D RREL
The following table shows reconciliation of loss DR IE B~ Wi o

allowances that have been recognised for trade
debtors, other debtors, loans receivable and
amounts due from associates.

Amounts due from
Trade debtors Other debtors Loans receivable associates

EFEKER HitERRR EWER ERBENTRE
Lifetime  Lifetime Lifetime  Lifetime Lifetime  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL (not ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL
credit- (credit- (not credit-  (credit- (not credit- (credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) 12mECL impaired) impaired) 12mECL impaired) impaired) 12mECL impaired)
2HES HES 2HES 2HEHE

FEER 2HRH 12688 FEER 2HEE 1268 FEFR 2HRY  12ER  EFR
(TEEE FEFR BEHFE (LEFE REFE BAHFE (LEEE REFE RUEE (LEREH
AE) (REHE) g AE) (RERE) FR AE) (REWHE f3f A
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS000 HKSO000  HK$'000 HK$000  HKEO000  HK$'000
TEL  TERT TER  TET  TEx  TEr TET TEn TEAT  TAR

At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 F1R - 21,498 1,800 - 15,599 7,807 21,000 - 1,125 -
Transfer B - - - (12) 12 - - - - -
Provided (reversed) for 4 & 4 (&) 2
during the year ] 123 99 - 43 o7 571 (21,000 - 275 -
Amounts written off as B8 7~ 4% it [ 7 # 84
uncollectible LEE - - - - (2,619) - - - - -
Exchange realignment  [& 1 3% 6) (1,249) - (1) (755) - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 1201953 A318 17 20,146 1,800 30 12,214 8,378 - - 1,400 -
Changes due to 201954 A1A
financial instruments ~ EALBIE
recognised as at Y2
1 April 2019:
Transfer #E - - (1,800) - 180 (6329 - 638 (1400 1400
Provided forduring ~ FRBE 2SR
the year (note) () 79 810 - 17 33876 200 - 122607 - 7350
Disposal of HEWBAR
subsidiaries 173 (2189) - ) - - - - -
Unwind of discount 4783 {6 B % - - - - 3,614 - - - - -
Exchange AR
realignment (23) (1,228) - - (773) - - - - -
Financial assets newly ¥4 B4 E
originated - - - - - 1,106 - - - -

At 31 March 2020 72020634318 - 17,539 - - 50,115 3,356 - 129,025 - 8,750




P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

note: During the year, certain borrowers and debtors were
considered as having significant financial difficulties, for
which the receivables may have to be recovered through
liquidation or other financial reorganisation. As such, the
corresponding loans and other receivables (including
interest receivables) with gross amounts of HK$173,700,000
and HK$67,679,000 were transferred from 12m ECL to
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) with additional loss
allowances of about HK$122,697,000 and HK$33,876,000
were recognised respectively during the year ended 31
March 2020. In addition, the amounts due from associates
with gross amount of HK$70,000,000 were transferred
from 12m ECL to Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) as the
credit risk was considered as significantly increased with
additional loss allowance of about HK$7,350,000 was
recognised during the year.

49. £H T B (88)

(b) R MEEEERBEK(E)

1= B 7 B2 R 6t B 77 1 (48)

Ma R REBRARBHEAERAE
BEARTHRRE  BKESZRIEAR
ETEN AR MU BEAZ A
MW E o At R B E20204 3 A 31
H k% E 4% 5173,700,0007% 7T &
67,679,000 7T 2 A8 & 3 I H fth fE
Wk B (B ¥ R 8 ) B121E B &
HEEFBEERz>HEHEERE
(ZERE) TE DRI EREINEGIE
B 5 #9122,697,0007% 7T & 33,876,000
T o AN - #8758 A70,000,0005% 7T 2
B E AR FIERI2EABSEESR
BEEEEZ2HEREEBE(LE
EERE) HITEREERBRFE
BRBEMNAE YERFRNERSA
SN 18 98 5 497,350,000 78 TT.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
has unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$247 million (2019: HK$147 million) available to
finance the Group’s working capital requirements.
Details of the amounts utilised at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Note 42.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. There are
unutilised banking facilities available to finance the
Group’s working capital requirements. The Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. The Group will also consider the issue of
equity instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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b) tREREEEEREE(E)
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

49. £H T B (88)

rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest

rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

ZERATHE -

FREEE 2 et MR AME -
MIETTEEZRAB Z)

gl
FE LA A

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) tREREEEEREE(E)
and policies (Continued) BB AR ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRIEZRABR
Liquidity and interest risk tables
Weighted More than
average Ondemand 90 days and Total
effective  or within within - More than undiscounted ~Carrying
interestrate 90days  365days 365days  cashflows amount
METHER REAN BBOAE AER
FE  90HR MIB5AA BBI65H ReRBELE KREME
% HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx T#Ex TERL T#ER
2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities EiTESRER
Trade and other creditors BEORHEBEAER - 12089% 164 - 121,060 121,060
Lease liabilties HEER 4.98 2,786 5590 13,575 21,951 19,979
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JEA JE IR AR A 25 3R - 96,132 - - 96,132 96,132
Bank and other borrowings ‘fE 1kE ‘rﬁlf‘é 7
— fixed rate interest bearing -ER 6.46 43,700 117,812 258,496 420,008 345,771
— variable rate interest bearing - %8 3.87 36,162 10,237 - 46,399 46,101
299,676 133,803 272,071 705,550 629,043
Weighted More than
average Ondemand 90 days and Total
effective  or within within -~ More than  undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate 90days  365days 365 days cashflows  amount
METHER R@EAK BROAA REH
M= 90HM MEA BBISHE HeRELE KEE
%  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FEL  THEx TEL FAEx
2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities FESRER
Trade and other creditors BHREBEGER - 178,001 113,925 19,499 311,425 311,425
Amounts due to non-controlling interests, ~ [E{T JEIZ R i 25
fixed rate interest bearing FEER 5.24 1,254 98,126 - 99,380 95,683
Bank and other borrowings ROREMER
— fixed rate interest bearing -E8 591 135,522 241,637 31,582 408,741 396,394
— variable rate interest bearing -8 540 174749 168,714 369,093 712,956 647,890
Financial guarantee contract HBERED - 5,834 - - 5,834 -
495,360 622,402 420,174 1,637,936 1,451,392
The amounts included above for variable interest fis] )% B F) = & &) B2 50 i & AR T A B

A E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

0]

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values.

The fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

49. £F T B (58)

(c) EMIAZAFEENE

SRMAERSMEBE I ATEER
PRVEY TE

() LHZEEEEEULFEMHE
FTEZEHMEERTMEE
ZRAFEE
EERAE REAEVBHREF
BHEENAARZEGREER
cREECEROEHEARFE
BESE -

ZETREERERAGEZA
FEENRAREERAER
MEREREDITMETE -

(i) BEFEELLNFEEE
ZCEMEERETHEBZ A
FlEE
RESHMBPTHEE  AEEE
TeMEENRTEEFE-
TREHREHENNEETZE S
MEENTREBZATFEE
M B H
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

() @@MTEAZAFEMENEH)
(i) ZAEFEELLTEEE

(i) Fair value of financial assets and ZEHEERZMEBZA
financial liabilities that are measured at FEEE)
fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 3 Total
AFEBESER E—R EF=R wa
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FAT FHT FHET
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL ERAFEEFABREZ
Listed debt instruments held for BEEEZ FTHEK
trading TEAE 248,335 — 248,335
Listed equity instruments held for REEE 2 EER
trading TAE 191,668 — 191,668
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAVEEFZAHMER
Wz emBEE
Listed equity instruments IThREETAE 4,260 - 4,260
Unlisted equity instruments FELEmEZITE — 309,706 309,706
Total financial assets A e A E 444,263 309,706 753,969
At 31 March 2019 MR2019F 3 A31H
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAVEBESAEREZ
Listed debt instruments held for BEEEZ L THEK
trading TE 299,241 — 299,241
Listed equity instruments held for BEEEZ FED
trading TA 309,950 — 309,950
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAVEEFZAHMER
WamzemEE
Listed equity instruments IThEET A 14,956 — 14,956
Unlisted equity instruments FELEmEZTE — 360,889 360,889
Total financial assets Mo EE 624,147 360,889 985,036
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMIAEZAFEETE(E)
instruments (Continued — , =
( ) (i) BEZEELAFEEHE
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and ZEMEERTHEBZ A

financial liabilities that are measured at FEEE)

fair value on a recurring basis et :

goct:"t'"”ed) 5B EEBTBEHZABI
’ B - HEAFEEUZHRT

HRZTSBEET - B
SEFBEMBEEMRA
ZTISRELRITERME -

Level 1:  The fair values of the financial instruments traded
in active markets are based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market prices used for financial assets
held by the Group are the current bid price.

8
[1]
2

CERMIAZATEEDER
=R 2 (FBEREMEI
8 F BT 5L 27 P st 2 1 (B £

Level 3:  The fair values of the financial instruments are -
g ©

based on Level 3 measurement (as detailed in
Note 3) using the valuation techniques described

EAs 5 ATFEEEA E)
in Note 27. MREEEMS R FEEERZME

BEEE -

There were no transfers between the different levels of the
fair value hierarchy for both years.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 49. €@ T & (&)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(iii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

(c) EMIAZAFEEE(E

EHMITAZE=ZRAFEHE
it 8 2 # AR

measurement of financial instruments

Unlisted Other
equity financial
instruments asset Total
LRk Hih & al
= BE i
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2018 »®2018F4A1H 405,554 183,539 589,093
Gain on revaluation recognised in  RIEXER Z B4
profit or loss U z5 — 12,461 12,461
Loss on revaluation recognised in - A H {th & mE U S HER
other comprehensive income ZEMHEB (44,644) — (44,644)
Disposals BE - (196,000)  (196,000)
Exchange realignment & 5 7 (21) — 21)
At 31 March 2019 M2019F 3 H31 H 360,889 — 360,889
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 47) H &M E A 7l
(Kiita7) (321) — (321)
Loss on revaluation recognised in 7 E b & T Y Z5 HE R
other comprehensive income 2 EhEE (50,855) - (50,855)
Exchange realignment & 5 o (7) - (7)
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H 309,706 — 309,706

Included in other comprehensive income is
revaluation loss of HK$50,855,000 (2019:
HK$44,644,000) relating to unlisted
investments in equity instruments using Level 3
measurement held at the end of the reporting
period and is reported as changes in
investment revaluation reserve.

AAEMEEREzEGHER
50,855,000/% 7T, (2019 : 44,644,000
ET) RS B T A R P R
RAE=FtEzmExRTA
REBW UE2RAKREERHHE
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50. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

50.

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

METBHELECREHR

TERBASEREZPELZABEDHF

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

B BERAEAShIFRSE
EZRABDRBAEREXRKBAESRER
AEBGERERERTHIEABELRY
BenBzBE-

CBMERDE

activities.
Amounts
due to non- Bank and
Lease controlling other Interest
liabilities interests borrowings payable Total
B EER BITR
HEEE EHERIE Hi g™ EAFE wmEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 1 April 2018 MN2018F 4 H1H — 104,089 1,142,667 3,005 1,249,761
Financing cash flows MERESME — (2,334) (42,988) (63,175) (98,497)
Finance costs capitalised B {F& &N Z gt &
BN — — — 25,896 25,896
Finance costs (note) & B A (B i) — — — 31,134 31,134
Exchange realignment 0E 5 3% — (6,072) (55,395) (174) (61,641)
At 31 March 2019 #2019 3 A31H — 95,683 1,044,284 6,686 1,146,653
Recognised upon RERE BV R
application of EHEBIFE165E
HKFRS 16 #R 9,964 — — — 9,964
At 1 April 2019 M2019F 4 H1H 9,964 95,683 1,044,284 6,686 1,156,617
Financing cash flows BRERSRE (6,364) 1,179 (51,497) (46,000) (102,682)
Finance costs capitalised #{E& A 7 g &
R AR - - - 16,805 16,805
Finance costs (note) & AR (BT aF) 590 - - 23,222 23,812
Addition NE 16,300 - - — 16,300
Reclassified as held for ~ E# 5 8 A 1E
sale (Note 37) & (M7237) - - (169,029) - (169,029)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ H &M E A A
(Note 47) (H15E47) - (2,275) (428,852) — (431,127)
Acquisition of asset B EEHT B AR
through acquisition of BT EEWE
subsidiaries (Note 48) (Kfzt48) - 7,712 40,000 - 47,712
Exchange realignment ME W SR (511) (6,167) (43,034) (60) (49,772)
At 31 March 2020 7202093 31 H 19,979 96,132 391,872 653 508,636
note: Finance costs exclude imputed interest expense on other payable Wi BMEBERATNBIEEMENER ZHERN B

of HK$193,000 (2019: HK$873,000).

7 % 193,000 7T (2019 : 873,000/ 7T) °
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51. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group joins defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions in accordance with the rules of the
schemes in that jurisdiction.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

51.

iR ¢k 48 7 5t 2

AEBSEEREEZ2EE REHFEN
B E - ZFREIZEERITEALES
ZEHEESBUFTE -

AEBETBENBRARZEER  RHFE
BT #7172 B KB B AR KA A AT 8l 2 K
E-FENBRRARFEAX B EL
Bl R KRR A A BIE K ARAER
REES - AEEERKENGE 2 ME—
AEEREHBBREMRN -

RIEARERBEZER  RAKEIEZ
%%ZﬁWWEZKTEH&EH$%

ézh cfHEBERZFAHRRMME
IR HZEE $§Ifﬁﬁﬁ7
REBZADERER 25 8RR MR 2
T BIER -

REmERTER YEREERKREANZ
BAREBEMHRAN 2 MERRR D ZEF
EMELEZEXLKER R AIEANEER
REFERD BAER 2 EBARLUAT -

REBEMARGERTEETE(RES
ARl RERABCRERIEATES
AEGAIERBIEATESEERERL &
BEdEcEEBIRNAKEZEE A
BUXHAZZESRA RERES
ﬁ%ZﬁW'ﬁI&Eﬁﬁﬂﬁxé&ﬁ
AIRTAAZ L R et IR - AR E A RE o
BEAIZEREETRREFEEHRE
Z B e B A I L USR] A0 R
RIRFE AR -
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51. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 51. Rk E R & & (&)
(CONTINUED)
38 78 < 51 I 1 15 1 2 R IKAE 5t BI4E 3R

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from BHEERERMNG  HERAERILE

the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income HBAFTBHzZEERESEMNRENZ#

statement represent contributions paid and payable to the e

funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of

the scheme. FR REEGRERAIEZEKRERN
5 E 44 3K 42 58 49 43,238,000 7% 7T (2019 :

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme 8,192,000/ 7T ) °

contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$3,238,000 (2019:
HK$8,192,000).

52. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 52, ARABE
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had given a guarantee to R2019F3A31H  AKEBEEHME=ZHE
a bank of HK$5,834,000 (2020: Nil) in respect of a B2 RITIEERRTTE L 1R 5,834,000
banking facility granted to a third party. gL (2020 : #) °
The directors of the Company considered that the fair ARREEREBUBERZAFEENE
value of the financial guarantee at the initial date of HZEREHITEAKA -

providing this guarantee was insignificant.
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53. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

53. KREHEERIE

The Group as a lessee (@) XEBEEAEEA
The Group had commitments for future minimum AEBE TARE2EB -2
lease payments under non-cancellable operating ERNAER HBADEAREE &i#
leases in respect of leasehold interest in land, rented WMELHE N AMHAERARKERS
premises and plant and machinery which fall due as FRIEAEHE - I EARE 2B
follows:
2019
HK$’000
FET
Within one year —FR 9,384
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLIT(HEMERELENRN) 5,366
Over five years BiEAF 2,740
17,490
Leases were negotiated, and monthly rentals were MO THEE—FE=-F+EFZE
fixed, for terms ranging from one to thirty years. MEAMESET -
The Group as a lessor b) =XEEEAEHEAA

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties and stock of properties are as
follows:

BREVMERMEFEREZ BB &
EHESHENT

2020

HK$’000

FET

Within one year —F R 1,136
In the second year F_F 927
In the third year F= 329
In the fourth year FF 104

2,496
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53. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 53. KEME&IE (H)
(CONTINUED)
(b) AEEEREAEAE)

(b) The Group as a lessor (Continued) KEEEE R E DY E T

The Group had contracted with tenants in respect of HMPFERARRFEMASHKAD - X
its investment properties and stock of properties for THRGN T ¢
future minimum lease payments which fall due as
follows:
2019
HK$’'000
FAT
Within one year —F R 5,790
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAIT(HEMERELENRN) 9,249
Over five years BB A F 5,096
20,135
Operating lease arrangements represented rentals KEHEZTHIEAEBRREARETE
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises. FrEWK S BB TEERAE—
Leases were negotiated for terms ranging from one FEE -+ FETZ
to twenty years.
54. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 54. EE K7
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets NI EHTEE TYEESEE FIRT
were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure LTS HEE  EAAEERS —REER
the general credit facilities granted to the Group: B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment YD - M KRR 67,433 276,791
Right-of-use assets EREEE 8,867 —
Bank deposits H|ITIE K 11,528 117
Stock of properties MERE 405,146 458,637
Investment properties wEYE - 187,475
Prepaid lease payments AR ERE - 171,178
Other intangible assets Hih & e - 4,704
Trade debtors =Y 3 - 2,962

492,974 1,101,864
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55. COMMITMENTS 55. #AIE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Expenditure contracted for but not provided FUEEIA FEE EF] HE XD
in the consolidated financial statements in G & MR Ex N EE 2 X -
respect of acquisition of:
— Property, plant and equipment — W W R R 114,761 46,258
— Investment properties —REWHE 2,469 7,687
117,230 53,945

56. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 56. A LR B K&
BALANCES
@ KREEVBBRREMBIBESE
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated SN FR AREBJNE HEE TR
financial statements, the Group also entered into the TN TERR S -
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:

Class of related party Nature of transactions/balance 2020 2019
BB AT ZER RE/EHHEE HK$'000  HK$'000
FEE  TAET

(i)  Associates of the Group Interest charged by the Group 4,965 5,239
REE B E QA N5 EWELF B
Service fees charged by the Group 686 714
REBWRREE
(i) Joint ventures of the Group Service fees charged by the Group 317 329
REBZEERE REBWRREE
Expenses related to the short-term 346 474

leases charged to the Group
AEBSHEBAERERS

Lease liabilities (note i) 249 —
HEa®EM )
Interest income charged by the Group 173 374

7 £ 18 W BR A B A

(i)  Entity controlled by senior Service fees charged to the Group 583 467
management (note ii) REBXMRBEE
RREBABES EE
(Bt atii)
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56. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(Continued)

note i: During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group

entered new lease agreements for the use of office
premises with a joint venture for 2 years. The Group has
recognised right-of-use assets with an amount equal to
the corresponding lease liabilities of approximately
HK$511,000.

In addition, imputed interest on lease liabilities with a
joint venture amounted to approximately HK$11,000 (2019
Nil), has charged to the consolidated income statement
during the year.

note ii: These transactions constituted the de minimis

connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

Other than the related party transactions set out in
the Note 56(a) above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management, which is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as
follows:

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

56. BB A LR 5 K& 8 (&)

@

(#8)

Btati: B ZE2020F3A31HIEFE - A&
EHE-—BAECERERANQE
MET L A 2ENFBEE R -
AEECHEREAEEE  ©%IE
ZSRAERE S E4511,000% 7T ©

foh FRE-HALLECH
EAEEZER B 411,000 T
(2019: E)EBHZAKREZEF
’Z/%o

ffazi: ZEXHBERLETRAUTETH
BRERRKFINFEERS

B b 3B 5 56(a) PT 8L 2 B B A £ 2
29 MEEXRBZEBALIRS
BRETRAMAEZBER H X
FEMERS -

EEPEMIBZEREXNEZHE
DHFMEEE2E@/MMABZR
AETSBEMEE  FHBMOT

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET AT

Short-term benefits = HA & A 19,571 20,045
Discretionary bonus BB FE AL 60,787 1,413
Post-employment benefits RAKEF 838 862
81,196 22,320

Details of the balances with associates and a joint © R EHTER BERELAFE—H
venture at the end of the reporting period are set out SER-DEZEREEBEDREY R

in Notes 31 and 32 respectively.
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57. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 57. KRBz BEMRRARKF#E
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RPEERNCII:: Ea 56,985 37,365
Amounts due from subsidiaries & YT B A~ B 5B 1,119,067 1,107,507
1,176,052 1,144,872
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WP B A Rl 3 IE 1,790,135 1,929,335
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments — E b JE L BE 3% - 51 & M FE N ZIE 1,366 17,083
Short-term bank deposits HEIRITER 16,917 100,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHEH LIRS 3,079 16,515
1,811,497 2,062,933
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other creditors and accrued expenses HEMEMNBERLERAX 2,743 2,963
Bank borrowings — due within one year —F RN ZEITER - 110,000
2,743 112,963
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,808,754 1,949,970
NET ASSETS BEEFE 2,984,806 3,094,842
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A% A 551,958 551,958
Reserves (note) et (0t a) 2,432,848 2,542,884

TOTAL EQUITY mER 2,984,806 3,094,842
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57. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 57. AR A 2B RRARRREE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (£8)
(CONTINUED)
Miat -
note:
Share Share-based Retained
premium payment reserve profits Total
MR
R E RIERE R B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
At 31 March 2018 20183 31 H 544,511 3,182 2,085,964 2,633,657
Change in accounting policy EETBEREE — - (8,120) (8,120)
At 1 April 2018 201854 A1 H 544,511 3,182 2,077,844 2,625,537
Loss for the year FEBSE — — (82,653) (82,653)
Release upon lapse of vested B 578 N IR R R
options — (8,182) 3,182 —
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H 544,511 - 1,998,373 2,542,884
Loss for the year FEEBE - - (110,036) (110,036)
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 544,511 - 1,888,337 2,432,848
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58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND

JOINT VENTURES

(@)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

58. T EMB AT HEEATARE

(@)

KRB BN E QB R2020F &

201943 HA31B 21BN T ¢

Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital

BERTRE /HEMERTAHL
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
ML ERTREERE &
WEAREE A e B MEx ANEARRE AKEEL IEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EIEBR AR &% ordinary shares REER
10,0007% 7T
EsE )

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate  The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. H registered capital and sale of properties

IHSERMERSE (note (i) below) MEBR RERHEE
BRRAE 8,800,000% 7

FME R
(T HFee)

Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC US$100,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development, investment,
Investment and i registered capital sale and leasing of
Development Co., Ltd. (note (i) below) properties, developed
(“Jiangsu Yangtong”) 100,000,000 7T land, land under

TEsBHERE AMEAR development and
BRAR(DI&H*FE]) (T X B aE (i) projects under

development

nE BRELH FE
Rt RkAERIER
ZHE RE HER
HE

Jiaxing Feeder Port Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Investment Limited Bk ordinary share infrastructure investment

FAENITEREERAR 1B BOSERERRE

TR i

Jiaxing International The PRC RMB262,800,000 90 90 90 90 Port operation
Container Feeder Port H registered capital BOLE
Limited (note (i) below)

= EN T E R & RAERR AR #262,800,0007C
BRAT A E R

(T3 &2 i)

Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100 Provision of credit services,
Limited Bk ordinary shares securities trading and

HEREEBRAF 1,200,000 7T investment

EbEbO ) RUEERS  BHEER
BE

Smart General Corporation ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100 — 75 — Property development
Limited Bk ordinary share MEER

EETE NG BT

EERBRN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE202063A31BLFE
58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 58. T EMIB AT  BELATIARE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND EBOEER(E)
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
@ (#&)
(Continued)
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
RARES/EMELEIN
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
HRAY,  BRARARRA/H n
WEARER af/ EELE mEx ANEARRE AKEEL IEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
Sunny Long Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 - 75 — Property development
BEERAA & ordinary share MELRE
18T
%%&h@
Paul Y. Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
RESEERAH Bk ordinary shares _infrastructure investment
- BOEERERRA
ERBR
Paul Y. Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
B ordinary shares REZR
2 /% JC
LR R G
PYI Investment (Wuhan) Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited N ordinary shares BEER
RERE(NE)ERRA 2B
Bt O 8
PYI Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of management
RESEEEERAA B ordinary shares services and credit
2B services \
Bl RUEERBREERS
PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Bk ordinary shares REER
REREREFRDF 2B
LakRn
PYI Properties (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RERE(EB)ERDA &AE ordmarys%are RERK
18T
ERRR G
PYI Xingdong Properties The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
(Jiangsu) Limited H registered capital and sale of properties
RERRE X (1H) (note () below) NEER RERBE
ARAR 20,000,000%75
EMEA
(FXHiz()
PYI Yichang Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
Limited Bk ordinary share infrastructure investment
REEEREFRDA 18T BOSERERRE
TR
Treasure Capital Finance Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Provision of credit services,
Limited BB ordinary share securities trading and
EREAUBERNDF 18T investment
EREbO )

REEERE  BFEER
RE
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020%E3A31HILFE

(@)

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 58. T EffB AR HEATARSE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND BhEn (E)
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
@ (#&)
(Continued)
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
RARS /EMEFEIN
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up capital/  held by the attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
AL RORBERE
WELARER gl EEY mEX ANEARRE AKEEL IEXH
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
Yichang Port Group Limited ~ The PRC RMB203,690,000 - 51 - 51 Port operation
HEABEBEAREM F registered capital  (note (iv) (note (iv) BOLE
NS (note (i) below)  below) below)
AR®203690,000T  (FX (FX
AMER Wi fit5t
(FX W) () ()
Yichang Port Group The PRC RMB409,050,000 — 62.366 — 31807 Port operation
Yunchi Port Limited e registered capital  (note (iv) (note (iv) (note (i) &0 %iE
(“Yunchi Port Co”) (note (ij) below)  below) below)  below)
HEBBEEENEER AR#409,050,000t  (FX (Fx  (Tx
RAl([EERAR]) AftAR  HF ms W
(FxheEm W) ) (i)
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 LPG, CNG and LNG
Petroleum Gas Limited R registered capital distribution and logistics
/ﬁ)ﬁtEiE/EE RIERBER (note () below) BILABR  BREAAR
NG 41,000,000% 7T &Aﬁfti%ﬁ’ﬁiﬁ&
i Hﬂ /é\ Z!S //IL
(T B ()
MILRAERRERRIERE  ThePRC US$18,950,000 100 100 100 100 LPG and natural gas
ARRA] H registered capital technical research and
(note (i) below) development
18,950,000% T BACE B R RKRRBM
AMmAR HEEER
(T H ()
ABtLEEEEERAT  ThePRC RMB45,000,000 100 100 75 75 Development, investment
H registered capital and sale of properties
(note (i) below) MEEE REAREE
AR 45, OOO 0007T
& &
( T)Z/WE(H))
/Iéi/ NERRRHEAR The PRC US$14,700,000 51 75 51 75 Development of recreational
N H (2019: US$10,000,000) facilities

registered capital
(notes (i) and (v) below)
14,700,000 7T

(2019 : 10,000 ooo%n:)

HR=N
( T)Zﬁ/fuf(//)&(v»

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.

RERITER

LR EBEMBARERBRAF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(@ (Continued)

notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

Remark:

Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

The subsidiary was being owned as to 62.366% by
Yichang Port Group, a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Group maintained control over the
subsidiary through control over Yichang Port Group
before the disposal of Yichang Port Group completed.

These companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company as a result of the disposal of Yichang Port
Group completed at end of June 2019 (Note 47).

As at 31 March 2020, the registered capital of JT &k /)N F
M8 5 72 AR A 5 was paid up to US$10,000,000
(2019: US$6,680,000).

Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (v) for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the registered
capital of all principal subsidiaries registered in the PRC
were fully paid up during the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries are engaged in
investment holding and corporate services, which
operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

(i)

()

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

HEATANEEECE
BEATATNLEMELE -

MERREARREEN%NNEA
BE BB EH A H62.366% A%
ERERHEEERBEEAZAER
HESEBEBCEREESEZH
B AR A -

ZERNAER2019F6 AR K EE
HEBKER(HFA)MABAERR
RlZMIB AR -

MB2020F3A318 ¢ T & /) ¥ O R
SHBEERARAZEMEARAE #
10,000,000 3 7£.(2019: 6,680,000 3 7T)
& 3K

i c BR R B = 20204F R 2019F3 A31H IE

FERMFEVEBEZHMB RN AT
BRPEEMzEEZWBRARRER
2020 K 2019F3ABIALLFEALE
BEFMEAR-

MBEMTHEE  NARAEAEMYE
AEEME TBERZMBAFR %

EWBRRKRED

PREEREEBR K

EERY REERTEZE

BEMBARCRERETEME
B
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HZE2020F3A31AILFE

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b)  Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

58. TEKBE LA
EhEEHN (&)

(b)

1]

BE D

BEMBRRZFFIE

all

k&

BREEAGERERZAKEEFE

Principal Voting rights held by  Profit (loss) allocated
place of non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated non-
Name of entity business interests interests controlling interests
FTEEHX FERERERZ PTREFERESZ
ERER it 2 RER R (E8) Rt EERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FERT FHET FTHET FHET
Jiangsu Yangtong The PRC 25% 25% 1,856 (944) 305,798 325,271
TEGER h
Yichang Port Group The PRC - 49% 4,166 14,398 - 307,710
(notes i and i) R
HEEBBEE (Wi Kii)
Yunchi Port Co (note iii) The PRC — 37.634% 2,087 1,705 — 182,571
8 R A (B atii) B
Individually immaterial (796) a1 69,132 47,930
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests
BEA SRR R 2 (8 B
FEBERHTE LA
7,313 15,148 374,930 863,482
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below.

ERBEEEAFERERZAKHE
MEBARSA BB BERMT

Yichang Port
Jiangsu Yangtong Group
IEFE BEEBKE
2020 2019 2019
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT
(notes ii and iij)
(Bt i % i)
Results of the entities: ZEEREA
Revenue A - — 340,298
Profit (loss) for the year attributable 3% & & #% & A JE1h
to owners of the entity FERMNBE) 11,357 (3,778) 29,384
Profit (loss) for the year, UWTATEGEEE
attributable to i AN (B 18D
— owners of the Company S N/NETE ¥ =N 5,567 (2,834) 14,986
— non-controlling interests —BFEZER
holding the entity FEPE AR M A 1,856 (944) 14,398
7,423 (3,778) 29,384
Other comprehensive expense, LA™ A AL H A
attributable to FHEMAX
— owners of the Company i N/NEIE ¥ =N (63,988) (60,641) (18,878)
— non-controlling interests —RBEZREEZ
holding the entity FETE IR A (21,329) (20,215) (18,137)
(85,317) (80,856) (37,015)
Total comprehensive expense, WTATEEZE
attributable to % 4858
— owners of the Company — ARRREEE A (58,421) (63,475) (3,892)
— non-controlling interests —BEZERZ
holding the entity FEVE IR 2 (19,473) (21,159) (3,739)
(77,894) (84,634) (7,631)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

L) (&)

(%)

58. T EMB AT HEATANRS
EhEER

Yichang Port
Jiangsu Yangtong Group
L& ER BEEBKE
2020 2019 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAET AT
(notes ii and iii)
(Bt i % i)
Financial position: BB
Non-current assets ERHEE 1,234,818 1,263,464 1,223,559
Current assets mEEE 1,434,356 1,518,253 320,510
Current liabilities RBEE (647,833) (716,110) (416,865)
Non-current liabilities FERHERE (798,149) (764,521) (815,914)
Non-controlling interests FE1E A HE - — (183,311)
1,223,192 1,301,086 627,979
Equity attributable to LTATEEREZ
— owners of the Company —KRAEE A 917,394 975,815 320,269
— non-controlling interests —BEZERZ
holding the entity VIR = 305,798 325,271 307,710
1,223,192 1,301,086 627,979
Cash flows: HemE
Net cash (outflow) inflow from KERGH B
operating activities GhRE)mAFEzE (1,992) (34,445) 51,712
Net cash outflow from KEES2HS R
investing activities = (2,818) (4,684) (25,418)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from mME TSRS
financing activities (RE)mAFEE (5,682) 57,421 (11,648)
Effect of foreign exchange rate GNEETE R B 2 &
changes (1,051) (544) (8,880)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be (nd) mAFE (11,543) 17,748 5,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 58. X EMfIB AR -HBEAIARARE
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND EhEER (FE)
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
() (&)
(b)  (Continued)
BEEMAE QA 2N TG E R #
Additional financial information in respect of Yunchi BT 8B HEE2.8366% 2 #Ea C 4R
Port Co is disclosed as follows, which 62.366% of ERBENRBEEABKEBR N L #H
its interests had been consolidated and included in EBEERRK:
the financial information of Yichang Port Group as
disclosed above:
2019
HK$’000
FAT
(notes [f+ii)
Results of Yunchi Port Co: E BN E] T AR
Revenue A 67,323
Profit for the year attributable to owners of 3% & B2 % A A J& 15 4 & % A
the entity 4,530
Profit for the year, attributable to LA AL R F R m
— parent of the entity —ZERB YT 2,825
— non-controlling interests holding —RAERERIEERESR
the entity 1,705
4,530
Other comprehensive expense, UTATHEEEMEERAS
attributable to
— parent of the entity 8- A SY/NG] (18,564)
— non-controlling interests holding —RBEBEZERBERER
the entity (11,201)
(29,765)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to LA T A+ (L 2 E F X 4258
— parent of the entity —ZEBZ8QA (15,739)
— non-controlling interests holding —REZEBRBZIEERER
the entity (9,496)

(25,235)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31HIEFE

(b)

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 58. T EMIB AT * Aake
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND EhEER (F)
JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
() (&)
(Continued)
2019
HK$’000
FAET
(notes [t&+ii)
Financial position: B FEAR R -
Non-current assets FEREBEE 550,087
Current assets MENE E 92,644
Current liabilities TEARE (92,3295)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (65,286)
Equity attributable to owners of the entity ZERBEEAZELER 485,120
Equity attributable to IATATEEREZE
— parent of the entity —ZERBZERNTA 302,549
— non-controlling interests holding —BEZRERZIEERER
the entity 182,571
485,120
Cash flows: Reme
Net cash inflow from operating activities REFTH 7S RA TR 19,589
Net cash outflow from investing activities BREEFH RS R FE (8,418)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEH RS TR AERE 22,688
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNES TR R O i B (1,317)
Net cash inflow WemAFRE 32,542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

notes:

(

)

(i)

(i)

Being the non-controlling interests directly holding 49%
interests in Yichang Port Group, which the disclosure
information included its proportionate share of Yichang Port
Group’s 62.366% interests in Yunchi Port Co and 80%
interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned subsidiary as
consolidated by Yichang Port Group. Non-controlling
interests directly holding 37.634% interests in Yunchi Port
Co and 20% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yichang Port Group had been disclosed under
the name of entity “Yunchi Port Co” and “Individually
immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests” of the
same table respectively.

The financial information of Yichang Port Group had
consolidated and included its 62.366% interests in Yunchi
Port Co and 80% interests in an immaterial non-wholly-
owned subsidiary. The relevant disclosure information about
the non-controlling interests holding the entity for Yichang
Port Group represented the financial information of Yichang
Port Group attributable to the non-controlling interests
directly holding 49% interests in Yichang Port Group.

These companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company as a result of the disposal of Yichang Port Group
completed at end of June 2019 (Note 47).

(%)

ff &t

)

(i

(i)

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

58. T EMB AT HBEATARE
EHEER(E)

kB EEEAES BB S B40%E
HZIEEREN ZEBERBEH
R BEEESHKEECIELES
ABE - REME A A 1562.366% 2 1
HZER—HIEERFEZENE QA
H80%ziEm EEFBEMERF
37634%Em R EE B HEE — I
EAFEEHBRA20% R Z IR
BiEZ CoRUNEBEBIEH0E
RNER[EAFEERERZEREE
KK B A RIRR 5 RAETEFE -

BEEAKEEZUBERNCEAEAR
B EERE B A F62.366% 2 #
HRR—FEFEERFEZEMNE R RME
8% X BEEAKEEEHEA
ZEBZIEERESEBEEER
REEEFEEEB K EBIO%E S
ZHEREZEEEEELKEE M
BER -

% E R ER019%E6 8K SK L&
BEBKEE T HTAEBEL
THHBAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3A31AILFE

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

()

[=]

58. T EMB AT HEEATARE

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2020

and 2019 are as follows:

ERREHR (4

all

®)

=

© ARFEEHEZARATEHE
N B R2020F N 2019463 A318H 2

HmT

Percentage of issued
share capital/

Place of Issued and  registered capital
incorporation/ fully paid up capital/  attributable to the
Name of associate registration registered capital Group Principal activities
AEBRELES BT
M ERTRAZKRE BAEME X
BHEARER o fAf itk B EERIE=N BA FTEEK
2020 2019
% %
Paul Y. Engineering Group British Virgin HK$122,055,900 48.23 48.23 Investment holding in
Limited Islands ordinary shares companies engaged in
REZXEEERRAA RBREZES  122,055900% T & i@ provision of comprehensive
% A% 17 engineering and property-
related services
REEBRNEERE2E
IEEMEEBREZ
NS
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. registered capital BOEE
TRHEBBESEEATHRELAR (note below)
NS A B #400,000,0007C
AfER
(FXMat)

note: Being the sino-foreign equity joint venture.

Wit - SRR RPIEEREDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

58. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(@

58.

Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures

at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
EHZE2020F3A31HIEFE

BHELQARRE

TENEQF
ERREN (B

all

1]

d ANRAEEEAHE D ENR2020F &
201943 HA31B 21BN T ¢

Percentage of

Place of registered capital
incorporation/ Fully paid  attributable to the
Name of joint venture registration registered capital Group Principal activities
ol A% 3L, R rEEERN
BELERB 1t B EREEMES HMEABESLE FEER
2020 2019
% %
MIEBEXBRAR The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 Investment holding
F registered capital & & ZER
(note below)
A 53,000,000 7T
M E AR
(FX M)
N SR FRE AR A F) The PRC RMB10,000,000 50 50 Property holding
H registered capital BEME
(note below)
A R #10,000,000 7T
(Fxhat)

note: Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To provide details of other subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures would, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, result in excessive length of particulars.

i WERARANEBEDE -

ERAIIREERAIBZZELAKTEFE
EENAXRANEERBLEEFEZIAR
AMEAR BMEARRAELEE AR
BAEERA HIHEMHBAR BELQ
AkAEEZENBSREILE -



P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2020 Annual Report

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEHME

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ABLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FATT FAET FAET FEx
RESULTS E 4
Revenue WA 488,052 553,977 624,400 628,368 363,929
Profit (loss) before taxation B &4 5l & F) (E518) (474,228) (22,701) 714,220 89,084 (507,523)
Taxation B IE 112,695 (1,318) (212,461 (24,728) (57,432)
Profit (loss) for the year FERM(EE) (361,533) (24,019) 501,759 64,356 (564,955)
Attributable to: JEA5
Owners of the Company A2 AlHEH A (297,902) (34,143) 477,390 49,208  (572,268)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR = (63,631) 10,124 24,369 15,148 7,313
(361,533) (24,019) 501,759 64,356  (564,955)
At 31 March
R3A31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAT FAT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE®R
Total assets BEE 8,425,813 7,781,556 8,119,334 7,668,493 5,667,343
Total liabilities REE (3,302,658) (2,972,950) (2,506,542) (2,358,917) (1,614,554)
5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792 5,309,576 4,052,789
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to RATHEAEANZ
owners of the Company JEAG = 4,299,576 4,009,174 4,711,814 4,446,094 3,677,859
Non-controlling interests BT IS 2 823,579 799,432 900,978 863,482 374,930
5,123,155 4,808,606 5,612,792 5,309,576 4,052,789
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEWEFHF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWME
Group’s
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
&
TEREE REEAR HHE Frit =
Nantong International Trade Center with Rented for hotel Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of about 6,000 sgm operation medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, H FE VB JE 4% hHIMEES
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PET#Emmme) eS8 mABIEREE S F O
25 TH 75 496,000 F 77 K
0.88 sg km developed land located at the west of the outer Undetermined Leasehold with 75%
gate of Yangkou Town, Rudong County, use long term
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC HARTE RS EHHEERAH
A BT % 44 ma T A0 SR B OF O SR N P AR
088 FH AREEHHE LM
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BEPREYHE
DEVELOPMENT
Estimated
Stage of completion Group
Location and area Existing use completion date interest
xE
NEREE LS9 TEHER R EABEH Frit fE &
2 sg km land under development located at the Undetermined  Land leveling March 2021 75%
west of the outer gate of Yangkou Town, use stage 202143 A
Rudong County, Nantong City, WAREBE LT FEBER

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PR BT R B RO 3R T 0 R 88 M SE AR A A
2 REREAR L
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

STOCK OF PROPERTIES MERFE
Group
Location and area Existing use Lease term interest
E3
NEREE BRAR HHE Frit =
2.09 sg km developed land and 1.89 sg km land Held for sale Leasehold with 75%
under development located at the west of the HEHE long term
outer gate of Yangkou Town, EHASES

Rudong County, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o BT % & m a0 R & ¥ DR AN P RN
209 F AR HETHN189TF H ABRES L
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NEER

BAFHTES

R 51 B2
RINE

EERZEEE

BERERY
BRI B ()
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RINE

B

yFMWESS
RIS B (£ /E)
2= R
RINE
REZES

PRI ER (£ /&)
=R

RODBESS

BRI ER (£ /&)
2= R
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Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
China CITIC Bank International Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Jiangsu Rudong Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia Limited
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LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)

FINANCIAL ADVISERS

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
Opus Capital Limited

PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
ADMINISTRATORS

BOCI Securities Limited
(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;
Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

33/F, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2831 8328
Fax: +852 2372 0641
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor, North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.pYICOrp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

498
PYW

ROBFERER

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor, North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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PYI Corporation Limited
(RERERMR T 2 ARAR)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

EBNEBERBEE 51 RIREMFEF L 33E
33/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

& ;4 Tel : +852 2831 8328

B Fax: +852 2372 0641

WWW.pyicorp.com
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